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In the eight years since becoming Cenveo’s 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer through 
a proxy fight, much has changed. We have lived 
through a severe economic downturn, continued 
advancements in technology that have impacted 
our business, and dealt with a competitive 
landscape riddled with bankrupt competitors  
and overcapacity.  

To counteract some of these factors, we made  
the conscious and deliberate decision to transform  
what was once regarded as an envelope 
manufacturer and commercial printer into a highly  
diversified, $2 billion manufacturing company.  
We feel that we are now uniquely positioned to 
thrive going forward. We have accomplished  
this by investing in areas that we feel have long- 
term growth potential and disposing of non-core 
assets that are not part of the Company’s  
long-term strategy.

During the past eight years, every one of us at 
Cenveo, starting with me, has been committed  
to delivering value for our shareholders. 
Throughout the years, we have invested in our 
people, technology, products, services and brands 
in order to position ourselves for sustainable 

revenue growth, and improved profitability 
and operating cash flow. As I look back at our 
Company’s performance in 2013, I am proud of 
our team and their accomplishments in the face 
of a challenging operating environment. While 
we have not yet completed our task at hand, we 
did make significant progress in implementing 
our strategic growth plan. Given the progress to 
date, I am more convinced than ever that our hard 
work and strategic planning will be handsomely 
rewarded. 

Here are a few of the many key accomplishments 
that the Company made in 2013:

Created a Market Leader
Making a significant acquisition in the envelope 
manufacturing industry wasn’t the highest of  
our priorities when we started 2013. However, 
when presented with the opportunity to 
acquire one of the Company’s largest envelope 
competitors for a reasonable purchase price,  
we jumped at the chance. In September of 2013,  
after several attempts over the years, we 
completed the acquisition of substantially all of  
the operating assets of National Envelope out  
of bankruptcy. National Envelope, with more  

MESSAGE TO OUR 
      SHAREHOLDERS

 
As both the Company’s largest individual shareholder and as the Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer, I have a lot invested in Cenveo, personally, professionally and financially.  
As we enter 2014, I feel as positive as ever about the direction the Company is heading in 
and that our future remains bright.  In last year’s Message to Shareholders, I discussed at 
length the transformation that your Company had undergone over the past few years and laid  
out our growth strategy for the future. In this year’s letter, I am pleased to report that we  
have made significant progress in implementing this strategy during 2013.
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than $300 million in revenues, had a long and 
storied history with over 60 years of leadership 
in the envelope industry.  Cenveo’s acquisition 
combined two leaders in the envelope market 
and created a “powerhouse” better positioned for 
continued revenue growth through an enhanced 
portfolio of products and services, increased 
geographic presence, and improved financial 
stability. Our combined platform will benefit from 
economies of scale, overhead cost actions and 
fixed cost reductions, as well as manufacturing 
efficiencies and best practices.  

While it is never easy acquiring assets out of 
bankruptcy, when we complete our integration 
plan early next year, we will have created the 
market leader with unparalleled scale and 
geographic reach that will significantly benefit our 
customer base. Given the relatively low purchase 
price that we paid for these assets, we believe 
that meaningful value will be created for our 
shareholders once the integration is complete.

Strengthened the Balance Sheet 
In 2013, we again focused on our capital 
structure by paying down debt and using the 
capital markets to lower our cost of capital. 

During April 2013, we were pleased to be able 
to take advantage of the strong credit markets 
to refinance our next two maturities. These 
refinancings lowered our cash interest expense 
on our indebtedness by over $8 million on an 
annual basis. We now have no bond maturities 
until 2017 as well as increased financial flexibility 
allowing the Company to focus its full attention  
on our operations. I again want to personally thank 
our lender group for their support in helping us 
complete this valuable undertaking.

Continued to Transform
As we did in 2012, with the dispositions of our  
forms and documents group and our wide- 
format papers business, we again disposed of a 
business that we viewed as non-strategic to  
our future. In late September, we completed the 
sale of our custom envelope business to Ennis  
for approximately $50 million. This divestiture  
allows Cenveo to focus on our direct and office  
product envelope businesses, our integration of  
National Envelope and our other core operations,  
including the labels and packaging businesses.  
As we previously mentioned, we continue to 
evaluate our strategic options for all of our operations  
with a focus on delivering shareholder value.

ROBERT G. BURTON, SR.
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Shareholder
Bondholder
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Invested in Our Core
Over the past few years, we have continued to 
invest capital into our higher margin growth 
businesses such as labels and packaging as well as 
our infrastructure and e-commerce operations. 
2013 was no different. During the year, we 
purchased several key pieces of equipment for 
each of these important areas. In keeping with our 
commitment to be the industry’s cutting edge 
provider, these investments significantly increase 
efficiencies, increase our product offering 
capabilities, lower waste and will increase capacity 
for us to continue to grow in these focus areas.

Keys to the Future:
As we look to the future, we will continue  
to focus on the strategies that have made us 
successful in the past:

1. Continue to diversify our revenue base  
 into higher growth areas
We will continue our investments and expand our 
business in the industry’s growth areas including 
labels and packaging, where we already have 
leadership positions across many product lines  
such as prescription drug labels, shrink sleeve  
packaging, prime labels and folded cartons. 

2. Continue to integrate our platform
By all accounts, our acquisition of National 
Envelope should be a game changer for Cenveo 
and our customers. Besides creating the largest, 
most diversified envelope manufacturer in North 
America, Cenveo should also benefit financially. 
We will look to compress our cost structure and 
will leverage our size to negotiate with our vendors 
to achieve efficiencies and economies of scale. 
However, much work remains to achieve these 
benefits and we will use our resources to achieve 
them as quickly as possible. As I have said many 
times before, in a business environment like the one 
we are currently facing, dimes, nickels and pennies 
add up. Improving margins is a way of life at Cenveo 
and it will be at the top of our list as we integrate 
National Envelope into our platform.

3. Lead the industry’s best team
I am truly honored to be able to lead such a great 
team as the one we have here at Cenveo. The 
number of truly outstanding people working with 
us at every level, throughout all of our locations 

across the globe, is something that I haven’t seen 
before in my entire business career. Our Senior 
Management team works extremely hard to bring 
people with character, integrity and intelligence to 
this Company and it pays off every day.

If there were any doubts about our team’s 
commitment to our Company, please consider 
this; our employees are financially aligned  
with our shareholders. Our Board of Directors, 
Senior Management and our employees own 
approximately 25% of Cenveo’s outstanding 
shares. The Burton family continues to be the 
largest individual shareholder of Cenveo and I 
personally purchased over $700,000 of Cenveo 
stock in 2013. I also currently own $5 million of 
Cenveo bonds and plan to increase my ownership 
of both Cenveo stock and bonds in the future. 

On a personal note, I would like to personally 
thank our friend Len Green for his service to the 
Cenveo Board of Directors for the past eight 
years. Len recently informed me of his decision to 
not run for re-election, and I want to personally 
thank him for his insight and leadership.
 4. Deliver value
As we have in the past, we will again hold our 
employees to exceptionally high standards of 
accountability, customer service, and bottom-
line performance in 2014. We have worked 
hard over the past eight years to reposition our 
Company, and the time to reap the benefits  
of our actions starts now. This is the year for us  
to again deliver value for all of our stakeholders. 

On behalf of our Board of Directors, Senior 
Management and 8,600 employees worldwide, 
we look forward to making the most of the 
opportunities that lie ahead as we strive to deliver 
significant future value for our over 100,000 
customers, and for our owners, the shareholders.

ROBERT G. BURTON, SR.

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Shareholder
Bondholder
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 1  Executive Committee
2  Nominating & Governance Committee
3  Compensation Committee
4  Audit Committee

ROBERT G.  
BURTON, JR.  

President of
Cenveo

C O M M I T T E E S 
1

GERALD S.  
ARMSTRONG 

Managing Director  
of Arena Capital  

Partners, LLC

C O M M I T T E E S 
1  +  2  +  3  +  4

ROBERT G.  
BURTON, SR. 

Chairman and CEO  
of Cenveo

C O M M I T T E E S 
1

DR. SUSAN 
HERBST 

President of  
University of Connecticut

C O M M I T T E E S 
1  +  2  +  3  +  4

ROBERT B.  
OBERNIER 

Chairman  
and CEO of   

Horizon Paper Company

C O M M I T T E E S 
1  +  2  +  3  +  4

DR. MARK J.  
GRIFFIN 

Former Headmaster  
and Founder of 

Eagle Hill School

C O M M I T T E E S 
1  +  2  +  3  +  4

BOARD OF 
    DIRECTORS
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GROWTH
DELIVERING

20+ Envelope 20+ Envelope 
Locations Locations 
Nationwide Nationwide 
and approximately and approximately 
$1 billion in revenues$1 billion in revenues
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Cenveo again demonstrated revenue growth in 2013, 
highlighted by the acquisition of select assets of National 
Envelope. With this strategic combination, Cenveo 
expanded its customer base, enhanced its product and 
solutions portfolio, improved its cost structure, and provided 
greater and improved fi nancial stability and fl exibility. 
In addition to the benefi ts of the acquisition, Cenveo 
generated positive organic growth within its envelope 
operations for the year, driven by a strong rebound in credit 
card mailings, which directly impacted the direct mail market.

FACT SHEET: 

CENVEO ENVELOPE GROUP

++++Nationwide NNaNatitiononwwidde e 
 manufacturing mmamanunufaufactactuturiring ng 
 and distribution anndd didisttribibuutioionn 
 footprintffooootpotpriprintnt

++++ Largest manufacturer LaLargrgesest st mmananufnufafactcturureer 
 of envelopes in oof of enenvveloelopopeses inin 
 North AmericaNNororthth AAmAmeericricaa

++++ Leader in market LLeeaddeer iin mmarkrkeet 
 share in all three main shshaaree inin aall l thhreree e mmaiain n 
 distribution channels disistrtribbututioon n chchaannneels s 
 (consumer, retail ((coconsnsusummerer r, retetaiail 
 and wholesale)anandd wwhoholelesasalele))

CENVEO 2013 | DELIVERING VALUE - 7 -

CVO_AR13_Narrative_v9.indd   7CVO_AR13_Narrative_v9.indd   7 4/4/14   7:52 PM4/4/14   7:52 PM



LL
 AA

B
 EEEE

 LL

P

P

P
 A

P
 

A
 

R

C
 

I 

K

N
 

A
K

TTT

A
 G

T

GG
I 

N
I

NN
 GG

EE
 NN

  V
  E

L
E

L
OOO

PP
 

P
EEE

P
 E

P PP
O

 
LL

 
E

 
V

 E
N

 V
 N

E
 

GG
N

GG
N N

 
 I

TTT

G

N
 T

AA

I 
N

A
K

 

R
 I

C
 K

P
 R

A
 C

P

 A
P

 

L 
EE

B
E

A
 B

L
 A

L
 

As one of the largest commercial 
printers in the U.S., we off er short-
run, high color products including 
advertising and corporate materials, 
journals and specialty magazines 
as well as services such as digital 
print, fulfi llment and content 
management. Cenveo has taken 
great strides to improve its print 
sales and sales management team 
in 2013, and we look forward to 
tackling new business in new 
markets. 

Our packaging division has a 
global presence that incorporates 
North America and Asia. Cenveo 
focuses on niche businesses in the 
pharmaceutical, medical, apparel, 
food and beverage, health and 
beauty, and technology markets, with 
our high color folded carton and 
shrink sleeve packaging solutions. 
With several key investments in new 
machinery, we hope to nurture this 
growing business going forward. 

Our label division produces a 
diverse line of custom labels for 
a broad range of industries including 
manufacturing, warehousing, 
packaging, food and beverage, and 
health and beauty, which we sell 
through extensive networks within 
the resale channels and our direct 
sales channel. We provide direct 
mail and overnight packaging labels, 
food and beverage labels, and shelf 
and scale labels for national and 
regional customers. We also produce 
pressure-sensitive prescription labels 
for the retail pharmacy market. 

Cenveo is the largest envelope 
provider in North America. With 
our unmatched expertise in the 
envelope industry, Cenveo off ers 
a wide variety of products such as 
direct mail products, transactional 
envelopes and specialty and stock 
envelopes.
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Diversifying our revenue base into higher growth areas 
of our industry has been central to Cenveo’s long-term 
strategy. As we continue to grow in the label, packaging 
and digital areas, we believe we are uniquely positioned to 
thrive for our more than 100,000 customers worldwide.

DIVERSE
DELIVERING A

REVENUE BASE
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With approximately 8,600 employees worldwide,  
Cenveo has built a strong foundation of great leadership 
and outstanding craftsmanship at every level. With a 
driven and committed group of employees, we strive to  
be the best every day, delivering for all our stakeholders. 
We exhibit this commitment through our actions, as  
our Senior Management, Board of Directors and employees 
own approximately 25% of the company.

EXPERIENCE
DELIVERING
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In the first quarter of 2013, the 
Jacksonville, FL packaging location 
experienced a fire that destroyed 
property, including a lithographic press. 
We reinstalled an RA 106 KBA press 
in the third quarter to not only recover 
from the damages incurred, but also 
to enhance our capabilities with a 
better investment. The upgraded press 
eliminates the need to outsource foil 
stamping and increases our product 
offering. In addition to foil stamping, the 
new press offers an eighth printing unit, 
an inline sheet vision inspection system 
and dual coating capability. 

DELIVERING QUALITY 
    BY INVESTING

e-commerce  
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Jacksonville  
Florida
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Mississauga  
Ontario

Mississauga  
Ontario

Cenveo installed a Heidelberg 
XL 106 7-colour duo press in its 
Mississauga, Ontario labels and 
packaging location in January 2014. 
This press allows the company to 
produce foil stamping solutions  
in house, eliminate outsourcing and 
reduce costs for label and carton 
products. 

Cenveo prides itself on being one of the leading management and 
distribution companies of print and related offerings in the world 
and we continue to build upon this reputation through strategic 
advancements. In 2013, we strengthened our market share in the 
envelope industry and invested in our current platform with our 
acquisition of select assets of National Envelope. We also made 
several select capital investments in machinery and technology across 
our label and packaging operations as highlighted below. Combined 
with our multi-year investments in e-commerce technologies 
through website redesigns, strategic marketing and rebranding, we 
feel that we are uniquely positioned to grow in these higher growth 
areas of the industry going forward. 
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CENVEO

S&P 500 INDE X

S&P 1500 COMMERCIAL PRINTING INDE X

MARKET PRICE OF COMMON SHARES
Each share of voting Common Stock is entitled to one vote on all matters 
submitted to a vote of stockholders.

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, which we  
refer to as NYSE under the symbol “CVO.” As of February 5, 2014, there  
were 602 shareholders of record and, as of that date, we estimate there were 
approximately 10,582 beneficial owners holding stock in nominee or “street” 
name. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of the 
high and low closing prices for our Common Stock as reported by the NYSE:

2013 HIGH LOW

First Quarter $3.03 $1.98
Second Quarter $2.40 $1.99
Third Quarter $3.00 $2.02
Fourth Quarter $3.53 $2.75

2012 HIGH LOW

First Quarter $5.23 $3.13
Second Quarter $3.51 $1.57
Third Quarter $2.44 $1.80
Fourth Quarter $2.70 $1.90

DIVIDENDS
We have not paid a dividend on our Common Stock since our incorporation and 
do not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future, as the instruments 
governing a significant portion of our debt obligations limit our ability to pay Common 
Stock dividends. See Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements included in  
this Annual Report for information regarding our stock compensation plans.

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Registrar & Transfer Company  
10 Commerce Drive 
Cranford, NJ 07016
Telephone: 800-368-5948

SHAREHOLDER ACCOUNT INQUIRIES
For inquiries concerning transfer of shares, replacement of lost certificates, 
change of address or any questions regarding your Cenveo stock, call or write  
the transfer agent.

FORM 10-K/ANNUAL REPORT
The Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed on February 26, 2014 with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission is available without charge either  
by contacting the Office of Investor Relations or at www.sec.gov.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Grant Thornton LLP 
National Office 
175 West Jackson Blvd., 20th Floor  
Chicago, IL 60604 
United States
Telephone: 312-856-0200

HOTLINE
A 24-hour anonymous incident-reporting hotline is available to all  
employees and all shareholders. To make a confidential and anonymous  
report, call 800-513-4056.

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Cenveo, Inc. 
200 First Stamford Place 
2nd Floor 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Telephone: 203-595-3000  
www.cenveo.com

OFFICE OF INVESTOR RELATIONS
Cenveo, Inc. 
200 First Stamford Place 
2nd Floor 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Telephone: 203-595-3005  
Facsimile: 203-595-3071

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at Cenveo’s corporate 
headquarters at 200 First Stamford Place, 2nd Floor, Stamford, CT 06902  
on Thursday, May 1, 2014 at 8:00 a.m. Eastern Time.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
The graph below compares five- year returns of our Common Stock  
with those of the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 1500 Commercial Printing 
Index. The graph assumes that $100 was invested as of our year ended 2008 
in each of our Common Stock, the S&P 500 Index, and the S&P 1500 
Commercial Printing Index and that all dividends were reinvested. The  
S&P 1500 Commercial Printing Index is a capitalization weighted index 
designed to measure the performance of all NASDAQ- traded stocks in the 
commercial printing sector.

SHAREHOLDER  
     INFORMATION
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The following table sets forth our selected financial and operating data for the years ended December 28, 2013, December 29, 2012, 
December 31, 2011, January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, which we refer to as the years ended 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The following consolidated selected financial data has been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the related consolidated 
financial statements, either elsewhere in this report or in reports we have previously filed with the SEC. Additionally, it reflects the reclassification 
of Custom Envelope, our San Francisco manufacturing facility, Documents Group and our wide- format papers business to discontinued operations, 
for all periods presented.

Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Statement of Operations:
Net sales  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293  $ 1,844,371  $ 1,643,286  $ 1,547,602
Restructuring and other charges   13,100   27,100   17,812   44,731   68,034
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   33,367   —   —   181,419   —
Operating income (loss)   29,363   101,185   105,162   (130,504)   5,876
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of  

debt, net   11,324   12,487   (4,011)   9,592   (16,917)
Loss from continuing operations   (85,527)(1)   (80,528)(3)   (8,694)   (205,387)   (55,910)
Income from discontinued operations,  

net of taxes   16,741(2)   641(4)   129(5)   19,011   24,971
Net loss   (68,786)(1) (2)   (79,887)(3) (4)   (8,565)(5)   (186,377)   (30,939)
Loss per share from continuing operations:

Basic   (1.32)   (1.27)   (0.14)   (3.29)   (0.98)
Diluted   (1.32)   (1.27)   (0.14)   (3.29)   (0.98)

Income per share from discontinued 
operations:
Basic   0.25   0.01   —   0.30   0.44
Diluted   0.25   0.01   —   0.30   0.44

Net loss per share:
Basic   (1.07)   (1.26)   (0.14)   (2.99)   (0.54)
Diluted   (1.07)   (1.26)   (0.14)   (2.99)   (0.54)

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets  $ 1,213,704  $ 1,200,555  $ 1,391,104  $ 1,412,270  $ 1,536,185
Total long- term debt, including current 

maturities   1,185,525   1,183,618   1,246,343   1,294,003   1,233,917
(1) Includes $40.6 million valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets.
(2) Includes $14.9 million gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax expense of $10.7 million.
(3) Includes $56.5 million valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets.
(4) Includes $6.3 million loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax benefit of $2.6 million.
(5) Includes $13.5 million goodwill impairment charges.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, which we refer to as MD&A, of Cenveo, Inc. 
and its subsidiaries, which we refer to as Cenveo, should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual 
Report. Certain statements in this report constitute “forward- looking” statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In 
addition, we or our representatives have made or continue to make forward- looking statements, orally or in writing, in other contexts. These forward- 
looking statements generally can be identified by the use of terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “plan,” 
“foresee,” “believe” or “continue” and similar expressions, or as other statements which do not relate solely to historical facts. These statements 
are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions which are difficult to predict or quantify. Management 
believes these statements to be reasonable when made. However, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or 
forecasted in these forward- looking statements. As a result, these statements speak only as of the date they were made. We undertake no obligation 
to publicly update or revise any forward- looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In view of such 
uncertainties, investors should not place undue reliance on our forward- looking statements.

Such forward- looking statements involve known and unknown risks, including, but not limited to changes in general economic, business and 
labor conditions.

Introduction and Executive Overview
We are a diversified manufacturing company focused on print related products. Our broad portfolio of products includes envelope converting, 

commercial printing, label manufacturing and specialty packaging. We operate a global network of strategically located manufacturing facilities, 
serving a diverse base of over 100,000 customers.

Our business strategy has been, and continues to be, focused on improving sales performance, pursuing and integrating strategic acquisitions, 
improving our cost and capital structure, and maintaining reasonable levels of financial flexibility. We believe this strategy has allowed us to diversify 
our revenue base, maintain our low cost structure and deliver quality product offerings to our customers.

2013 Overview/2014 Outlook

Economy and Industry Highlights
We believe that the mild recovery of the general economy experienced in 2012 continued in 2013. We currently expect similar recovery 

trends for the foreseeable future, particularly in 2014. The print related industries are highly fragmented and extremely competitive due to over- 
capacity and pricing pressures. We believe these factors, combined with a slow general economic recovery, will continue to impact our results of 
operations into 2014.

Our current management focus is on the following areas:

Improving Sales Performance
Our sales focus has been, and will continue to be, on our customers’ experience across each of our businesses, ensuring we meet our customers’ 

demands. We seek to expand our relationship with them through cross- selling initiatives available within our platform. During 2013, we implemented 
a customer relationship management tool across our entire sales platform, and we focused on our e- commerce platform in 2013 through both 
capital investments and incremental headcount. We have also begun a series of sales recruiting efforts with a focus on attracting not only talented 
individuals with experience in our current business lines, but also individuals with experience in complementary industry channels. We expect these 
focus points, along with our expanded geographic presence from the acquisition of certain assets of National, will allow us to experience modest 
sales growth despite operating in challenging industries and an uncertain economy. In addition, the uncoated freesheet paper market, which is 
the primary input for our envelope and certain other products, experienced supply reductions beginning in the fourth quarter of 2013 which will 
continue into the first quarter of 2014. As a result, our suppliers announced price increases which became effective for us during our fourth quarter 
of 2013. We have begun the process of negotiating these increases as well as other ancillary raw material costs, which we have not been able to pass 
along to our envelope customers over the past two years, with our envelope customers beginning in our fourth quarter of 2013. While we believe 
we will be successful in our ability to pass through our increased costs, we cannot be assured we will be successful in every effort. Moreover, any 
increase in price may have an adverse impact on the product volume levels our customers have ordered previously.

Integrating Certain Assets of National
We believe our acquisition of certain assets of National will provide much needed capacity reductions within the envelope industry. We 

developed and began implementing our plan to integrate those assets into our existing envelope operations in the third quarter of 2013. At this 
time, we expect this integration to take in excess of a year to complete due to the condition of National’s operating platform and asset base at the 
time of acquiring these assets out of bankruptcy.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Improving our Cost Structure
We continue to monitor our cost structure as marketplace conditions warrant, and expect to further reduce costs as necessary. In the first 

quarter of 2013, as a result of margin pressures from rising input costs and price pressures experienced within our envelope and print segments, we 
initiated a plan to further reduce our cost structure. We also continue to focus on strategic investments, capital expenditures and acquisitions in 
areas that we believe will strengthen our manufacturing platform and product offerings. We continue to review strategic alternatives for business 
lines we believe are underperforming or non- strategic to our future operations.

Improving our Capital Structure
Since the beginning of 2011, we have been focused on improving our capital structure through a number of initiatives including working capital 

improvements, exiting underperforming or non- strategic businesses, and taking advantage of attractive leverage loan and high yield debt market 
conditions. Since we began this initiative, we have reduced our outstanding debt by over $105 million, despite our continued reinvestments of 
cash into our businesses via four acquisitions, focused capital expenditures, and incurring over $55 million in transaction costs associated with the 
improvement of our capital structure. At the beginning of 2013, we addressed a near- term maturity which was coming due at the end of 2013 by 
entering into an unsecured $50.0 million aggregate principal amount term loan due 2017, which we refer to as the Unsecured Term Loan. As of 
February 5, 2014, there is $10.0 million remaining on the Unsecured Term Loan, which we expect to repay in full in the next few months. During 
the second quarter of 2013, we refinanced our first lien debt, which extended our next sizable debt maturity until 2017 and resulted in increased 
cash flows via lower cash interest upon the completion of the refinancing. As part of the refinancing, we transitioned from a cash flow revolving 
credit facility to an asset- based revolving credit facility, which we refer to as our ABL Facility, to further reduce interest expense. In December of 
2013, primarily due to our acquisition of certain assets of National, we increased our borrowing capacity on our ABL Facility to $230 million from 
$200 million, supported by over $60 million of suppressed capacity underlying our ABL Facility. The accordion feature within our ABL Facility 
will, subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions, permit us to borrow up to an additional $20 million to further enhance our capital structure 
by using this lower interest rate vehicle to address our higher interest rate debt currently outstanding.

Acquisitions
On September 16, 2013, we acquired certain assets of National. National’s accounts receivable and inventory were purchased by unrelated 

third parties in conjunction with our acquisition. National manufactured and distributed envelope products for the billing, financial, direct mail 
and office products markets and had approximately 1,600 employees. We believe the acquisition of certain assets of National will enhance our 
manufacturing capabilities and reduce capacity in the envelope industry.

On December 31, 2012, we acquired all of the assets of Express Label, which had annual net sales of approximately $5.4 million prior to our 
acquisition. Express Label is a label business that focuses on food and grocery customers and was acquired to further enhance our label operations.

Discontinued Operations
In September of 2013, we completed the sale of Custom Envelope within our envelope segment and received net proceeds of $44.8 million. 

During the second quarter of 2013, we decided to exit the San Francisco market and closed a manufacturing facility within our print segment.
In February of 2012, we completed the sale of Documents Group within our label and packaging segment. Net cash proceeds were 

approximately $35.5 million. In January of 2012, we completed the sale of our wide- format papers business and received proceeds of approximately 
$4.7 million.

The operating results of these transactions are reported in discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements for all 
periods presented.

Reportable Segments
We operate three complementary reportable segments: envelope, print and the label and packaging segments. During the fourth quarter of 

2013, we completed a realignment of our segments as a result of a change in management reporting and strategy. Our historical financial statement 
disclosures have been updated to reflect the current year presentation.

Deferred Taxes
In the fourth quarter of 2013, we recorded a non- cash valuation allowance charge of $40.6 million related to the realizability of our net 

deferred tax assets due to excess capacity and pricing pressure combined with the decline in net sales and operating performance of our print 
segment during 2013.

In the fourth quarter of 2012, we recorded a non- cash valuation allowance charge of $56.5 million related to the realizability of our net 
deferred tax assets due to excess capacity and pricing pressure, combined with the decline in net sales of our print segment during 2012.
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Goodwill and Intangible Asset Impairments
We did not record any goodwill impairment charges in 2013 or 2012.
In the fourth quarter of 2011, we recorded non- cash goodwill impairment charges of $13.5 million related to the Discontinued Operations. 

These charges were due to our carrying value of the assets, including goodwill and intangible assets, of the Discontinued Operations being in excess 
of the fair value we received from divesting these businesses.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we made the decision to retire certain indefinite- lived trade names in 2014 as a result of rebranding our 
print and packaging business lines. Accordingly, based on our evaluation using a relief from royalty and other discounted cash flow methodologies, 
we concluded that those trade name assets were impaired. An impairment charge of $33.4 million was recorded to reduce their carrying value to 
their estimated fair value. Those trade names have a remaining carrying value of $1.9 million as of the year ended 2013, which will be amortized over 
their remaining useful life of less than one year. There were no intangible asset impairments in the years ended 2012 or 2011.

Consolidated Operating Results
This MD&A includes an overview of our consolidated results of operations for 2013, 2012 and 2011 followed by a discussion of the results of 

operations of each of our reportable segments for the same periods. Our results for the year ended 2013 include the operating results of Express 
Label for a full year and National’s results of operations are included in our operating results from September 16, 2013. Our results for the year 
ended 2012 and 2011 do not include the operating results of National or Express Label.

A summary of our consolidated statements of operations is presented below. The summary presents reported net sales and operating income 
(loss). See Segment Operations below for a summary of net sales and operating income (loss) of our reportable segments we use internally to assess 
our operating performance. Our reporting periods for 2013, 2012 and 2011 each consisted of 52 week periods ending on the Saturday closest to 
the last day of the calendar month and ended on December 28, 2013, December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. We refer to such 
periods herein as: (i) the year ended 2013; (ii) the year ended 2012; and (iii) the year ended 2011. All references to years and year- ends herein 
relate to fiscal years rather than calendar years.

For The Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011
Net sales  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293  $ 1,844,371
Operating income (loss):

Envelope  $ 39,775  $ 45,485  $ 46,838
Print   (6,042)   32,845   43,709
Label and packaging   32,644   54,666   57,768
Corporate   (37,014)   (31,811)   (43,153)

Total operating income   29,363   101,185   105,162
Gain on bargain purchase   (17,262)   —   (11,720)
Interest expense, net   112,677   114,755   115,968
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt, net   11,324   12,487   (4,011)
Other (income) expense, net   (5,602)   (1,249)   9,074
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes   (71,774)   (24,808)   (4,149)

Income tax expense   13,753   55,720   4,545
Loss from continuing operations   (85,527)   (80,528)   (8,694)

Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes   16,741   641   129
Net loss  $ (68,786)  $ (79,887)  $ (8,565)

(Loss) income per share—basic:
Continuing operations  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)  $ (0.14)
Discontinued operations   0.25   0.01   —
Net loss  $ (1.07)  $ (1.26)  $ (0.14)

(Loss) income per share—diluted:
Continuing operations  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)  $ (0.14)
Discontinued operations   0.25   0.01   —
Net loss  $ (1.07)  $ (1.26)  $ (0.14)
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Net Sales
Net sales increased $39.5 million, or 2.3%, in 2013, as compared to 2012, due to higher sales from our envelope segment of $91.7 million and 

higher sales from our label and packaging segment of $3.7 million, offset by lower sales in our print segment of $55.9 million.
Net sales decreased $106.1 million, or 5.8%, in 2012, as compared to 2011, primarily due to lower sales from our print segment of $41.4 million, 

$48.4 million from our envelope segment and $16.3 million from our label and packaging segment.
See Segment Operations below for a detailed discussion of the primary factors affecting the change in our net sales by reportable segment.

Operating Income
Operating income decreased $71.8 million, or 71.0%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. This decrease was due to: (i) a decrease in operating 

income from our print segment of $38.9 million; (ii) a decrease in operating income from our label and packaging segment of $22.0 million; (iii) a 
decrease in operating income from our envelope segment of $5.7 million; and (iv) higher corporate expenses of $5.2 million.

Operating income decreased $4.0 million, or 3.8%, in 2012, as compared to 2011. This decrease was primarily due to decreases from: (i) our 
print segment of $10.9 million; (ii) our label and packaging segment of $3.1 million; and (iii) our envelope segment of $1.4 million, partially offset 
by lower corporate expenses of $11.3 million.

See Segment Operations below for a more detailed discussion of the primary factors for the changes in operating income by 
reportable segment.

Gain on Bargain Purchase
During 2013, in connection with the acquisition of certain assets of National, we recognized a preliminary bargain purchase gain of 

approximately $17.3 million.
During 2011, in connection with the acquisition of MeadWestvaco Corporation’s Envelope Product Group, which we refer to as EPG, we 

recognized a bargain purchase gain of approximately $11.7 million.

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased $2.1 million to $112.7 million in 2013, as compared to $114.8 million in 2012. The decrease was primarily due to 

lower average outstanding debt balances primarily as a result of debt repayments using cash flow from operations and the proceeds from the sale 
of Custom Envelope, as well as lower interest rates on our revolver borrowings as a result of our refinancing of debt in the second quarter of 2013. 
Interest expense in 2013 reflected average outstanding debt of approximately $1.2 billion and a weighted average interest rate of 8.2%, compared 
to the average outstanding debt of approximately $1.3 billion and a weighted average interest rate of 8.2% in 2012.

Interest expense decreased $1.2 million to $114.8 million in 2012, as compared to $116.0 million in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to 
lower average outstanding debt balances primarily as a result of debt repayments using cash flow from operations and the proceeds from the sale 
of the Discontinued Operations, offset in part by higher interest expense as a result of our refinancing activities in 2012. Interest expense in 2012 
reflected average outstanding debt of approximately $1.3 billion and a weighted average interest rate of 8.2%, as compared to average outstanding 
debt of $1.4 billion and a weighted average interest rate of 8.0% in 2011.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt
During the year ended 2013, we recorded a total loss on early extinguishment of debt of $11.3 million. In connection with the refinancing of 

our $170 million revolving credit facility due 2014, which we refer to as the Revolving Credit Facility, and our existing term loan B due 2016, which 
we refer to as Term Loan B, and collectively with the Revolving Credit Facility we refer to as the Refinanced Facility, we recorded a loss on early 
extinguishment of debt of approximately $6.4 million, of which $4.1 million related to consent fees paid to consenting lenders, $2.1 million related 
to the write- off of unamortized debt issuance costs and $0.2 million related to the write- off of original issuance discount. We recorded a loss on 
early extinguishment of debt of approximately $4.0 million related to the extinguishment of $40.0 million of our Unsecured Term Loan, of which 
$2.2 million related to the write- off of unamortized debt issuance costs and $1.8 million related to the write- off of original issuance discount. In 
connection with the extinguishment of $28.2 million of our secured term loan facility, which we refer to as the Term Loan Facility, we recorded 
a loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $0.8 million, of which $0.5 million related to the write- off of unamortized debt issuance 
costs and $0.3 million related to the write- off of original issuance discount.

During 2012, we recorded a total loss on early extinguishment of debt of $12.5 million. In connection with various refinancing activities, we 
incurred losses on early extinguishment of debt of $14.9 million, of which $11.7 million related to tender and consent fees paid to consenting lenders 
and $3.2 million related to the write- off of previously unamortized debt issuance costs. The loss on early extinguishment was partially offset by 
the gains on early extinguishment of debt of $2.4 million related to repurchases of: (i) our 7.875% senior subordinated notes, due 2013, which we 
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refer to as the 7.875% Notes; (ii) our 10.5% senior notes due 2016, which we refer to as the 10.5% Notes; and (iii) our 8.375% senior subordinated 
notes, due 2014, which we refer to as the 8.375% Notes, plus in each case accrued and unpaid interest thereon.

During 2011, we repurchased $11.4 million of our 7.875% Notes for $9.0 million plus accrued and unpaid interest and $7.0 million of our 
8.375% Notes for $5.4 million plus accrued and unpaid interest. As a result, we recognized gains on early extinguishment of debt of $4.0 million.

Income Taxes

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Income tax expense from U.S. operations  $ 14,197  $ 56,173  $ 2,184
Income tax (benefit) expense from foreign operations   (444)   (453)   2,361
Income tax expense  $ 13,753  $ 55,720  $ 4,545
Effective income tax rate   (19.2)%   (224.6)%   (109.5)%

Income Tax Expense
In 2013, we had an income tax expense of $13.8 million and our effective tax rate in 2013 differed from the federal statutory rate primarily due 

to a non- cash valuation allowance charge related to our net deferred tax assets. We do not believe that it is reasonably possible that our unrecognized 
tax benefits will change significantly in the next twelve months.

In 2012, we had an income tax expense of $55.7 million and our effective tax rate during 2012 differed from the federal statutory rate primarily 
due to a non- cash valuation allowance charge related to our net deferred tax assets.

In 2011, we had an income tax expense of $4.5 million. Our effective tax rate during 2011 differed from the federal statutory rate, primarily 
due to the non- deductibility for income tax purposes of certain employee and stock related compensation, partially offset by a release of valuation 
allowance for a portion of our state income tax loss carryforwards.

Valuation Allowance
We review the likelihood that we will realize the benefit of our deferred tax assets and therefore the need for valuation allowances on a quarterly 

basis, or more frequently if events indicate that a review is required. In determining the requirement for a valuation allowance, the historical and 
projected financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording the net deferred tax asset is considered, along with all other available 
positive and negative evidence. The factors considered in our determination of the probability of the realization of the deferred tax assets include, 
but are not limited to: recent historical financial results, historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the 
reversals of existing temporary differences, the duration of statutory carryforward periods and tax planning strategies. If, based upon the weight of 
available evidence, it is more likely than not the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded.

Concluding that a valuation allowance is not required is difficult when there is significant negative evidence which is objective and verifiable, 
such as cumulative losses in recent years. We utilize a rolling twelve quarters of pre- tax income or loss adjusted for significant permanent book to 
tax differences as a measure of our cumulative results in recent years. In the United States, our analysis indicates that we have cumulative three 
year historical losses on this basis. While there are significant impairment, restructuring and refinancing charges driving our cumulative three year 
loss, this is considered significant negative evidence which is objective and verifiable and therefore, difficult to overcome. However, the three year 
loss position is not solely determinative and accordingly, we consider all other available positive and negative evidence in our analysis. Based upon 
our analysis, which incorporated the excess capacity and pricing pressure we have experienced in certain of our product lines, along with the recent 
decline in net sales and profitability from our print segment during 2013, we believe it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets in the 
United States will not be fully realized in the future. Accordingly, we increased our valuation allowance related to those net deferred tax assets by 
$40.6 million to $97.1 million in 2013. Deferred tax assets related to certain state net operating losses and foreign tax credit carryforwards also did 
not reach the more likely than not realizability criteria and accordingly, were subject to a valuation allowance. During 2013, our valuation allowance 
related to these state net operating losses and foreign tax credit carryforwards was increased by $1.0 million to $13.7 million, primarily as a result of 
an increase in the valuation allowance against state net operating losses in the amount of $2.5 million offset by the expiration of foreign tax credit 
carryforwards in the amount of $1.5 million.
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There is no corresponding income tax benefit recognized with respect to losses incurred and no corresponding income tax expense recognized 
with respect to earnings generated in jurisdictions with a valuation allowance. This causes variability in our effective tax rate. We intend to maintain 
the valuation allowances until it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be realized. If operating results improve on a sustained 
basis, or if certain tax planning strategies are implemented, our conclusions regarding the need for valuation allowances could change, resulting in 
the reversal of the valuation allowances in the future, which could have a significant impact on income tax expense in the period recognized and 
subsequent periods.

Income from Discontinued Operations, net of taxes
As a result of exploring opportunities to divest certain non- strategic or underperforming businesses within our manufacturing platform, we 

decided to exit the San Francisco market and closed a manufacturing facility within the print segment in the second quarter of 2013. Additionally, in 
the third quarter of 2013, we completed the sale of Custom Envelope within our envelope segment. The results of operations and cash flows of these 
businesses are reflected within discontinued operations for all periods presented herein, including the related tax effects. The results within income 
from discontinued operations in prior periods also contain the results from our Documents Group and our wide- format papers business sold in 2012.

During 2013, income from discontinued operations was $16.7 million, which includes: (i) the gain on the sale of Custom Envelope of 
$14.9 million, net of tax expense of $10.7 million; (ii) income from operations related to Custom Envelope of $4.0 million, net of tax expense of 
$2.7 million; and (iii) a loss from operations related to San Francisco of $2.2 million, net of a tax benefit of $0.1 million.

During 2012, income from discontinued operations was $0.6 million, which included a loss on sale of previous divestitures of $6.3 million, net 
of a tax benefit of $2.6 million. The loss was offset by income from operations of our discontinued operations of $6.9 million, net of tax expense of 
$4.4 million, which includes the reduction of a liability of $1.8 million, net of tax expense of $1.2 million, due to the expiration of certain statutes 
of limitations related to a previous divestiture.

During 2011, income from discontinued operations was $0.1 million, which is comprised of income from operations related to our discontinued 
operations of $0.1 million, net of tax expense of $8.8 million. The results for 2011 include a non- cash goodwill impairment charge of $13.5 million, 
which had no tax effect as it was non- deductible goodwill.

Segment Operations
Our Chief Executive Officer monitors the performance of the ongoing operations of our three reportable segments. We assess performance 

based on net sales and operating income.

Envelope

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Segment net sales  $ 749,898  $ 658,217  $ 706,596
Segment operating income  $ 39,775  $ 45,485  $ 46,838
Operating income margin   5.3%   6.9%   6.6%
Restructuring and other charges  $ 5,476  $ 6,161  $ 6,261

Segment Net Sales
Segment net sales for our envelope segment increased $91.7 million, or 13.9%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. Net sales for our envelope 

operations increased primarily due to: (i) sales generated from the integration of certain assets of National into our operations, including the impact 
of work transitioned from our existing operations to National, as National was not included in our 2012 results; (ii) increased demand from certain 
direct mail customers, primarily financial institutions; and (iii) higher sales volumes from our initiatives to obtain further market share within our 
more generic envelope products. These increases were partially offset by: (i) lower sales volumes from our office products customers related to 
our decision to exit certain low margin business; and (ii) lower average selling prices due to our initiatives to gain market share as well as continued 
pricing pressures.

Segment net sales for our envelope segment decreased $48.4 million, or 6.8%, in 2012, as compared to 2011. Net sales for our envelope 
operations decreased primarily due to: (i) lower sales volumes from our direct mail customers, primarily financial institutions, related to lower 
demand for customer solicitations; (ii) lower sales volumes due to the closure and consolidation of two envelope plants into our existing operations; 
and (iii) lower sales volumes from our office products customers due to our decision to exit certain low margin business. These decreases in our 
envelope net sales were partially offset by: (i) higher sales from the integration of EPG into our operations, as EPG was not included in our results 
for a full year in 2011; and (ii) higher sales due to our ability to pass along material price increases to our customers.
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Segment Operating Income
Segment operating income for our envelope segment decreased $5.7 million, or 12.6%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. This decrease was 

primarily due to higher selling, general and administrative expenses of $13.5 million, primarily due to National, of which $7.5 million were acquisition- 
related costs. The decrease was partially offset by: (i) higher gross margin of $7.1 million, which was primarily due to increased sales volumes; and 
(ii) lower restructuring and other charges of $0.7 million, primarily due to the closure and consolidation of two envelope plants into our existing 
operations in the first quarter of 2012.

Segment operating income for our envelope segment decreased $1.4 million, or 2.9%, in 2012, as compared to 2011. This decrease was 
primarily due to lower gross margins of $12.8 million, primarily due to lower sales, lower byproduct recoveries and continued pricing pressures. These 
decreases were partially offset by lower selling, general and administrative expenses of $11.4 million, primarily due to lower commission expense as 
a result of lower sales, and a lower cost structure due to the integration of EPG into our existing envelope operations.

Print

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Segment net sales  $ 529,760  $ 585,632  $ 626,994
Segment operating (loss) income  $ (6,042)  $ 32,845  $ 43,709
Operating income margin   (1.1)%   5.6%   7.0%
Restructuring and other charges  $ 4,289  $ 18,089  $ 8,929
Impairment of intangible assets  $ 24,493  $ —  $ —

Segment Net Sales
Segment net sales for our print segment decreased $55.9 million, or 9.5%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. The decline is primarily due to: 

(i) lower sales volumes due to lower demand in the commercial print and publishing industries; and (ii) lower sales due to pricing pressures which 
continue to exist in the printing industry.

Segment net sales for our print segment decreased $41.4 million, or 6.6%, in 2012, as compared to 2011, primarily due to: (i) lower sales 
volumes due to the closure and consolidation of a print plant into our existing operations, customer product launches that occurred in 2011, but 
did not repeat in 2012, and continued declines in the circulation of journals and periodicals; and (ii) lower sales due to price pressures that continue 
to exist within the print industry, offset slightly by higher sales from the integration of Nesbitt into our operations, as Nesbitt was not included in 
our results for a full year in 2011.

Segment Operating Income
Segment operating income for our print segment decreased $38.9 million, or 118.4%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. This decrease was 

primarily due to: (i) an intangible asset impairment of $24.5 million in 2013 as a result of rebranding our print business lines; and (ii) lower gross 
margin of $24.9 million, which was primarily due to lower sales volumes and higher input costs from our commercial printing operations. These 
decreases were partially offset by lower restructuring and other charges of $13.8 million which was primarily due to the closure and consolidation 
of a print plant in the first quarter of 2012, and no similar events in 2013.

Segment operating income for our print segment decreased $10.9 million, or 24.9%, in 2012, as compared to 2011. This decrease was primarily 
due to: (i) higher restructuring and other charges of $9.2 million, primarily due to the closure and consolidation of a print plant into our existing 
operations; and (ii) lower gross margins of $6.8 million, primarily due to increased pension expense, lower byproduct recoveries and continued 
price pressures. These decreases were partially offset by lower selling, general and administrative expenses of $5.2 million, primarily due to lower 
commission expense as a result of lower sales.
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Label and Packaging

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Segment net sales  $ 498,150  $ 494,444  $ 510,781
Segment operating income  $ 32,644  $ 54,666  $ 57,768
Operating income margin   6.6%   11.1%   11.3%
Restructuring and other charges  $ 1,147  $ 2,014  $ 1,983
Impairment of intangible assets  $ 8,874  $ —  $ —

Segment Net Sales
Segment net sales for our label and packaging segment increased $3.7 million, or 0.7%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. Net sales from our 

label operations increased $5.7 million, primarily due to: (i) the acquisition of Express Label in the first quarter of 2013, as Express Label was not 
included in our 2012 results; and (ii) higher sales from our ability to pass along price increases within our specialty and custom products business to 
cover higher raw material input costs. These increases were offset in part by lower sales volumes from our short- run and long- run label businesses 
due to lower customer demand. Net sales from our packaging operations decreased $2.0 million primarily due to lower sales volumes, and a 
disruption due to a press fire.

Segment net sales for our label and packaging segment decreased $16.3 million, or 3.2%, in 2012, as compared to 2011. Net sales from our 
packaging operations declined $13.2 million, primarily due to lower sales volumes within the neutraceutical, pharmaceutical and food and beverage 
industries. Net sales from our label operations declined $3.1 million, primarily due to our decision to exit certain low margin business within our 
long- run label customer accounts, offset in part by increased sales from our custom label business, primarily due to initiatives to enhance our 
e-commerce platform for our customers.

Segment Operating Income
Segment operating income for our label and packaging segment decreased $22.0 million, or 40.3%, in 2013, as compared to 2012. This 

decrease was primarily due to: (i) an $8.9 million intangible asset impairment in our packaging operations as a result of rebranding our packaging 
business lines; (ii) lower gross margins of $8.5 million primarily due to higher input costs; and (iii) higher selling, general and administrative expenses 
of $5.4 million primarily driven by our e- commerce initiatives. These decreases were offset in part by the integration of Express Label into our 
existing label operations.

Segment operating income for our label and packaging segment decreased $3.1 million, or 5.4%, in 2012, as compared to 2011. This decrease 
was due to lower gross margins of $5.3 million, primarily due to lower sales volume and increased pension expense, offset in part by lower selling, 
general and administrative expenses of $2.1 million due to cost savings initiatives executed in 2011.

Corporate Expenses
Corporate expenses include the costs of running our corporate headquarters. Corporate expenses increased by $5.2 million, or 16.4%, in 

2013, as compared to 2012, primarily due to lower vendor related discounts of $2.9 million and higher restructuring and other charges. Corporate 
expenses were lower by $11.3 million, or 26.3%, in 2012, as compared to 2011, primarily due to lower compensation- related expenses.

Restructuring and Other Charges
Restructuring
We currently have two active cost savings, restructuring and integration plans: (i) the plan related to the implementation of cost savings 

initiatives focused on overhead cost eliminations including headcount reductions and the potential closure of certain manufacturing facilities, which 
we refer to as the 2013 Plan; and (ii) the plan related to the integration of certain assets of National into our existing envelope operations, which 
we refer to as the National Plan.

During 2013, we completed the integration of our acquisition of EPG with the closure and consolidation of an envelope facility. We also 
implemented additional cost savings actions in the first quarter of 2013, which is focused on overhead cost elimination, including targeted headcount 
reductions of approximately 400 employees to date and the potential closure of certain manufacturing facilities.

Also, upon the completion of the acquisition of certain assets of National, we developed and began implementing the National plan. Since 
the date of acquisition, activities related to the National Plan included the closure and consolidation of a warehouse into our existing envelope 
operations and the elimination of duplicative headcount. Additionally, we announced the closure and consolidation of two existing envelope plants 
into a National manufacturing facility to be completed in the first quarter of 2014. We expect the National Plan to be completed during our 2015 
fiscal year.
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We currently have certain residual cost savings, restructuring and integration plans, which we refer to as the Residual Plans. As a result of 
these cost savings actions, over the last eight years we have closed or consolidated a significant amount of manufacturing facilities and have had 
a significant number of headcount reductions. We do not anticipate any significant future expenses related to the Residual Plans, other than 
modifications to its current assumptions for lease terminations, multi- employer pension withdrawal liabilities and ongoing expenses related to 
maintaining restructured assets.

During 2013, as a result of our restructuring and integration activities, we incurred $13.1 million of restructuring and other charges, which 
included $6.5 million of employee separation costs, $1.3 million of non- cash charges on long- lived assets (net), equipment moving expenses of 
$1.5 million, lease termination expenses of $1.1 million, multi- employer pension withdrawal expenses of $0.5 million and building clean- up and 
other expenses of $2.3 million.

During 2012, as a result of our restructuring and integration activities, we incurred $27.1 million of restructuring and other charges, which 
included $7.6 million of employee separation costs, non- cash charges on long- lived assets (net) of $8.4 million, equipment moving expenses of 
$1.1 million, lease termination expenses of $1.2 million, multi- employer pension withdrawal expenses of $5.1 million and building clean- up and other 
expenses of $3.8 million.

During 2011, as a result of our restructuring and integration activities, we incurred $17.8 million of restructuring and other charges, which 
included $4.3 million of employee separation costs, non- cash charges on long- lived assets (net) of $3.0 million, equipment moving expenses of 
$2.5 million, lease termination expenses of $2.6 million, multi- employer pension withdrawal expenses of $1.4 million and building clean- up and 
other expenses of $3.9 million.

As of December 28, 2013, our total restructuring liability was $25.5 million, of which $4.6 million is included in other current liabilities and 
$20.9 million, which is expected to be paid through 2032, is included in other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. Our multi- employer 
pension withdrawal liabilities are $20.6 million of our remaining restructuring liabilities. We believe these liabilities represent our anticipated ultimate 
withdrawal liabilities; however, we are exposed to significant risks and uncertainties arising from our participation in these multi- employer pension 
plans. It is not possible to quantify the potential impact of our future actions or the future actions of other participating employers from the multi- 
employer pension plans for which we have exited. Our anticipated ultimate withdrawal liabilities may be significantly impacted in the future due to 
lower future contributions or increased withdrawals from other participating employers.

Goodwill and Intangible Asset Impairments
There were no goodwill impairments recorded in 2013 or 2012. In 2011, in connection with our Discontinued Operations, we allocated 

approximately $16.3 million of goodwill attributable to the label reporting unit to discontinued operations based on a relative fair value allocation. 
In the fourth quarter of 2011, we recorded non- cash goodwill impairment charges of $13.5 million. These charges were due to the carrying value 
of the assets, including allocated goodwill and intangible assets, of the Discontinued Operations being in excess of the fair value received from 
divesting these businesses.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we made the decision that certain trade names would be retired in 2014 as a result of rebranding our print 
and packaging business lines. Accordingly, based on our evaluation using a relief from royalty and other discounted cash flow methodologies, we 
concluded those trade name assets were impaired. An impairment charge of $33.4 million was recorded to reduce the carrying value of these assets 
to their estimated fair values. Those trade names have a remaining carrying value of $1.9 million as of the year ended 2013, which will be amortized 
over their remaining useful life of less than one year. There were no intangible asset impairments in the years ended 2012 or 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Continuing Operations: Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 

was $22.3 million in 2013, which was primarily due to: (i) net loss adjusted for non- cash items of $39.1 million; (ii) pension and postretirement 
plan contributions, net of expense, of $12.8 million; and (iii) a use of cash of $1.6 million from working capital. The use of working capital primarily 
related to the building of working capital associated with the acquisition of certain assets of National, substantially offset by our legacy working 
capital initiatives.

Cash provided by operating activities is generally sufficient to meet daily disbursement needs. On days when our cash receipts exceed 
disbursements, we reduce our revolving credit balance or place excess funds in conservative, short- term investments until there is an opportunity 
to pay down debt. On days when our cash disbursements exceed cash receipts, we use invested cash balances and/or our revolving credit to fund 
the difference. As a result, our daily revolving credit balance fluctuates depending on working capital needs. Regardless, at all times we believe we 
have sufficient liquidity available to us to fund our cash needs.
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Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations was $42.8 million in 2012, which was primarily due to our net loss adjusted 
for non- cash items of $74.8 million, and was partially offset by a use of cash of $16.4 million from working capital and pension and postretirement 
plan contributions, net of expense, of $12.3 million. The use of working capital primarily resulted from: (i) a use of cash from other working capital 
changes primarily due to the timing of interest payments on our outstanding debt and a payment of a litigation settlement; and (ii) a use of cash 
from accounts payable due to the timing of vendor payments. These uses of cash were offset in part by a source of cash from accounts receivable 
due to the timing of collections from and sales to our customers.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Discontinued Operations: Represents the net cash provided by operating activities of our 
Discontinued Operations.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities of Continuing Operations: Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations was 
$52.7 million in 2013, primarily resulting from: (i) $33.2 million of cash consideration paid for the acquisition of Express Label and certain assets 
of National; (ii) capital expenditures of $29.2 million; and (iii) a cash investment of $1.7 million. These uses of cash were offset in part by: (i) proceeds 
received from the sale of property, plant and equipment of $8.3 million; and (ii) proceeds received from an insurance claim of $3.0 million as a 
result of a fire that destroyed a press in our label and packaging segment.

Our debt agreements limit capital expenditures to $45.0 million in 2014 plus any proceeds received from the sale of property, plant and 
equipment and, if certain conditions are satisfied, any unused permitted amounts from 2013. We estimate that we will spend approximately 
$30.0 million on capital expenditures in 2014, before considering proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment. Our primary sources 
for our capital expenditures are cash generated from operations, proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, and financing capacity 
within our current debt arrangements. These sources of funding are consistent with prior years’ funding of our capital expenditures.

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations was $7.9 million in 2012, primarily resulting from: (i) capital expenditures of 
$20.6 million; and (ii) $0.6 million of cash consideration for an acquisition related to working capital settlement provisions. These uses of cash 
were offset in part by: (i) proceeds received from the sale of property, plant and equipment of $8.0 million; and (ii) proceeds received from the 
sale of an intangible asset of $5.7 million.

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities of Discontinued Operations: Represents the net cash provided by our Discontinued Operations 
related to investing activities. In 2013, the cash provided by discontinued investing activities of $45.2 million is comprised primarily of net cash 
proceeds of $44.8 million from the sale of Custom Envelope.

In 2012, the cash provided by discontinued operations related to investing activities primarily relates to net cash proceeds of approximately 
$39.9 million from the sale of our Documents Group and our wide- format papers business.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities of Continuing Operations: Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations was 
$17.6 million in 2013, primarily due to: (i) the repayment of our Term Loan B of $388.2 million; (ii) the repayment of our 7.875% Notes of 
$67.8 million; (iii) the repayment of our Unsecured Term Loan of $40.0 million; (iv) the repayment of our Term Loan Facility of $30.9 million; 
(v) $18.0 million in repayments of our Revolving Credit Facility; (vi) the payment of $15.6 million of financing related costs and expenses; and 
(vii) the repayment of other long- term debt of $7.3 million. These uses of cash were partially offset by: (i) proceeds from the issuance of the 
$360 million secured term loan facility; (ii) net borrowings of $121.4 million under our ABL Facility; (iii) proceeds from the issuance of our 
Unsecured Term Loan of $50.0 million; and (iv) proceeds from the issuance of an equipment loan of $20.0 million in connection with the acquisition 
of certain assets of National.

Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations was $91.8 million in 2012, primarily due to refinancing activities, including the 
issuance of $15 million and $65 million aggregate principal amounts of additional term loans in December 2012 and June 2012, respectively, which 
we refer to as the Term Loan Add- On, the repayment of $48.0 million of term loans primarily as a result of a required excess cash flow sweep and 
the open market repurchases and retirements of our 7.875% Notes, 10.5% Notes and 8.375% Notes, of approximately $98.6 million, $5.0 million 
and $2.0 million, respectively, for $96.4 million, $4.9 million and $1.6 million, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest. These refinancing 
activities also included: (i) the repayment of $118.4 million of our 7.875% Notes, $165.0 million of our 10.5% Notes, and $23.2 million of our 
8.375% Notes; (ii) the payment of $37.8 million of tender and consent fees and related transaction costs; (iii) the issuance of our $225.0 million 
11.5% senior notes due 2017, which we refer to as the 11.5% Notes, with an original issuance discount of $8.3 million; (iv) the issuance of our 
$86.3 million 7% senior exchangeable notes due 2017, which we refer to as the 7% Notes, and (v) repayment of other long term debt. These 
decreases were offset by: (i) proceeds from the issuance of our 11.5% Notes; (ii) proceeds from the issuance of our 7% Notes; and (iii) borrowings 
under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities of Discontinued Operations: Represents the net cash used in our Discontinued Operations related to 
financing activities. In 2012, the cash used in discontinued financing activities related to fees paid by us to amend our credit facilities of $1.7 million.
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Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments: The following table details our significant contractual obligations and other commitments 
as of the year ended (in thousands):

Payments Due
Long- Term 

Debt(1)
Operating 

Leases Other(2) Total
2014  $ 104,238  $ 28,017  $ 43,459  $ 175,714
2015   103,797   24,264   10,658   138,719
2016   100,308   18,860   8,667   127,835
2017   816,446   15,928   7,625   839,999
2018   411,104   11,987   5,136   428,227
Thereafter   —   20,337   36,181   56,518
Total  $ 1,535,893  $ 119,393  $ 111,726  $ 1,767,012
(1) Includes $339.2 million of estimated interest expense over the term of our long- term debt, with variable rate debt having an average interest rate of 

approximately 5.6%.
(2) Includes projected 2014 pension contributions of $15.7 million, anticipated benefit payments related to other postretirement benefit plans of 

$18.9 million, anticipated worker’s compensation paid losses of $11.9 million, restructuring- related liabilities of $51.6 million, including interest 
expense on lease terminations and multi- employer pension withdrawal liabilities, and purchase commitments for property, plant and equipment of 
$13.6 million. Excluded from the table are $4.5 million of income tax contingencies as we are unable to reasonably estimate the ultimate amount 
payable or timing of settlement.

Long- Term Debt: Our total outstanding long- term debt, including current maturities, was approximately $1.2 billion as of December 28, 
2013, an increase of $1.9 million from December 29, 2012. This increase was primarily due to the acquisitions of Express Label and certain assets of 
National, fees associated with debt refinance costs, and net capital expenditures, partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of Custom Envelope 
and cash flows from operations. As of December 28, 2013, approximately 61% of our debt outstanding was subject to fixed interest rates. As of 
February 25, 2014, we had approximately $34 million of borrowing availability under our ABL Facility. From time to time, we may refinance our 
debt obligations as business needs and market conditions warrant.

2013 Credit Facilities
On April 16, 2013, we completed the refinancing of our existing Term Loan B and Revolving Credit Facility, which we refer to together as 

our Refinanced Facility, by entering into: (i) a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement providing for a $360 million Term Loan Facility, 
with a syndicate of lenders arranged by Bank of America, N.A., Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc. and Barclays Bank PLC, with Bank of America, 
N.A. serving as administrative agent, syndication agent and documentation agent and (ii) a Credit Agreement providing for a $200 million ABL 
Facility, which together with the Term Loan Facility we refer to as the 2013 Credit Facilities, with a syndicate of lenders arranged by Bank of 
America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC, General Electric Capital Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, with Bank of America, 
N.A. serving as administrative agent, issuing bank and swingline lender. In connection with the 2013 Credit Facilities, we capitalized debt issuance 
costs of $7.2 million, of which $1.8 million relates to original issuance discount. Proceeds from the 2013 Credit Facilities together with available 
cash on hand were used to refinance the outstanding term loans and revolving loans, and accrued interest thereon, under the Refinanced Facility, 
and to pay certain fees and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions.

Borrowing rates under each of the 2013 Credit Facilities are selected at our option at the time of each borrowing and are generally based 
on London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or the prime rate publicly announced by Bank of America, N.A. from time to time, in each case 
plus a specified interest rate margin. With respect to the Term Loan Facility, LIBOR- based borrowings have an interest rate of not less than 1.25% 
per annum plus an applicable margin of 5.00% per annum, and prime rate borrowings have an interest rate of not less than 2.25% per annum 
plus an applicable margin of 4.00% per annum. With respect to the ABL Facility, LIBOR- based borrowings have an interest rate margin ranging 
from 2.00% to 2.50% per annum, and prime rate borrowings have an interest rate margin ranging from 1.00% to 1.50% per annum, in each case 
depending on average availability under the ABL Facility for the most recent fiscal quarter. Under the ABL Facility, we pay a commitment fee on 
unused revolving loan commitments of 0.375% per annum or 0.50% per annum, depending on average usage under the ABL Facility for the most 
recent fiscal quarter.

Under the Term Loan Facility, the term loan amortizes in quarterly installments equal to 1% per year, which commenced June 21, 2013, with 
the remaining principal balance due at maturity on February 13, 2017. Under the ABL Facility, all loans mature on February 13, 2017. Under each 
of the 2013 Credit Facilities, we may elect, at our sole discretion, to extend the maturity date upon the satisfaction of certain conditions related to 
the refinancing of outstanding indebtedness under our 11.5% Notes, and our 8.875% senior second lien notes due 2018, which we refer to as our 
8.875% Notes. If such conditions are satisfied, the maturity date of the Term Loan Facility may be extended to April 16, 2020 and the maturity 
date of the ABL Facility may be extended to April 16, 2018.
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The obligations under the 2013 Credit Facilities are each guaranteed by Cenveo and each existing and future direct and indirect North 
American subsidiary. The 2013 Credit Facilities are secured by a first priority perfected security interest in substantially all assets of Cenveo and 
our North American subsidiaries, including: (i) all capital stock of each present and future subsidiary (with certain exclusions of foreign subsidiaries); 
(ii) all present and future inter company debt; (iii) all intellectual property rights, including patents, trademarks and copyrights; and (iv) substantially 
all of the present and future other property and assets, including material real property.

The Term Loan Facility contains a maximum consolidated leverage ratio covenant, and the ABL Facility contains a minimum consolidated 
fixed charge coverage ratio covenant that applies if availability thereunder falls below a certain level. In addition, each of the 2013 Credit Facilities 
contains customary covenants that, among other things, place limits on our ability and/or our subsidiaries’ ability to incur debt, create liens, make 
investments and acquisitions, sell assets, pay dividends, prepay debt, merge with other entities, engage in transactions with affiliates, and make 
capital expenditures. The 2013 Credit Facilities also contain customary representations and warranties and events of default.

Any default under the 2013 Credit Facilities would prevent us from borrowing additional amounts and could cause the indebtedness 
outstanding under the 2013 Credit Facilities and, by reason of cross- acceleration or cross- default provisions, all of the aforementioned notes and 
any other indebtedness we may then have, to become immediately due and payable.

In connection with the 2013 Credit Facilities, we entered into a third supplemental indenture to the indenture dated as of February 5, 2010, 
among Cenveo, the guarantors named therein and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, pursuant to which the 8.875% Notes 
were issued. Also in connection with the 2013 Credit Facilities, we entered into an Amendment No. 1 to our existing Unsecured Term Loan. The 
Unsecured Term Loan was amended in order to, among other things, permit the refinancing of the Refinanced Facility.

On December 11, 2013, we entered into an Amendment No. 1 to the ABL Facility (“ABL Amendment No. 1”), pursuant to which the revolving 
credit commitments under the original agreement were increased by $30.0 million to $230.0 million. Capitalized fees and expenses associated 
with the ABL Amendment No. 1 were approximately $0.3 million. A portion of the additional $30.0 million borrowing capacity under the ABL 
Facility, together with cash on hand, were used to repay $28.2 million of our Term Loan Facility.

Unsecured Term Loan
On January 18, 2013, we entered into the Unsecured Term Loan. In connection with the Unsecured Term Loan, we capitalized debt issuance 

costs of $6.1 million, of which $2.5 million relates to original issuance discount. Proceeds from the Unsecured Term Loan together with borrowings 
on our $170.0 million revolving credit facility due 2014, which we refer to as our Revolving Credit Facility, were used to redeem, satisfy and 
discharge in full our 7.875% Notes, and to pay certain fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Unsecured Term Loan and the redemption, 
satisfaction and discharge of the 7.875% Notes. On January 22, 2013, U.S. Bank National Association, the trustee for the 7.875% Notes, officially 
canceled the 7.875% Notes.

The Unsecured Term Loan bears interest at a rate of 15% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears on the 25th day of each February, May, 
August and November prior to the maturity of the Unsecured Term Loan and on the maturity date of the Unsecured Term Loan. If we do not pay 
in full a quarterly excess cash flow mandatory prepayment pursuant to the terms of the Unsecured Term Loan, interest on the outstanding principal 
amount of the Unsecured Term Loan will instead accrue at 25% per annum until the first prepayment date thereafter when the full excess cash flow 
mandatory prepayment is made. In addition, for so long as the increased interest rate pursuant to the previous sentence is not applicable, if on any 
interest payment date the outstanding principal amount of the Unsecured Term Loan exceeds a specified threshold amount, which threshold amount 
equaled $31.3 million on November 25, 2013 and decreases by $6.3 million on each interest payment date thereafter, then on and after each 
such interest payment date an additional 10% per annum will accrue on such excess. The Unsecured Term Loan is guaranteed by each existing and 
future direct and indirect North American subsidiary of Cenveo on an unsecured basis. The Unsecured Term Loan contains customary covenants 
that, among other things, place limits on our ability and/or our subsidiaries’ ability to incur debt, create liens, make investments and acquisitions, 
sell assets, pay dividends, prepay debt, merge with other entities or sell all or substantially all their assets, engage in transactions with affiliates, and 
make capital expenditures. The Unsecured Term Loan also contains customary representations and warranties and events of default.

Equipment Loan
On September 16, 2013, in connection with the acquisition of certain assets of National, we entered into an equipment loan in the aggregate 

amount of $20.0 million, secured by the machinery and equipment of National. Interest on the equipment loan accrues at a rate of LIBOR plus 
11% per year and is payable monthly in arrears for a period of five years beginning on November 1, 2013. A 2% fee will apply if we elect to prepay the 
loan in full before the maturity date, which is permitted beginning October 1, 2015. The fee declines by 1% in each subsequent year. In connection 
with the equipment loan, we capitalized debt issuance costs of $0.7 million.
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Note Repurchases
We may from time to time seek to purchase our outstanding notes in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or other 

means. Such repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors.
In 2012, we purchased in the open market approximately $98.6 million of our 7.875% Notes and retired them for $96.4 million plus accrued 

and unpaid interest. In connection with the retirement, we recorded a gain on early extinguishment of debt of $1.9 million, which includes the write- 
off of $0.3 million of unamortized debt issuance costs. In 2012, we purchased in the open market approximately $5.0 million and $2.0 million of 
our 10.5% Notes and 8.375% Notes, respectively, and retired them for $4.9 million and $1.6 million, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Debt Compliance
As of the year ended 2013, we were in compliance with all debt agreement covenants. We anticipate being in compliance with all debt 

agreements throughout the 2014 fiscal year.

Subsequent Event
In February 2014, we entered into an amendment to adjust, among other things, our covenant requirements under our 2013 Credit Facilities. 

This amendment eliminated the maximum consolidated leverage ratio and replaced it with a maximum consolidated first lien leverage ratio, providing 
us additional financial flexibility.

Letters of Credit
As of December 28, 2013, we had outstanding letters of credit of approximately $22.3 million related to performance and payment 

guarantees. Based on our experience with these arrangements, we do not believe any obligations which may arise will be significant.

Credit Ratings
Our current credit ratings are as follows:

Rating Agency Corporate Rating Term Loan Facility 8.875% Notes 11.5% Notes Outlook Last Update
Moody’s Caa1 B2 Caa1 Caa3 Stable November 2013
Standard & Poor’s B- B+ CCC+ CCC Stable February 2014

In November 2013, Moody’s Investors Services, which we refer to as Moody’s, lowered our Corporate Rating and the ratings on our Term 
Loan Facility, 8.875% Notes and 11.5% Notes one level. In February 2014, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, which we refer to as Standard & 
Poor’s, revised its ratings outlook to stable. The detail of all current ratings has been provided in the table above.

The terms of our existing debt do not have any rating triggers that impact our funding availability or influence our daily operations, including 
planned capital expenditures. We do not believe that our current ratings will unduly influence our ability to raise additional capital if and/or when 
needed. Some of our constituents closely track rating agency actions and would note any raising or lowering of our credit ratings; however, we 
believe that along with reviewing our credit ratings, additional quantitative and qualitative analysis must be performed to accurately judge our 
financial condition.

We expect our internally generated cash flows and financing available under our ABL Facility will be sufficient to fund our working capital 
needs for the next twelve months; however, this cannot be assured.

Off- Balance Sheet Arrangements: We have no off- balance sheet arrangements other than those disclosed on the Contractual Obligations 
and Other Commitments table.

Critical Accounting Matters
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

This requires us to make estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. We evaluate these estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis based on historical experience, and various other factors which we believe 
are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from estimates.
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We believe the following represent our more critical estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial 
statements:

Allowance for Losses on Accounts Receivable: We maintain a valuation allowance based on the expected collectability of our accounts 
receivable, which requires a considerable amount of judgment in assessing the current credit worthiness of customers and related aging of past 
due balances. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the allowance provided for potentially uncollectible accounts receivable was $5.4 million 
and $4.7 million, respectively. Charges for bad debts recorded to the statement of operations for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 were 
$4.4 million, $2.0 million and $2.3 million, respectively. We cannot guarantee that our current credit losses will be consistent with those in the 
past. These estimates may prove to be inaccurate, in which case we may have overstated or understated the allowance for losses required for 
uncollectible accounts receivable.

Inventory Valuation: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on a first- in, first- out or average cost basis. 
Cost includes materials, labor and overhead related to the purchase and production of inventories. When there is a significant decrease in demand 
for our products and market price is below cost, we are required to reduce our inventory balances accordingly.

Provision for Impairment of Long- Lived Assets: We evaluate long- lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets other than goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying 
amounts of specific assets or group of assets may not be recoverable. When an evaluation is required, we estimate the future undiscounted cash 
flows associated with the specific asset or group of assets. If the cost of the asset or group of assets cannot be recovered by these undiscounted 
cash flows, we would assess the fair value of the asset or asset group and if necessary, an impairment charge would be recorded. Our estimates of 
future cash flows are based on our experience and internal business plans. Our internal business plans require judgments regarding future economic 
conditions, product demand and pricing. Although we believe our estimates are appropriate, significant differences in the actual performance of 
an asset or group of assets may materially affect our evaluation of the recoverability of the asset values currently recorded. Additional impairment 
charges may be necessary in future years.

Provision for Impairment of Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets: We evaluate the carrying value of our goodwill and indefinite 
lived intangible assets annually at the beginning of December and whenever events or circumstances make it more likely than not an impairment 
may have occurred. Accounting Standards Codification 350, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“ASC 350”), provides us with the option of 
performing a qualitative assessment, if elected, prior to calculating the fair value of an indefinite lived intangible asset or the fair value of a reporting 
unit for goodwill under a quantitative approach. If we determine, based on qualitative factors, the fair value of an indefinite lived intangible asset 
or the fair value of a reporting unit is more likely than not to be less than the respective carrying value, a quantitative impairment test would be 
required to be performed. Otherwise, further impairment testing would not be needed.

ASC 350 prescribes a two- step quantitative method for determining goodwill impairment. In the first step, we compare the estimated fair 
value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds the estimated fair value, 
step two is completed to determine the amount of the impairment loss. Step two requires the allocation of the estimated fair value of the reporting 
unit to the assets, including any unrecognized intangible assets, and liabilities in a hypothetical purchase price allocation. Any remaining unallocated 
fair value represents the implied fair value of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying value of goodwill to compute the goodwill 
impairment amount.

As part of our quantitative impairment analysis for each reporting unit, we estimate the fair value of each reporting unit, primarily using the 
income approach. The income approach requires management to estimate a number of factors for each reporting unit, including projected future 
operating results, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, discount rates, and the allocation of shared service or corporate items. The 
market approach was used as a test of reasonableness of the conclusions reached in the income approach. The market approach estimates fair value 
using comparable marketplace fair value data from within a comparable industry grouping.

The determination of the fair value of the reporting units and the allocation of that value to individual assets and liabilities within those 
reporting units requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions primarily include, but are not 
limited to: the selection of appropriate peer group companies; control premiums appropriate for acquisitions in the industries in which we compete; 
the discount rate; terminal growth rates; and forecasts of net sales, operating income, depreciation and amortization and capital expenditures. The 
allocation requires several analyses to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities including, among others, trade names, customer relationships, 
and property, plant and equipment. Although we believe our estimates of fair value are reasonable, actual financial results could differ from those 
estimates due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making such estimates. Changes in assumptions concerning future financial results or other 
underlying assumptions could have a significant impact on either the fair value of the reporting units, the amount of the goodwill impairment 
charge, or both. We also compared the sum of the estimated fair values of the reporting units to our total enterprise value as implied by the market 
value of our equity securities. This comparison indicated that, in total, our assumptions and estimates were reasonable. However, future declines in 
the overall market value of our equity securities may indicate the fair value of one or more reporting units has declined below their carrying value.
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In both 2013 and 2012, we elected to bypass the qualitative only assessment and perform quantitative assessments on both goodwill and 
indefinite lived intangible assets. We did not record any goodwill impairment charges in either period.

In 2011, we allocated approximately $16.3 million of goodwill to the Discontinued Operations based on a relative fair value allocation. As a 
result of our relative fair value calculation for these businesses, we recorded a non- cash goodwill impairment charge of $13.5 million in discontinued 
operations, net of taxes on the consolidated statement of operations.

One measure of the sensitivity of the amount of goodwill impairment charges to key assumptions is the amount by which each reporting unit 
had fair value in excess of its carrying amount or had carrying amount in excess of fair value for the first step of the goodwill impairment test. In 
2013, the envelope, label and packaging reporting units had fair value in excess of carrying value, with fair value exceeding carrying value by at least 
33%. The print reporting unit had fair value in excess of carrying value, with fair value exceeding carrying value by less than 15%. Goodwill allocated 
to the print reporting unit was $45.6 million as of the year ended 2013. Generally, changes in estimates of expected future cash flows would have 
a similar effect on the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. That is, a 1% change in estimated future cash flows would decrease the estimated 
fair value of the reporting unit by approximately 1%. Of the other key assumptions that impact the estimated fair values, most reporting units have 
the greatest sensitivity to changes in the estimated discount rate. In 2013, the discount rate for each reporting unit was between 10% and 11%. A 
100 basis point increase in our estimated discount rates would not have resulted in any reporting units failing step one.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we made the decision to retire certain trade names in 2014 as a result of rebranding our print and packaging 
business lines. Accordingly, based on our evaluation using a relief from royalty and other discounted cash flow methodologies, we concluded that 
those trade name assets were impaired. An impairment charge of $33.4 million was recorded to reduce their carrying value to their estimated fair 
value. Those trade names have a remaining carrying value of $1.9 million as of the year ended 2013, which will be amortized over their remaining 
useful life of less than one year. There were no intangible asset impairments in the years ended 2012 or 2011.

Determining whether an impairment of indefinite lived intangible assets has occurred requires an analysis of the fair value of each of the related 
trade names. However, if our estimates of the valuations of our trade names prove to be inaccurate, an impairment charge could be necessary in 
future periods.

Our quantitative impairment analysis for trade names utilizes a relief  from royalty method in which the hypothetical benefits of owning each 
respective trade name are valued by discounting hypothetical royalty revenue over projected revenues covered by the trade names. We utilized 
royalty rates of 1.5% to 3.0% for the use of the subject trade names based on comparable market rates, the profitability of the product employing 
the trade name, and qualitative factors, such as the strength of the name and years in usage. We utilized a discount rate of 12.0%, which was based 
on the weighted average cost of capital for the respective business plus a premium to account for the relative risks of the subject trade name.

In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calculations for all of our indefinite lived trade names, we applied hypothetical 5% and 10% 
decreases to the estimated fair value of our trade names. Such hypothetical decreases in fair value could be due to changes in discount rates and/
or assumed royalty rates. These hypothetical 5% and 10% decreases in estimated fair value would not have resulted in any additional impairments 
of any of our identifiable indefinite lived trade names.

Self- Insurance Reserves: We are self- insured for the majority of our workers’ compensation and health insurance costs, subject to specific 
retention levels. We rely on claims experience and the advice of consulting actuaries and administrators in determining an adequate liability for 
self- insurance claims. While we believe these estimates of our self- insurance liabilities are reasonable, significant differences in our experience or 
a significant change in any of our assumptions could materially affect the amount of workers’ compensation and healthcare expenses we record on 
an annual basis.

Our self- insurance workers’ compensation liability is estimated based on reserves for claims which are established by a third- party 
administrator. The estimate of these reserves is adjusted from time to time to reflect the estimated future development of the claims. Our liability 
for workers’ compensation claims is the estimated total cost of the claims on a fully- developed and discounted basis which considers anticipated 
payment patterns. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the undiscounted liability was $12.9 million and $13.5 million, respectively, and the 
discounted liability was $11.9 million and $12.1 million, respectively, using discount rates of 2% and 3%, respectively.

Our self- insured healthcare liability represents our estimate of claims which have been incurred, but not reported as of the years ended 2013 
and 2012. We rely on claims experience and the advice of consulting actuaries to determine an adequate liability for self- insured plans. This liability 
was $3.3 million and $3.8 million as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively, and was estimated based on an analysis of actuarial completion 
factors that estimated incurred but unreported liabilities derived from the historical claims experience. The estimate of our liability for employee 
healthcare represents between 30 and 35 days of unreported claims.

Revenue Recognition: We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, product delivery has occurred, pricing is 
fixed or determinable, and collection is reasonably assured, net of rebates earned by customers. Since a significant portion of our products are 
customer specific, it is common for our customers to inspect the quality of the product at our facilities prior to shipment. Products shipped are not 
subject to contractual right of return provisions.

-  3 2  -  C E N V E O  2 0 1 3  |  D E L I V E R I N G  V A L U E

ManageMent’s Discussion anD analysis of financial conDition anD Results of opeRations 
(continueD)

CVO_AR13_Financials_v5.indd   32 3/21/14   7:26 PM



Amounts billed for freight costs and sales tax are included in net sales, and the costs of delivering finished goods to customers are recorded 
as freight costs, and included in cost of sales.

Accounting for Income Taxes: We are required to estimate our income taxes in each jurisdiction in which we operate, which primarily 
includes the United States, Canada and India. This process involves estimating our actual current tax expense, together with assessing temporary 
differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and financial reporting purposes. The tax effects of these temporary differences 
are recorded as deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax assets generally represent items that can be used as a tax deduction 
or credit in our tax return in future years for which we have already recorded an expense in our consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax 
liabilities generally represent tax items that have been deducted for tax purposes, but have not yet been recorded as an expense in our consolidated 
financial statements. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, we had net deferred tax liabilities of $33.8 million and net deferred tax assets of 
$12.9 million, respectively, from our United States operations. The change in United States net deferred taxes is primarily due to the recording of 
a valuation allowance of $40.6 million in 2013. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, we had foreign net deferred tax liabilities of $1.5 million and 
$2.7 million, respectively.

We review the likelihood that we will realize the benefit of our deferred tax assets and therefore the need for valuation allowances on a quarterly 
basis, or more frequently if events indicate that a review is required. In determining the requirement for a valuation allowance, the historical and 
projected financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording the net deferred tax asset is considered, along with all other available 
positive and negative evidence. The factors considered in our determination of the probability of the realization of the deferred tax assets include, 
but are not limited to: recent historical financial results, historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the 
reversals of existing temporary differences, the duration of statutory carryforward periods and tax planning strategies. If, based upon the weight of 
available evidence, it is more likely than not the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded.

Concluding that a valuation allowance is not required is difficult when there is significant negative evidence which is objective and verifiable, 
such as cumulative losses in recent years. We utilize a rolling twelve quarters of pre- tax income or loss adjusted for significant permanent book to 
tax differences as a measure of our cumulative results in recent years. In the United States, our analysis indicates that we have cumulative three 
year historical losses on this basis. While there are significant impairment, restructuring and refinancing charges driving our cumulative three year 
loss, this is considered significant negative evidence which is objective and verifiable and therefore, difficult to overcome. However, the three year 
loss position is not solely determinative and accordingly, we consider all other available positive and negative evidence in our analysis. Based upon 
our analysis, which incorporated the excess capacity and pricing pressure we have experienced in certain of our product lines, along with the recent 
decline in net sales and profitability from our print segment during 2013, we believe it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets in the 
United States will not be fully realized in the future. Accordingly, we increased our valuation allowance related to those net deferred tax assets by 
$40.6 million to $97.1 million in 2013. Deferred tax assets related to certain state net operating losses and foreign tax credit carryforwards also did 
not reach the more likely than not realizability criteria and accordingly, were subject to a valuation allowance. During 2013, our valuation allowance 
related to these state net operating losses and foreign tax credit carryforwards was increased by $1.0 million to $13.7 million, primarily as a result of 
an increase in the valuation allowance against state net operating losses in the amount of $2.5 million offset by the expiration of foreign tax credit 
carryforwards in the amount of $1.5 million.

There is no corresponding income tax benefit recognized with respect to losses incurred and no corresponding income tax expense recognized 
with respect to earnings generated in jurisdictions with a valuation allowance. This causes variability in our effective tax rate. We intend to maintain 
the valuation allowances until it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be realized. If operating results improve on a sustained 
basis, or if certain tax planning strategies are implemented, our conclusions regarding the need for valuation allowances could change, resulting in 
the reversal of the valuation allowances in the future, which could have a significant impact on income tax expense in the period recognized and 
subsequent periods.

We recognize a tax position in our consolidated financial statements when it is more likely than not that the position would be sustained upon 
examination by tax authorities. This recognized tax position is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely 
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Although we believe that our estimates are reasonable, the final outcome of uncertain tax positions may 
be materially different from that which is reflected in our consolidated financial statements. We adjust such reserves upon changes in circumstances 
that would cause a change to the estimate of the ultimate liability, upon effective settlement or upon the expiration of the statute of limitations, in 
the period in which such event occurs. During 2013 and 2012, we did not reduce our liabilities for uncertain tax positions.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans: The valuation of our pension and other postretirement plans requires the use of assumptions 
and estimates to develop actuarial valuations of expenses, assets and liabilities. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions, which include 
discount rate, investment returns and mortality rates. We review our actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and make modifications to the 
assumptions based on current rates and trends when it is appropriate to do so. The effects of modifications are recognized immediately on our 
consolidated balance sheet, but are generally amortized into our consolidated statement of operations over future periods, with the deferred 
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amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss. We believe that the assumptions utilized in recording our obligations under our plans 
are reasonable based on our experience, market conditions and input from our actuaries and investment advisers. We select the discount rate to 
be used for purposes of computing annual service and interest costs based on the Citigroup Pension Liability Index as of our respective year end 
dates. The weighted average discount rate used to determine the benefit obligation as of the years ended 2013 and 2012 was 4.50% and 3.75%, 
respectively. A one percentage point decrease in the discount rate at year end 2013 would increase the pension and other postretirement plans’ 
projected benefit obligation by approximately $43.0 million. A one percentage point increase in the discount rate at the year ended 2013 would 
decrease the pension and other postretirement plans’ projected benefit obligation by approximately $35.6 million.

Our investment objective is to maximize the long- term return on the pension plan assets within prudent levels of risk. Investments are primarily 
diversified with a blend of equity securities, fixed income securities and alternative investments. Equity investments are diversified by including 
United States and non- United States stocks, growth stocks, value stocks and stocks of large and small companies. Fixed income securities are 
primarily United States governmental and corporate bonds, including mutual funds. Alternative investments are primarily private equity hedge 
funds and hedge fund- of-funds. We consult with our financial advisers on a regular basis regarding our investment objectives and asset performance.

New Accounting Pronouncements: We are required to adopt certain new accounting pronouncements. See Note 1 to our consolidated 
financial statements.

Commitments and Contingencies: Our business and operations are subject to a number of significant risks, most of which are summarized 
in Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are exposed to market risks such as changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates, which may adversely affect our results of 

operations and financial position.
As of December 28, 2013, we had variable rate debt outstanding of $466.9 million. Our Term Loan Facility is subject to a LIBOR floor of 

1.25%. As such, a change of 1% to current LIBOR rates would have a minimal impact to our interest expense.
Our changes in foreign currency exchange rates are managed through normal operating and financing activities. We have foreign operations, 

primarily in Canada and India, and thus are exposed to market risk for changes in foreign currency exchange rates. For the year ended 2013, a 
uniform 10% strengthening of the United States dollar relative to the local currency of our foreign operations would have resulted in a decrease in 
sales and operating income of approximately $7.3 million and less than $0.1 million, respectively.
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Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Cenveo, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cenveo, Inc. (a Colorado corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as 
of December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), changes 
in shareholders’ (deficit) equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 28, 2013. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cenveo, 
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 28, 2013 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 28, 2013, based on criteria established in the 1992 Internal Control—Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 26, 2014 expressed 
an unqualified opinion.

GRANT THORNTON LLP
New York, New York
February 26, 2014

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
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(in thousands, except par values) 2013 2012
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 11,329  $ 8,110
Accounts receivable, net   281,586   254,389
Inventories   161,565   127,235
Prepaid and other current assets   55,353   67,964
Assets of discontinued operations—current   132   11,265

Total current assets   509,965   468,963

Property, plant and equipment, net   304,907   279,078
Goodwill   186,436   187,415
Other intangible assets, net   168,749   205,199
Other assets, net   43,614   44,632
Assets of discontinued operations—long- term   33   15,268
Total assets  $ 1,213,704  $ 1,200,555

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long- term debt  $ 9,174  $ 11,748
Accounts payable   244,228   179,850
Accrued compensation and related liabilities   32,139   24,678
Other current liabilities   81,198   77,367
Liabilities of discontinued operations—current   2,013   6,591

Total current liabilities   368,752   300,234

Long- term debt   1,176,351   1,171,870
Other liabilities   165,581   191,885
Liabilities of discontinued operations—long- term   —   880
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ deficit:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 25 shares authorized, no shares issued   —   —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000 shares authorized, 66,265 and 63,762 shares  

issued and outstanding as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively   663   638
Paid- in capital   364,177   354,983
Retained deficit   (821,520)   (752,734)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (40,300)   (67,201)

Total shareholders’ deficit   (496,980)   (464,314)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit  $ 1,213,704  $ 1,200,555

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

-  3 6  -  C E N V E O  2 0 1 3  |  D E L I V E R I N G  V A L U E

CVO_AR13_Financials_v5.indd   36 3/19/14   2:31 PM



For The Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
Net sales  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293  $ 1,844,371
Cost of sales   1,485,931   1,417,147   1,498,202
Selling, general and administrative expenses   206,085   182,980   213,296
Amortization of intangible assets   9,962   9,881   9,899
Restructuring and other charges   13,100   27,100   17,812
Impairment of intangible assets   33,367   —   —

Operating income   29,363   101,185   105,162
Gain on bargain purchase   (17,262)   —   (11,720)
Interest expense, net   112,677   114,755   115,968
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt, net   11,324   12,487   (4,011)
Other (income) expense, net   (5,602)   (1,249)   9,074

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes   (71,774)   (24,808)   (4,149)
Income tax expense   13,753   55,720   4,545

Loss from continuing operations   (85,527)   (80,528)   (8,694)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes   16,741   641   129

Net loss   (68,786)   (79,887)   (8,565)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension liability adjustment, net of taxes   31,430   (7,986)   (37,130)
Reclassifications of losses related to interest rate swaps into earnings, net of taxes   —   —   1,793
Currency translation adjustment   (4,529)   665   (4,260)

Comprehensive loss  $ (41,885)  $ (87,208)  $ (48,162)
(Loss) income per share—basic:

Continuing operations  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)  $ (0.14)
Discontinued operations   0.25   0.01   —

Net loss  $ (1.07)  $ (1.26)  $ (0.14)
(Loss) income per share—diluted:

Continuing operations  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)  $ (0.14)
Discontinued operations   0.25   0.01   —

Net loss  $ (1.07)  $ (1.26)  $ (0.14)
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic   64,576   63,567   62,983
Diluted   64,576   63,567   62,983

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
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For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss  $ (68,786)  $ (79,887)  $ (8,565)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

(Gain) loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes   (14,933)   6,260   —
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes   (1,808)   (6,901)   (129)
Depreciation   50,534   50,777   52,649
Amortization of intangible assets   9,962   9,881   9,899
Impairment of goodwill related to discontinued operations   —   —   13,500
Non- cash interest expense, net   10,289   8,263   5,277
Deferred income taxes   (28,672)   (1,948)   6,861
Non- cash taxes   40,562   56,500   —
Gain on bargain purchase   (17,262)   —   (11,720)
(Gain) loss on sale of assets   (120)   (2,782)   376
Non- cash restructuring and other charges, net   2,622   11,226   3,853
Impairment of intangible assets   33,367   —   —
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt, net   11,324   12,487   (4,011)
Provisions for bad debts   4,392   2,024   2,284
Provisions for inventory obsolescence   6,523   3,588   3,416
Stock- based compensation provision   3,739   5,333   8,716
Gain on insurance claim   (2,670)   —   —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of acquired businesses:
Accounts receivable   (31,686)   26,594   (8,403)
Inventories   (40,622)   (617)   20,453
Accounts payable and accrued compensation and related liabilities   69,848   (13,291)   13,650
Other working capital changes   4,047   (29,050)   (14,948)
Other, net   (18,335)   (15,613)   (23,529)

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations   22,315   42,844   69,629
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations   5,878   9,221   10,693
Net cash provided by operating activities   28,193   52,065   80,322

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cost of business acquisitions, net of cash acquired   (33,166)   (644)   (59,719)
Capital expenditures   (29,235)   (20,563)   (15,572)
Purchase of investment   (1,650)   (350)   —
Proceeds from insurance claim   3,036   —   —
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   8,304   7,978   11,114
Proceeds from sale of intangible asset   —   5,700   —

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations   (52,711)   (7,879)   (64,177)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations   45,214   39,533   (635)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities   (7,497)   31,654   (64,812)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of 10.5% senior notes   —   (169,875)   —
Repayment of 7.875% senior subordinated notes   (67,848)   (214,831)   (8,952)
(Repayment) borrowing of Term Loan B due 2016   (388,205)   31,844   (23,800)
Repayment of 8.375% senior subordinated notes   —   (24,787)   (5,363)
Payment of financing related costs and expenses and debt issuance discounts   (15,570)   (37,836)   (2,675)
Repayments of other long- term debt   (7,365)   (4,846)   (6,403)
Purchase and retirement of common stock upon vesting of RSUs   (660)   (735)   (1,283)
Proceeds from issuance of 11.5% senior notes   —   225,000   —
Proceeds from issuance of 7% senior exchangeable notes   —   86,250   —
(Repayment) borrowings under Revolving Credit Facility, net   (18,000)   18,000   —
Proceeds from issuance of 15% Unsecured Term Loan due 2017   50,000   —   —
Repayment of 15% Unsecured Term Loan due 2017   (40,000)   —   —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   98   —   356
Repayment of Term Loan Facility due 2017   (30,900)   —   —
Proceeds from issuance of Term Loan Facility due 2017   360,000   —   —
Borrowings under ABL Facility due 2017   699,200   —   —
Repayments under ABL Facility due 2017   (577,800)   —   —
Proceeds from equipment loan   20,000   —   —
Repayments of equipment loan   (500)   —   —

Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations   (17,550)   (91,816)   (48,120)
Net cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations   —   (1,652)   —
Net cash used in financing activities   (17,550)   (93,468)   (48,120)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   73   106   614
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   3,219   (9,643)   (31,996)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   8,110   17,753   49,749
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 11,329  $ 8,110  $ 17,753
See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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(in thousands)
Common Stock

Paid- In  
Capital

Retained 
Deficit

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
(Loss) Income

Total 
Shareholders’ 

Equity  
(Deficit)

Shares Amount

Balance as of the year ended 2010   62,727  $ 627  $ 342,607  $ (664,282)  $ (20,283)  $ (341,331)
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss   (8,565)   (8,565)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax 
benefit of $23,217   (37,130)   (37,130)

Reclassification of losses related to interest 
rate swaps into earnings, net of tax 
expense of $863   1,793   1,793

Currency translation adjustment   (4,260)   (4,260)
Other comprehensive loss   (39,597)
 Total comprehensive loss   (48,162)

Exercise of stock options   533   6   350   356
Purchase and retirement of common stock  

upon vesting of RSUs   (1,283)   (1,283)
Amortization of stock based compensation   8,716   8,716
Balance as of the year ended 2011   63,260   633   350,390   (672,847)   (59,880)   (381,704)
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss   (79,887)   (79,887)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax 
benefit of $5,225   (7,986)   (7,986)

Currency translation adjustment   665   665
Other comprehensive loss   (7,321)
 Total comprehensive loss   (87,208)

Purchase and retirement of common stock  
upon vesting of RSUs   502   5   (740)   (735)

Amortization of stock based compensation   5,333   5,333
Balance as of the year ended 2012   63,762   638   354,983   (752,734)   (67,201)   (464,314)
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss   (68,786)   (68,786)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax 
expense of $20,105   31,430   31,430

Currency translation adjustment   (4,529)   (4,529)
Other comprehensive income   26,901
 Total comprehensive loss   (41,885)

Issuance of stock   2,083   21   6,021   6,042
Exercise of stock options   20     98   98
Purchase and retirement of common stock 

upon vesting of RSUs   400   4   (664)   (660)
Amortization of stock based compensation   3,739   3,739
Balance as of the year ended 2013   66,265  $ 663  $ 364,177  $ (821,520)  $ (40,300)  $ (496,980)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements include the results of Cenveo, Inc. and its subsidiaries and have been prepared 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). All intercompany transactions have 
been eliminated.

Cenveo, Inc. and its wholly  owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “Cenveo”) are engaged in envelope converting, commercial 
printing, and the manufacturing of label and specialty packaging products. The Company is headquartered in Stamford, Connecticut, is organized 
under Colorado law, and its common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CVO.” The Company operates a primarily 
domestic network of strategically located manufacturing facilities, serving a diverse base of over 100,000 customers. The Company’s operations 
are based in North America, Latin America and Asia.

The Company’s reporting periods for 2013, 2012 and 2011 in this report each consist of 52 week periods ending on the Saturday closest to 
the last day of the calendar month, and ended on December 28, 2013, December 29, 2012, and December 31, 2011, respectively. Such periods 
are referred to herein as: (i) “as of the year ended 2013,” “the year ended 2013” or “2013;” (ii) “as of the year ended 2012,” “the year ended 2012” 
or “2012;” and, (iii) “as of the year ended 2011,” “the year ended 2011” or “2011.” All references to years and year- ends herein relate to fiscal years 
rather than calendar years.

The Company acquired certain assets of National Envelope Corporation (“National”) during the third quarter of 2013 and all of the assets of 
Express Label Company (“Express Label”) during the first quarter of 2013. The Company acquired Nesbitt Graphics, Inc. (“Nesbitt”), in the third 
quarter of 2011 and assets of MeadWestvaco Corporation’s Envelope Product Group (“EPG”) in the first quarter of 2011. The Company’s results 
include the operating results of these acquisitions subsequent to their respective acquisition dates.

As a result of exploring opportunities to divest certain non- strategic or underperforming businesses within its manufacturing platform, the 
Company completed the sale of its Custom Envelope Group (“Custom Envelope”) during the third quarter of 2013. Additionally, during the second 
quarter of 2013, the Company decided to exit the San Francisco market and closed a manufacturing facility. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011, 
the financial results of the Company’s documents and forms business (“Documents Group”) as well as the Company’s wide- format papers business 
have been accounted for as discontinued operations. These businesses were sold in the first quarter of 2012. Collectively, the Company refers to 
these businesses as the “Discontinued Operations.” As a result, the Company’s historical consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations 
and comprehensive income (loss) (“statement of operations”) and statements of cash flows have been reclassified to reflect these discontinued 
operations separately from the Company’s continuing operations for all periods presented.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company completed a realignment of its reportable segments as a result of a change in management 
reporting and strategy. The reportable segments were realigned into three complementary reportable segments: the envelope segment, the print 
segment, and the label and packaging segment. Previously, the two reportable segments were print and envelope and label and packaging. Prior 
year disclosures have been updated to reflect current year presentation.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates and assumptions are used for, but not limited to, 
establishing the allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of inventory, purchase price allocation, depreciation and amortization lives, asset 
impairment evaluations, deferred tax assets and liabilities, self- insurance accruals, stock- based compensation and other contingencies. Actual 
results could differ from estimates.

Fair Value Measurements: Certain assets and liabilities of the Company are required to be recorded at fair value. Fair value is determined 
based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. 
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short- term debt and accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to 
their short- term nature. The Company also has other assets or liabilities that it records at fair value, such as its pension and other postretirement 
plan assets. The three- tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation methodologies, is as follows:

Level 1 —  Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.
Level 2 —  Valuations based on observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and 

liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs 
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 —  Valuations based on unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s own assumptions, consistent with reasonably available 
assumptions made by other market participants.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on deposit and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with institutions with high credit quality. However, at certain times, such cash 
and cash equivalents may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Accounts Receivable: Trade accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful accounts. Specific customer provisions are made 
when a review of significant outstanding amounts, customer creditworthiness and current economic trends indicate that collection is doubtful. 
In addition, provisions are made at differing amounts, based upon the balance and age of the receivable and the Company’s historical collection 
experience. Trade accounts are charged off against the allowance for doubtful accounts or expensed when it is probable the accounts will not be 
recovered. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, accounts receivable were reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts of $5.4 million and 
$4.7 million, respectively. Transactions affecting the allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year  $ 4,664  $ 5,584  $ 6,319
Charged to expense   4,392   2,024   2,284
Write- offs, recoveries and other   (3,647)   (2,944)   (3,019)
Balance at end of year  $ 5,409  $ 4,664  $ 5,584

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost primarily determined on a first- in, first- out or average cost basis. 
Cost includes materials, labor and overhead related to the purchase and production of inventories.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight- line method generally based on the estimated useful lives of 15 to 45 years for buildings and building 
improvements, 10 to 15 years for machinery and equipment and three to 10 years for furniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvements are amortized 
over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the improvements. When an asset is retired or otherwise disposed of, the related 
gross cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the statement of operations. 
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures that increase the capacity, efficiency or useful 
lives of existing assets are capitalized.

Computer Software: The Company develops and purchases software for internal use. Software development costs incurred during the 
application development stage are capitalized. Once the software has been installed, tested and is ready for use, additional costs incurred in 
connection with the software are expensed as incurred. Capitalized computer software costs are amortized over the estimated useful life of the 
software, generally between three and seven years. Net computer software costs included in property, plant and equipment were $10.4 million 
and $5.1 million as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs: Direct expenses such as legal, accounting and underwriting fees incurred to issue, extend or amend debt are included in 
other assets, net. Debt issuance costs were $22.8 million and $26.5 million as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively, net of accumulated 
amortization, and are amortized to interest expense over the term of the related debt. Interest expense includes the amortization of debt issuance 
costs of $9.4 million, $7.0 million and $4.4 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets of businesses 
acquired. Goodwill is not amortized. Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test and is reviewed annually as of the beginning of December to 
determine if there is an impairment or more frequently if an indication of possible impairment exists. Impairment testing for goodwill is performed 
at a reporting unit level, with all goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. The Company’s reporting units are the same as its four operating segments. 
An impairment loss generally would be recognized when the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s net assets exceeds the estimated fair value of 
the reporting unit. No impairment charges for goodwill were recorded in 2013 or 2012. In 2011, the Company allocated approximately $16.3 million 
of goodwill attributable to the label reporting unit to discontinued operations based on a relative fair value allocation. In the fourth quarter of 2011, 
non- cash goodwill impairment charges of $13.5 million were recorded. These charges were due to the carrying value of the assets, including allocated 
goodwill and intangible assets, being in excess of the fair value received from divesting these businesses.

Other intangible assets consist primarily of customer relationships and trademarks. Other intangible assets primarily arise from the purchase 
price allocations of businesses acquired. Intangible assets with determinable lives are amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful life 
assigned to these assets. Intangible assets that are expected to generate cash flows indefinitely are not amortized, but are evaluated for impairment 
similar to goodwill.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company made the decision that certain trade names would be retired in 2014 as a result of rebranding 
the Company’s print and packaging business lines. Accordingly, based on its evaluation using a relief from royalty and other discounted cash flow 
methodologies, the Company concluded those trade name assets were impaired. An impairment charge of $33.4 million was recorded to reduce 
their carrying value to their estimated fair value. Those trade names have a remaining carrying value of $1.9 million as of the year ended 2013, which 
will be amortized over their remaining useful life of less than one year. There were no intangible asset impairments in the years ended 2012 or 2011.
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Long- Lived Assets: Long- lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets with definite lives, are evaluated for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be fully recoverable. An impairment 
is assessed if the undiscounted expected future cash flows generated from an asset are less than its carrying amount. Impairment losses are 
recognized for the amount by which the carrying value of an asset exceeds its fair value (Level 2 and 3). Additionally, the estimated useful lives of 
all long- lived assets are periodically reviewed and revised, if necessary.

Self- Insurance: The Company is self- insured for the majority of its workers’ compensation costs and health insurance costs, subject to specific 
retention levels. The Company records its liability for workers’ compensation claims on a fully- developed basis. The Company’s liability for health 
insurance claims includes an estimate for claims incurred, but not reported. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the (i) undiscounted workers’ 
compensation liability was $12.9 million and $13.5 million, respectively, and the discounted liability was $11.9 million and $12.1 million, respectively, 
using discount rates of 2% and 3%, respectively, and the (ii) healthcare liability was $3.3 million and $3.8 million, respectively.

Pension and Postretirement Plans: The Company records expense relating to its pension and other postretirement plans based on actuarial 
calculations. The inputs for these estimates mainly include discount rates, anticipated mortality rates, assumed rates of return and compensation 
increases. The Company reviews its actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and modifies the assumptions based on current anticipated rates. The 
effect of modifications on the value of plan obligations and assets is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI”) and 
is recognized in the statement of operations over future periods.

Interest Rate Swaps: From time to time the Company enters into interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure of notional 
amounts of its floating rate debt. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the Company did not have any outstanding interest rate swap obligations. At 
inception of a hedge transaction, the Company formally documents the hedge relationship and the risk management objective for undertaking the 
hedge. In addition, the Company assesses, both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative in the hedging transaction 
has been highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item and whether the derivative is expected to continue to 
be highly effective. The impact of ineffectiveness, if any, is recognized in the statement of operations.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, product delivery has occurred, 
pricing is fixed or determinable, and collection is reasonably assured, net of rebates earned by customers. Since a significant portion of the 
Company’s products are customer specific, it is common for customers to inspect the quality of the product at the Company’s facility prior to its 
shipment. Products shipped are not subject to contractual right of return provisions.

Sales Tax: The Company records sales net of applicable sales tax.
Freight Costs: The costs of delivering finished goods to customers are recorded as freight costs and included in cost of sales. Freight costs 

that are either billed separately to the customer or included in the price of the product are included in net sales.
Advertising Costs: All advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $2.9 million, $2.8 million and $2.6 million for 2013, 

2012 and 2011, respectively.
Stock- Based Compensation: The Company uses the fair value method of accounting for stock- based compensation. The Company uses 

the Black- Scholes-Merton option- pricing model (“Black- Scholes”) to measure fair value of these stock option awards. The Black- Scholes model 
requires the Company to make significant judgments regarding the assumptions used within the model, the most significant of which are the stock 
price volatility assumption, the expected life of the option award, the risk- free rate of return and dividends during the expected term. The Company 
recognizes stock compensation expense for share- based awards expected to vest on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period of the 
award based on their grant date fair value.

Foreign Currency Translation: Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries operating outside the United States with a functional currency other than 
the United States dollar are translated at year  end exchange rates. The effects of translation are included in shareholders’ deficit. Income and 
expense items and gains and losses are translated at the average monthly rate. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recorded in other 
income, net.

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes reflect the future tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities for financial and income tax reporting and are measured by applying statutory tax rates in effect for the year during which the differences 
are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent it is more likely than not that the deferred tax 
assets will not be realized. Based upon analysis as of the year ended 2013, which incorporated excess capacity and pricing pressure the Company 
has experienced in certain product lines, along with the recent decline in net sales and profitability in the print segment during 2013, the Company 
concluded it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets in the United States would not be fully realized in the future. Accordingly, the 
Company increased its valuation allowance related to those net deferred tax assets by $40.6 million to $97.1 million in 2013.
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The Company recognizes a tax position in its consolidated financial statements when it is more likely than not that the position would be 
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. This recognized tax position is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 
fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Although the Company believes that its estimates are reasonable, the final outcome 
of uncertain tax positions may be materially different from that which is recognized in its consolidated financial statements. The Company adjusts 
such reserves upon changes in circumstances that would cause a change to the estimate of the ultimate liability, upon effective settlement or upon 
the expiration of the statute of limitations, in the period in which such event occurs.

New Accounting Pronouncements: Effective in the first quarter of 2013, the Company adopted an accounting pronouncement relating to the 
presentation of AOCI. This pronouncement does not change the current requirements; however, the Company is required to provide information 
about the amounts reclassified out of AOCI by component. In addition, the Company is required to present, either on the face of the statement 
where net income (loss) is presented or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified out of AOCI by the respective line items of net income (loss), 
but only if the amount is required under GAAP to be reclassified to net income (loss) in its entirety in the same reporting period. For other amounts 
that are not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income (loss), the Company is required to cross- reference to other 
disclosures required under GAAP that provide additional detail on these amounts. The Company has provided the required disclosures in Note 15. 
The adoption of this pronouncement did not have a material impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2013-11, “Presentation 
of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.” This ASU provides 
guidance on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward exists. The objective of this 
ASU is to eliminate diversity in practice related to this topic. The ASU states that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax 
benefit, should be presented in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, 
similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward except in certain situations. The update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after 
December 15, 2013. The Company does not anticipate the adoption of this amendment to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements.

2. Acquisitions
The Company accounts for business combinations under the provisions of the Business Combination Topic of the Financial Accounting 

Standards Board’s Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 805. Acquisitions are accounted for by the purchase method, and accordingly, 
the assets and liabilities of the acquired businesses have been recorded at their estimated fair value on the acquisition date with the excess of the 
purchase price over their estimated fair value recorded as goodwill. In the event the estimated fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired exceeds 
the purchase price paid, a bargain purchase gain is recorded in the statement of operations.

Acquisition- related costs are expensed as incurred. Acquisition- related costs, including integration costs, are included in selling, general and 
administrative expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations and were $8.7 million, $1.5 million and $6.0 million for the years 
ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

2013
National Envelope
On September 16, 2013, the Company acquired certain assets of National. National’s accounts receivable and inventory were purchased by 

unrelated third parties in conjunction with the Company’s acquisition. National manufactured and distributed envelope products for the wholesale, 
billing, financial, direct mail and office products markets and had approximately 1,600 employees. The Company believes the acquisition of certain 
assets of National will enhance the Company’s manufacturing capabilities and reduce capacity in the envelope industry. The preliminary purchase 
price was $34.1 million, of which $6.0 million was Cenveo common stock, and was preliminarily allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date, and was assigned to the Company’s envelope 
segment. The acquisition of certain assets of National resulted in a preliminary bargain purchase gain of approximately $17.3 million, exclusive of 
$6.8 million of tax expense, which was recognized in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations. Prior to the recognition of the bargain 
purchase gain, the Company reassessed the fair value of the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the 
acquisition. The Company believes it was able to acquire those assets of National for less than their fair value due to National’s bankruptcy prior to 
the Company’s acquisition. The acquired identifiable intangible asset relates to a leasehold interest with a fair value of $3.8 million, which is being 
amortized over the remaining lease term of 20 years, which includes renewal periods.

National’s results of operations and cash flows are included in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations and cash flows from 
September 16, 2013. As a result of the Company’s integration of certain assets of National into the Company’s existing envelope operations, it is 
impracticable to disclose the amounts of revenues and operating income of National since the acquisition date.
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Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation
The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the purchase price of National to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in 

the acquisition:

(in thousands)
As of 

September 16, 2013
Property, plant and equipment  $ 54,900
Other intangible assets   3,780

Total assets acquired   58,680
Accounts payable   967
Accrued compensation and related liabilities   1,210
Other current liabilities   1,351
Other liabilities   1,292
Note payable   2,536

Total liabilities assumed   7,356
Net assets acquired   51,324
Cost of the acquisition of certain assets of National   34,062
Gain on bargain purchase  $ 17,262

Property, plant and equipment values were estimated based on discussions with machinery and equipment brokers, internal expertise related 
to the equipment and current marketplace conditions. The value of the leasehold interest acquired was determined based on the present value of 
the difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the lease and management’s estimate of current market lease rates for the 
corresponding lease, measured over the remaining lease term and renewal periods.

The fair values of property, plant and equipment and the intangible asset acquired from National were determined to be Level 3 under the 
fair value hierarchy.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information
The following supplemental pro forma consolidated summary financial information of the Company for the years ended 2013 and 2012 herein 

have been prepared by adjusting the historical data as set forth in its statements of operations to give effect to the acquisition of certain assets of 
National as if it had been made as of January 1, 2012.

For The Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012
Net sales:

As reported  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293
Pro forma  $ 2,027,799  $ 2,154,956

Loss from continuing operations:
As reported  $ (85,527)  $ (80,528)
Pro forma  $ (114,127)  $ (125,724)

Loss per share from continuing operations—basic:
As reported  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)
Pro forma  $ (1.73)  $ (1.92)

Loss per share from continuing operations—diluted:
As reported  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)
Pro forma  $ (1.73)  $ (1.92)

The supplemental pro forma consolidated summary financial information is presented for comparative purposes only and does not purport to 
be indicative of the Company’s actual consolidated results of operations had the acquisition of certain assets of National been consummated as of 
the beginning of the period noted above, or of the Company’s expected future results of operations. The adjustments related to the supplemental 
pro forma consolidated summary financial information above include the removal of $7.5 million in acquisition- related expenses incurred during 
2013, as well as the removal of a bargain purchase gain of $17.3 million in 2013, and the related $6.8 million of tax expense.
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The Company has performed its assessment of the preliminary purchase price allocation by identifying and estimating the fair value of 
intangible and tangible assets, comprised of a leasehold interest and property, plant and equipment. Pro forma adjustments have been made to 
depreciation and amortization expense related to these estimated fair values, and to reflect the Company’s borrowing rate in the above supplemental 
pro forma consolidated summary financial information. The pro forma operating results do not include any anticipated synergies related to 
combining these operations.

Express Label
On December 31, 2012, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Express Label, which had annual net sales of 

approximately $5.4 million prior to the acquisition by the Company. The total purchase price was approximately $5.1 million, and was allocated to the 
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at their acquisition date. The Express 
Label acquisition resulted in $0.1 million of goodwill, all of which is deductible for income tax purposes, and was assigned to the Company’s label 
and packaging segment. The Company believes that the recognized goodwill related to Express Label is due to expected synergies and a reasonable 
market premium. The acquired identifiable intangible assets relate to: (i) customer relationships of $3.0 million, which are being amortized over 
their estimated useful life of 10 years; and (ii) a trade name of $0.3 million, which is being amortized over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Express Label’s results of operations and cash flows are included in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations and cash flows from 
December 31, 2012. Pro forma results for the year ended 2012, assuming the acquisition of Express Label had been made on January 1, 2012 are 
not presented in the table above since the effect would not be material.

2011
Nesbitt
On August 1, 2011, the Company acquired essentially all of the assets of Nesbitt, which had annual net sales of approximately $5.6 million 

prior to the acquisition by the Company. Nesbitt is a niche content management business that focuses on high end book content development 
and project management offerings and was acquired to further enhance the Company’s content management operations. The total purchase price 
was approximately $5.6 million, and was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their 
estimated fair values at their acquisition date. The changes from the Company’s original purchase price allocation primarily relate to changes in 
working capital settlements from the acquisition date. The Nesbitt acquisition resulted in $2.0 million of goodwill, all of which is deductible for 
income tax purposes, and was assigned to the Company’s print segment. The Company believes that the recognized goodwill related to Nesbitt is due 
to expected synergies and a reasonable market premium. The acquired identifiable intangible assets relate to customer relationships of $1.4 million, 
which are being amortized over their estimated useful life of 10 years.

Envelope Product Group
On February 1, 2011, the Company acquired the assets of EPG. EPG manufactures and distributes envelope products for the billing, financial, 

direct mail and office products markets and had approximately 900 employees, all of which were located in the United States. Prior to the 
acquisition, EPG had annual net sales of approximately $240.0 million. The Company believes EPG further strengthened its existing envelope 
operations and provided for manufacturing efficiencies given EPG’s unique asset base and geographic overlap of facilities that exists between EPG 
and the Company’s existing envelope operations. EPG was assigned to the Company’s envelope segment. The purchase price was approximately 
$55.2 million and was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair 
values at the acquisition date. The EPG acquisition resulted in a bargain purchase gain of approximately $11.7 million, which was recognized in the 
Company’s consolidated statement of operations. Prior to the recognition of the bargain purchase gain, the Company reassessed the fair value of 
the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition. The Company believes it was able to acquire EPG 
for less than the fair value of its net assets due to its operating results prior to the Company’s acquisition and given its parent company’s desire 
to exit a non- core business. The acquired identifiable intangible assets relate to: (i) a trade name of $1.0 million, which is being amortized over its 
estimated useful life of 10 years; and (ii) a patent of $0.5 million, which is being amortized over its estimated useful life of 15 years.

Both 2011 acquisitions were consolidated into Cenveo’s results of operations beginning on their respective acquisition dates.

3. Discontinued Operations
On September 28, 2013, the Company completed the sale of Custom Envelope. Net cash proceeds received in 2013 were approximately 

$44.8 million, which resulted in an after- tax gain of $14.9 million. In addition to the proceeds, $2.4 million of purchase price consideration has been 
held in escrow (“the holdback amount”) and will be paid subject to certain financial adjustments. As a result, the Company has not included the 
holdback amount in the calculation of the gain on sale of Custom Envelope as of the year ended 2013. The operating results of Custom Envelope 
are reported in discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for all periods presented herein.
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During the second quarter of 2013, the Company decided to exit the San Francisco market and closed a manufacturing facility within its 
print segment. The operating results of this manufacturing facility are reported in discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements for all periods presented herein.

On February 10, 2012, the Company completed the sale of Documents Group. Net cash proceeds were approximately $35.5 million. The 
original sale price of $40.0 million was subject to customary working capital settlement negotiations, which were completed during the third quarter 
of 2012, pursuant to the purchase and sale agreement. The operating results of the Documents Group are reported in discontinued operations in 
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for all periods presented herein.

On January 27, 2012, the Company completed the sale of its wide- format papers business, for cash proceeds of approximately $4.7 million. 
The operating results of the wide- format papers business are reported in discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated financial statements 
for all periods presented herein.

The following table shows the components of assets and liabilities that are classified as discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated 
balance sheets as of December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Accounts receivable, net  $ 9  $ 7,222
Inventories   —   3,534
Prepaid and other current assets   123   509
Assets of discontinued operations—current   132   11,265
Property, plant and equipment, net   33   3,522
Goodwill   —   4,000
Other intangible assets, net   —   7,705
Other assets, net   —   41
Assets of discontinued operations—long- term   33   15,268
Accounts payable   —   5,421
Accrued compensation and related liabilities   627   645
Other current liabilities   1,386   525
Liabilities of discontinued operations—current   2,013   6,591
Liabilities of discontinued operations—long- term   —   880
Net assets  $ (1,848)  $ 19,062

The following table summarizes certain statement of operations information for discontinued operations:

For The Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
Net sales  $ 34,891  $ 68,478  $ 164,427
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes(1) (2)   4,471   11,342   8,901
Income tax expense on discontinued operations   2,663   4,441   8,772
Gain (loss) on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax(3)   14,933   (6,260)   —
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes  $ 16,741  $ 641  $ 129
Income per share—basic  $ 0.25  $ 0.01  $ —
Income per share—diluted  $ 0.25  $ 0.01  $ —
(1) Income from discontinued operations for the year ended 2012 also includes the reduction of a liability of $1.8 million, net of tax expense of 

$1.2 million, due to the expiration of certain statutes of limitations related to a previous divestiture.
(2) Includes $13.5 million of non- cash goodwill impairment charges in 2011 related to the Documents Group and the Company’s wide- format 

papers business.
(3) The gain (loss) on the sale of discontinued operations is shown net of tax expense of $10.7 million for the year ended 2013 and a tax benefit  

of $2.6 million for the year ended 2012.
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4. Inventories
Inventories by major category are as follows:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Raw materials  $ 62,241  $ 49,001
Work in process   21,698   17,058
Finished goods   77,626   61,176

 $ 161,565  $ 127,235

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are as follows:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Land and land improvements  $ 14,507  $ 17,283
Buildings and building improvements   97,674   103,326
Machinery and equipment   635,638   579,570
Furniture and fixtures   11,049   11,170
Construction in progress   11,828   7,060

  770,696   718,409
Accumulated depreciation   (465,789)   (439,331)

 $ 304,907  $ 279,078

Sale Leaseback Transaction
During the first quarter of 2013, the Company sold one manufacturing facility related to its label and packaging segment, which had a net 

book value of $3.7 million for net proceeds of $6.3 million, and entered into a seven- year operating lease for the same facility. In connection with 
the sale, the Company recorded a deferred gain of $2.6 million, which will be amortized on a straight- line basis over the term of the lease as a 
reduction to rent expense in cost of sales in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations.

Proceeds From Long- Lived Assets
During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company sold one office facility, which related to its envelope segment for net proceeds of 

$0.5 million. During the second quarter of 2013, the Company sold one manufacturing facility, which related to its envelope segment, for net 
proceeds of $1.7 million.

During the first quarter of 2013, a press in the Company’s label and packaging segment was destroyed by a fire. The Company’s insurance 
policy provided coverage for business interruption and the replacement cost of the press. The insurance settlement was finalized during the second 
quarter of 2013 and the Company received cash proceeds of $4.4 million, resulting in a $2.7 million gain. The gain on the insurance settlement 
represents the difference between the replacement cost and carrying value of the press. The gain is recorded in other (income) expense, net in the 
Company’s consolidated statement of operations.

In 2012, the Company sold three manufacturing facilities, one of which related to its envelope segment and two of which related to its print 
segment, for net proceeds of $6.4 million.

In 2011, the Company sold four manufacturing facilities, one of which related to its label and packaging segment, two of which related to its 
print segment, and one of which related to its envelope segment, for net proceeds of $9.6 million and it also sold certain manufacturing assets for 
net proceeds of $1.5 million.
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6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill as of the years ended 2013 and 2012 by reportable segment are as follows:

(in thousands) Envelope Print
Label and 
Packaging Total

Balance as of the year ended 2011  $ 23,433  $ 45,814  $ 117,575  $ 186,822
Acquisitions, net   —   644   —   644
Foreign currency translation   —   (191)   140   (51)

Balance as of the year ended 2012   23,433   46,267   117,715   187,415
Acquisitions, net   —   —   92   92
Foreign currency translation   —   (691)   (380)   (1,071)

Balance as of the year ended 2013  $ 23,433  $ 45,576  $ 117,427  $ 186,436

The impairment test for goodwill uses a two- step approach. Step one compares the estimated fair value of a reporting unit with goodwill to 
its carrying value. If the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value, step two must be performed. Step two compares the carrying value of the 
reporting unit to the fair value of all of the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit (including any unrecognized intangibles) as if the reporting 
unit was acquired in a business combination. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of its goodwill, 
an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess. The Company’s valuation of all of its reporting units was performed using the 
income approach in which the Company utilized a discounted cash flow analysis to determine the present value of expected future cash flows of 
each reporting unit. The Company performed a market approach analysis in order to support the reasonableness of the fair value determined under 
the income approach.

The estimated fair value for each of the Company’s reporting units, as of the year ended 2013, exceeded the respective carrying values of 
each reporting unit. As a result, it was concluded that the goodwill assigned to each reporting unit, as of December 28, 2013, was not impaired. 
Additionally, there were no goodwill impairments recorded in the years ended 2012 and 2011.

Other intangible assets are as follows:

(in thousands)

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining  
Amortization  

Period (Years)

2013 2012

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Impairment 

Charges
Accumulated 
Amortization

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Impairment 

Charges
Accumulated 
Amortization

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Intangible assets with 
definite lives:
Customer 

relationships   9  $ 144,898  $ (27,234)  $ (53,682)  $ 63,982  $ 159,296  $ (27,234)  $ (62,055)  $ 70,007
Trademarks and 

trade names   20   77,754   (55,367)   (6,734)   15,653   20,701   —   (5,938)   14,763
Leasehold interest   19   3,780   —   (55)   3,725   —   —   —   —
Patents   10   3,528   —   (3,039)   489   3,528   —   (2,839)   689
Non- compete 

agreements   140   —   (140)   —   510   —   (510)   —
Subtotal   12   230,100   (82,601)   (63,650)   83,849   184,035   (27,234)   (71,342)   85,459

Intangible assets with 
indefinite lives:
Trademarks   84,900   —   —   84,900   141,740   (22,000)   —   119,740
Total  $ 315,000  $ (82,601)  $ (63,650)  $ 168,749  $ 325,775  $ (49,234)  $ (71,342)  $ 205,199
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Annual amortization expense of intangible assets for the next five years is estimated to be as follows:

(in thousands)

Annual 
Estimated 

Expense

2014 $11,855
2015 9,707
2016 7,857
2017 7,265
2018 7,143

Sale of Intangible Asset
In 2012, the Company received proceeds of $5.7 million related to the buyout of a royalty agreement by a third party and certain other 

intellectual property. Prior to its sale, the royalty agreement was accounted for as an intangible asset in the Company’s consolidated balance 
sheet. As a result of these transactions, the Company recorded a gain of $2.8 million in other (income) expense, net in its consolidated statement 
of operations.

Asset Impairments
During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company made the decision to retire certain trade names during 2014 as a result of rebranding the 

Company’s print and packaging business lines. Accordingly, based on its evaluation using a relief from royalty and other discounted cash flow 
methodologies, the Company concluded that those trade name assets were impaired. An impairment charge of $33.4 million was recorded to 
reduce their carrying value to their estimated fair value. Those trade names have a remaining carrying value of $1.9 million as of the year ended 
2013, which will be amortized over their remaining useful life of less than one year. There were no intangible asset impairments in the years 
ended  2012 or 2011.

7. Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities are as follows:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Accrued interest expense  $ 20,040  $ 20,671
Accrued customer rebates   16,901   16,187
Restructuring liabilities   4,555   7,474
Other accrued liabilities   39,702   33,035

 $ 81,198  $ 77,367
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8. Long- Term Debt
Long- term debt is as follows:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
ABL Facility, due 2017  $ 121,400  $ —
Term Loan Facility, due 2017 ($329.1 million outstanding principal amount as of the year ended 2013)   326,013   —
15% Unsecured Term Loan, due 2017 ($10.0 million outstanding principal amount as of the year ended 2013)   9,500   —
Revolving Credit Facility, due 2014   —   18,000
Term Loan B, due 2016 ($388.2 million outstanding principal amount as of the year ended 2012)   —   385,547
11.5% senior notes, due 2017 ($225.0 million outstanding principal amount as of the years ended 2013 and 2012)   219,068   217,675
7% senior exchangeable notes, due 2017   86,250   86,250
8.875% senior second lien notes, due 2018 ($400.0 million outstanding principal amount as of  

the years ended 2013 and 2012)   398,326   398,001
7.875% senior subordinated notes, due 2013   —   67,848
Other debt including capital leases   24,968   10,297

  1,185,525   1,183,618
Less current maturities   (9,174)   (11,748)
Long- term debt  $ 1,176,351  $ 1,171,870

The estimated fair value of the Company’s long- term debt was approximately $1.2 billion for the years ended 2013 and 2012. The fair value 
was determined by the Company to be Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy and was based upon review of observable pricing in secondary markets 
for each debt instrument. Interest expense in 2013 reflected average outstanding debt of approximately $1.2 billion and a weighted average interest 
rate of 8.2%, compared to the average outstanding debt of approximately $1.3 billion and a weighted average interest rate of 8.2% in 2012. Cash 
interest payments on long- term debt were $103.0 million, $110.7 million and $111.0 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

2013 Credit Facilities
On April 16, 2013, the Company completed the refinancing of its $170 million revolving credit facility due 2014 (the “Revolving Credit 

Facility”) and its existing term loan B due 2016 (the “Term Loan B,” and collectively with the Revolving Credit Facility, the “Refinanced Facility”) 
by entering into: (i) a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement providing for a $360 million secured term loan facility (the “Term 
Loan Facility”), with a syndicate of lenders arranged by Bank of America, N.A., Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc. and Barclays Bank PLC, with 
Bank of America, N.A. serving as administrative agent, syndication agent and documentation agent; and (ii) a Credit Agreement providing for 
a $200 million asset- based revolving credit facility, (the “ABL Facility”; and together with the Term Loan Facility, the “2013 Credit Facilities”), 
with a syndicate of lenders arranged by Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC, General Electric Capital Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, 
National Association, with Bank of America, N.A. serving as administrative agent, issuing bank and swingline lender. In connection with the 2013 
Credit Facilities, the Company capitalized debt issuance costs of $7.2 million, of which $1.8 million relates to original issuance discount. Proceeds 
from the 2013 Credit Facilities together with available cash on hand were used to refinance the outstanding term loans and revolving loans, and 
accrued interest thereon, under the Refinanced Facility, and to pay certain fees and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions.

Borrowing rates under each of the 2013 Credit Facilities are selected at the Company’s option at the time of each borrowing and are generally 
based on London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or the prime rate publicly announced by Bank of America, N.A. from time to time, in each 
case plus a specified interest rate margin. With respect to the Term Loan Facility, LIBOR- based borrowings have an interest rate of not less than 
1.25% per annum plus an applicable margin of 5.00% per annum, and prime rate borrowings have an interest rate of not less than 2.25% per 
annum plus an applicable margin of 4.00% per annum. With respect to the ABL Facility, LIBOR- based borrowings have an interest rate margin 
ranging from 2.00% to 2.50% per annum, and prime rate borrowings have an interest rate margin ranging from 1.00% to 1.50% per annum, in 
each case depending on average availability under the ABL Facility for the most recent fiscal quarter. Under the ABL Facility, the Company pays 
a commitment fee on unused revolving loan commitments of 0.375% per annum or 0.50% per annum, depending on average usage under the 
ABL Facility for the most recent fiscal quarter.

Under the Term Loan Facility, the term loan amortizes in quarterly installments equal to 1.00% per year, commencing June 21, 2013, with the 
remaining principal balance due at maturity on February 13, 2017. Under the ABL Facility, all loans mature on February 13, 2017. Under each of the 
2013 Credit Facilities, the Company may elect, in its sole discretion, to extend the maturity date upon the satisfaction of certain conditions related 
to the refinancing of the Company’s outstanding indebtedness under its 11.5% senior notes due 2017 (the “11.5% Notes”) and its 8.875% senior 
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second lien notes due 2018 (the “8.875% Notes”). If such conditions are satisfied, the maturity date of the Term Loan Facility may be extended 
to April 16, 2020 and the maturity date of the ABL Facility may be extended to April 16, 2018.

On December 11, 2013, the Company entered into an Amendment No. 1 to the ABL Facility (“ABL Amendment No. 1”), pursuant to which 
the revolving commitments under the original agreement were increased by $30.0 million. Capitalized fees and expenses associated with the ABL 
Amendment No. 1 were approximately $0.3 million. A portion of the additional $30.0 million borrowing capacity under the ABL Facility, together 
with cash on hand, were used to repay $28.2 million of its Term Loan Facility.

The obligations under the 2013 Credit Facilities are each guaranteed by the Company and each existing and future direct and indirect 
North American subsidiary. The 2013 Credit Facilities are secured by a first priority perfected security interest in substantially all assets of the 
Company and its North American subsidiaries, including: (i) all capital stock of each present and future subsidiary (with certain exclusions of foreign 
subsidiaries); (ii) all present and future intercompany debt; (iii) all intellectual property rights, including patents, trademarks and copyrights; and 
(iv) substantially all of the present and future other property and assets, including material real property.

In connection with the 2013 Credit Facilities, the Company entered into a third supplemental indenture to the indenture dated as of 
February 5, 2010, among the Company, the guarantors named therein and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, pursuant to which 
the Company’s 8.875% Notes were issued.

Also in connection with the 2013 Credit Facilities, the Company entered into an Amendment No. 1 to its existing Unsecured Term Loan 
(as defined below). The Unsecured Term Loan was amended in order to, among other things, permit the refinancing of the Refinanced Facility.

Unsecured Credit Facilities
On January 18, 2013, the Company entered into an unsecured credit agreement with Macquarie US Trading LLC, as administrative agent, 

and the lenders named therein, which provided for an unsecured $50.0 million aggregate principal amount term loan due March 31, 2017 (the 
“Unsecured Term Loan”). In connection with the Unsecured Term Loan, the Company capitalized debt issuance costs of $6.1 million, of which 
$2.5 million relates to original issuance discount. In connection with the Unsecured Term Loan, all of the Company’s North American subsidiaries 
as guarantors, entered into a guaranty agreement, dated as of January 18, 2013 (the “Guaranty”), in favor of the administrative agent. Proceeds 
from the Unsecured Term Loan together with borrowings on its $170 million Revolving Credit Facility were used to redeem, satisfy and discharge 
in full the Company’s 7.875% senior subordinated notes due 2013, (“7.875% Notes”), and to pay certain fees and expenses incurred in connection 
with the Unsecured Term Loan and the redemption, satisfaction and discharge of the 7.875% Notes. On January 22, 2013, U.S. Bank National 
Association, the trustee for the 7.875% Notes, officially canceled the 7.875% Notes.

The Unsecured Term Loan bears interest at a rate of 15% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears on the 25th day of each February, May, 
August and November prior to the maturity of the Unsecured Term Loan and on the maturity date of the Unsecured Term Loan. If the Company 
does not pay in full a quarterly excess cash flow mandatory prepayment pursuant to the terms of the Unsecured Term Loan, interest on the 
outstanding principal amount of the Unsecured Term Loan will instead accrue at 25% per annum until the first prepayment date thereafter when the 
full excess cash flow mandatory prepayment is made by the Company. In addition, for so long as the increased interest rate pursuant to the previous 
sentence is not applicable, if on any interest payment date the outstanding principal amount of the Unsecured Term Loan exceeds a specified 
threshold amount, which threshold amount equaled $31.3 million on November 25, 2013 and decreases by $6.3 million on each interest payment 
date thereafter, then on and after each such interest payment date an additional 10% per annum will accrue on such excess. The Unsecured Term 
Loan is guaranteed by the Company and each existing and future direct and indirect North American subsidiary of Cenveo on an unsecured basis 
pursuant to the Guaranty. The Unsecured Term Loan contains customary covenants that, among other things, place limits on the ability of Cenveo, 
the Company, and/or their respective subsidiaries to incur debt, create liens, make investments and acquisitions, sell assets, pay dividends, prepay 
debt, merge with other entities or sell all or substantially all their assets, engage in transactions with affiliates, and make capital expenditures. The 
Unsecured Term Loan also contains customary representations and warranties and events of default.

Other Debt
Other debt as of the year ended 2013 primarily consisted of equipment loans. On September 16, 2013, in connection with the acquisition 

of certain assets of National, the Company entered into an equipment loan in the aggregate amount of $20.0 million, secured by the machinery 
and equipment of National. Interest on the equipment loan accrues at a rate of the LIBOR plus 11% per year and is payable monthly in arrears for 
a period of five years beginning on November 1, 2013. A 2% fee will apply if the Company elects to prepay the loan in full before the maturity 
date, which is permitted beginning October 1, 2015. The fee declines by 1% in each subsequent year. In connection with the equipment loan, the 
Company capitalized debt issuance costs of $0.7 million.
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2010 Credit Facilities
On December 14, 2012, the Company issued $15 million aggregate principal amount of additional term loans (the “$15 million Term Loan 

Add- On,” and together with the $65 million Term Loan Add- On, as described below, the “Term Loan Add- On”) under its senior secured credit 
agreement, which includes the $170 million Revolving Credit Facility, and the $380 million Term Loan B (collectively with the Term Loan Add- On 
and Revolving Credit Facility, the “2010 Credit Facilities”). The $15 million Term Loan Add- On was issued at par. Concurrently with the $15 million 
Term Loan Add- On, the Company amended the 2010 Credit Facilities (the “December 2012 Amendment”) to allow the Company to incur up to 
$50 million of indebtedness under a new unsecured term loan to be prepaid on substantially similar terms as the Company’s 7.875% Notes, subject 
to maintaining certain liquidity thresholds and other customary conditions. The Company capitalized debt issuance costs of $2.7 million, which is 
amortized over the remaining life of the 2010 Credit Facilities. Consenting lenders received $2.6 million, which is capitalized and is amortized over 
the remaining life of the 2010 Credit Facilities.

On June 8, 2012, the Company issued the $65 million aggregate principal amount of additional term loans (the “$65 million Term Loan Add- 
On”) under its 2010 Credit Facilities. The $65 million Term Loan Add- On was issued at a discount of approximately $0.7 million. Concurrently with 
the $65 million Term Loan Add- On, the Company amended the 2010 Credit Facilities (the “Add- On Amendment”) to allow for the repurchase of 
up to $135 million of its 7.875% Notes, subject to maintaining certain liquidity thresholds and other customary conditions. The Company capitalized 
debt issuance costs of $1.1 million, which is amortized over the remaining life of the 2010 Credit Facilities. Consenting lenders received $2.0 million 
for the Add- On Amendment, of which $1.8 million was capitalized and is amortized over the remaining life of the 2010 Credit Facilities.

On February 3, 2012, the Company amended the 2010 Credit Facilities (the “2012 Amendment”) to increase its restricted dispositions 
basket in connection with the sale of the Documents Group. The 2012 Amendment required that 25% of the net proceeds of such sale be used 
to repay the Term Loan B and requires that the remaining amount be used to reinvest in the business or refinance certain existing debt. On 
February 14, 2012, the Company repaid $9.5 million of the Term Loan B in connection with this provision. The 2012 Amendment required the 
Company to prepay unsecured debt, second lien debt and/or the loans under the 2010 Credit Facilities within 360 days after the effective date of 
the 2012 Amendment in an amount equal to 75% of the net proceeds. In connection with the 2012 Amendment, the Company paid $1.7 million 
to consenting lenders and related fees, which are included in discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations.

Effective March 5, 2012, the Company increased its borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility to $170 million from $150 million 
as a result of receiving an additional commitment, as permitted under the 2010 Credit Facilities. In connection with this increase, the Company 
capitalized debt issuance costs of $1.0 million, which is amortized over the life of the Revolving Credit Facility. On March 9, 2012, the Company 
repaid $34.7 million of its Term Loan B as part of its required excess cash flow pre- payment.

11.5% Senior Notes
On March 28, 2012, the Company issued $225 million aggregate principal amount of 11.5% Notes that were sold with registration rights to 

qualified institutional buyers in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, and to certain non- U.S. persons in accordance with 
Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933. The 11.5% Notes were issued at a discount of approximately $8.3 million, of which $7.3 million 
remains unamortized as of the year ended 2013. The 11.5% Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture (the “11.5% Indenture”) among the Company, 
certain subsidiary guarantors and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. The Company will pay interest on the 11.5% Notes, semi- annually, 
in cash in arrears, on May 15 and November 15 of each year commencing May 15, 2012. The 11.5% Notes have no required principal payments 
prior to their maturity on May 15, 2017. The 11.5% Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Company and substantially all of its 
existing and future North American subsidiaries. As such, the 11.5% Notes rank pari passu with all of the Company’s existing and future senior 
debt and senior to any of the Company’s subordinated debt. The Company may redeem the 11.5% Notes, in whole or in part, on or after May 15, 
2015, at redemption prices ranging from 100% to 105.75%, plus accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, at any time prior to May 15, 2015, the 
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes originally issued with the net cash proceeds of certain public 
equity offerings, at a redemption price of 111.5% plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Company may also redeem some or all of the 11.5% Notes 
before May 15, 2015 at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date, plus 
a “make whole” premium. Each holder of the 11.5% Notes has the right to require the Company to repurchase such holder’s notes at a purchase 
price of 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, upon the occurrence of certain events specified in the 
indenture that constitute a change of control. The 11.5% Indenture contains a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject 
to certain exceptions, the Company’s ability and the ability of the Company’s subsidiaries to incur or guarantee additional indebtedness, make 
restricted payments (including paying dividends on, redeeming or repurchasing the Company’s capital stock), permit restricted subsidiaries to pay 
dividends or make other distributions or payments, dispose of assets, make investments, grant liens on assets, merge or consolidate or transfer 
certain assets, and enter into transactions with affiliates. The 11.5% Indenture also contains certain customary affirmative covenants. In order to 
fulfill its registration rights obligations, on May 10, 2012, the Company launched a registered exchange offer (the “Exchange Offer”) to exchange 
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any and all of its unregistered 11.5% Notes for publicly tradable notes having substantially identical terms, except for the elimination of some transfer 
restrictions, registration rights and additional interest payments relating to the outstanding notes. The Exchange Offer expired on June 18, 2012.

7% Senior Exchangeable Notes
Concurrently with the issuance of the 11.5% Notes on March 28, 2012, the Company issued $86.3 million aggregate principal amount of 

senior exchangeable notes due 2017 (the “7% Notes”) that were sold to qualified institutional buyers in accordance with Rule 144A under the 
Securities Act of 1933. The 7% Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture (the “7% Indenture”) among the Company, certain subsidiary guarantors 
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. The Company will pay interest on the 7% Notes semi- annually, in cash in arrears, on May 15 and 
November 15 of each year, commencing November 15, 2012. The 7% Notes have no required principal payments prior to their maturity on May 15, 
2017. The 7% Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Company and substantially all of its existing and future North American 
subsidiaries. As such, the 7% Notes rank pari passu with all of the Company’s existing and future senior debt and senior to any of the Company’s 
subordinated debt. The Company may not redeem the notes at its option. Upon a fundamental change, as defined in the 7% Indenture, each 
holder of 7% Notes may require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of such holder’s notes for cash at a repurchase price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount of the notes to be repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the fundamental change repurchase 
date, as defined in the 7% Indenture. The 7% Indenture does not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions, among other things, on the 
payment of dividends, the incurrence of other indebtedness, or the issuance or repurchase of securities by the Company. The 7% Indenture does 
not contain any covenants or other provisions to protect holders of the notes in the event of a highly leveraged transaction or a change of control, 
except to the extent described in the 7% Indenture.

The 7% Notes are exchangeable at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the maturity date for 
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exchange rate of 241.5167 shares per $1,000 principal amount of 7% Notes, which is equal to an 
exchange price of approximately $4.14 per share, subject to adjustment under certain specified circumstances. This represents a premium of 22.5% 
above the last reported sale price of Cenveo’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on Thursday, March 22, 2012, which was $3.38 per 
share. If a holder elects to exchange notes in connection with a make- whole fundamental change, as described in the 7% Indenture, such holder 
may also be entitled to receive a make- whole premium upon exchange in certain circumstances.

Net proceeds of the 11.5% Notes and 7% Notes together with borrowings under the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility were used to fund 
the cash tender offers for any and all of the Company’s 8.375% senior subordinated notes, due 2014 (the “8.375% Notes”) and the 10.5% senior 
notes due 2016 (the “10.5% Notes”), plus $45 million aggregate principal amount of the Company’s 7.875% Notes and to repurchase an additional 
$73 million of 7.875% Notes through open market, negotiated purchases to refinance such indebtedness, and to pay related fees and expenses. 
In connection with the issuance of the 11.5% Notes and the 7% Notes, the Company capitalized debt issuance costs of $6 million and $3 million, 
respectively, all of which will be amortized over the life of the 11.5% Notes and the 7% Notes.

8.875% Notes
In 2010, the Company issued $400 million of 8.875% Notes that were sold with registration rights to qualified institutional buyers in 

accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, and to certain non- United States persons in accordance with Regulation S under 
the Securities Act of 1933. The 8.875% Notes were issued at a discount of approximately $2.8 million, of which approximately $1.7 million and 
$2.0 million remained unamortized as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively. Net proceeds after fees and expenses were used to pay 
down $300.0 million of the Company’s outstanding senior secured term loans and $88.0 million outstanding under the Company’s then existing 
senior secured revolving credit facility.

The 8.875% Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture among Cenveo Corporation, certain subsidiary guarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, 
National Association, as trustee, and an Intercreditor Agreement among Cenveo Corporation, certain subsidiary guarantors, Bank of America, 
N.A., as first lien agent and control agent, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as second lien collateral agent. The 8.875% Notes pay 
interest semi- annually on February 1 and August 1, commencing August 1, 2010. The 8.875% Notes have no required principal payments prior to 
their maturity on February 1, 2018. The 8.875% Notes are guaranteed on a senior secured basis by Cenveo, Inc. and substantially all of its domestic 
subsidiaries with a second priority lien on substantially all of the assets that secure the 2010 Credit Facilities, and on a senior unsecured basis by 
substantially all of the Canadian subsidiaries. As such the 8.875% Notes rank pari passu with all the Company’s senior debt and senior in right of 
payment to all of the Company’s subordinated debt. The Company can redeem the 8.875% Notes, in whole or in part, on or after February 1, 
2014, at redemption prices ranging from 100.0% to approximately 104.4%, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Each holder of the 8.875% Notes has 
the right to require the Company to repurchase such holder’s notes at a purchase price of 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and 
unpaid interest thereon, upon the occurrence of certain events specified in the indenture that constitute a change in control. The 8.875% Notes 
contain customary covenants, representations and warranties, plus a consolidated secured debt to consolidated cash flow liens incurrence test. 
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In order to fulfill its registration rights obligations, on April 28, 2010, the Company launched a registered exchange offer (“Exchange Offer”) to 
exchange any and all of its outstanding unregistered 8.875% Notes for publicly tradable notes having substantially identical terms and guarantees, 
except that the exchange notes will be freely tradable. The Exchange Offer expired on May 26, 2010, and nearly all unregistered 8.875% Notes 
were exchanged for registered 8.875% Notes.

In connection with the issuance of the 8.875% Notes, the Company capitalized $9.4 million of debt issuance costs, of which $7.6 million 
relates to fees paid to consenting lenders and $1.8 million relates to offering expenses, all of which is amortized over the eight year life of the 
8.875% Notes.

7.875% Notes
In 2004, the Company issued $320.0 million of the 7.875% Notes, with semi- annual interest payments due on June 1 and December 1, and 

no required principal payments prior to the scheduled maturity on December 1, 2013. The Company had the option to redeem these notes, in 
whole or in part, at redemption prices from 103.938% to 100%, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

On December 17, 2012, the Company announced that it had initiated a mandatory and irrevocable redemption of all of the outstanding 
7.875% Notes. Pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing these notes, the 7.875% Notes were redeemed on January 22, 2013 (the 
“Redemption Date”) at a redemption price of 100.0% of the unpaid principal amount of the 7.875% Notes, together with accrued and unpaid 
interest thereon up to the Redemption Date. As a result, the amount outstanding as of the year ended 2012 were reclassified to long- term debt 
on the consolidated balance sheet.

In 2012, the Company purchased in the open market approximately $98.6 million of its 7.875% Notes and retired them for $96.4 million 
plus accrued and unpaid interest.

2013 Extinguishments
During the year ended 2013, the Company recorded a total loss on early extinguishment of debt of $11.3 million. In connection with the 

Refinanced Facility, the Company recorded a loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $6.4 million, of which $4.1 million related to 
consent fees paid to consenting lenders, $2.1 million related to the write- off of unamortized debt issuance costs and $0.2 million related to the 
write- off of original issuance discount. The Company recorded a loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $4.0 million related to 
the extinguishment of $40.0 million of its Unsecured Term Loan, of which $2.2 million related to the write- off of unamortized debt issuance costs 
and $1.8 million related to the write- off of original issuance discount. In connection with the extinguishment of $28.2 million of its Term Loan 
Facility, the Company recorded a loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately $0.8 million, of which $0.5 million related to the write- off 
of unamortized debt issuance costs and $0.3 million related to the write- off of original issuance discount.

2012 Extinguishments
During 2012, the Company recorded a total loss on early extinguishment of debt of $12.5 million. In connection with the various refinancing 

activities discussed, the Company incurred a loss on early extinguishment of debt of $14.9 million, of which $11.7 million related to tender and 
consent fees paid to consenting lenders and $3.2 million related to the write- off of previously unamortized debt issuance costs. The loss on early 
extinguishment was partially offset by the gains on early extinguishment of debt of $2.4 million related to repurchases of the 7.875% Notes, the 
10.5% Notes, and the 8.375% Notes, plus in each case accrued and unpaid interest thereon.

2011 Extinguishments
In 2011, the Company purchased in the open market approximately $11.4 million of its 7.875% Notes and retired them for $9.0 million plus 

accrued and unpaid interest and $7.0 million of its 8.375% Notes for $5.4 million plus accrued and unpaid interest. In connection with these 
retirements, the Company recorded a gain on early extinguishment of debt of $4.0 million.

Debt Compliance
In connection with the 2013 Credit Facilities, the Term Loan Facility contains a maximum consolidated leverage ratio covenant, and the ABL 

Facility contains a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio covenant that applies if availability thereunder falls below a certain level. 
In addition, each of the 2013 Credit Facilities contains customary covenants that, among other things, place limits on the ability of Cenveo, the 
Company and their respective subsidiaries to incur debt, create liens, make investments and acquisitions, sell assets, pay dividends, prepay debt, 
merge with other entities, engage in transactions with affiliates, and make capital expenditures. The 2013 Credit Facilities also contain customary 
representations and warranties and events of default.
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The obligations under the 2013 Credit Facilities are guaranteed by the Company and each existing and future direct and indirect North 
American subsidiary of the Company. The 2013 Credit Facilities are secured by a first priority perfected security interest in substantially all 
assets of the Company and its North American subsidiaries. As the 2013 Credit Facilities have senior secured and first priority lien position in the 
Company’s capital structure and the most restrictive covenants, then provided the Company is in compliance with the 2013 Credit Facilities, the 
Company would also be in compliance, in most circumstances, with the Company’s incurrence tests within all of the Company’s debt indentures.

Any default under the 2013 Credit Facilities would prevent the Company from borrowing additional amounts and could cause the indebtedness 
outstanding under the 2013 Credit Facilities and, by reason of cross- acceleration or cross- default provisions, all of the aforementioned notes and 
any other indebtedness the Company may then have, to become immediately due and payable.

As of the year ended 2013, the Company was in compliance with all debt agreement covenants. The Company anticipates being in compliance 
with all of its debt agreements throughout its 2014 fiscal year.

Subsequent Event
In February 2014, the Company entered into an amendment to adjust, among other things, its covenant requirements under its 2013 Credit 

Facilities. This amendment eliminated the maximum consolidated leverage ratio and replaced it with a maximum consolidated first lien leverage 
ratio, providing the Company additional financial flexibility.

The aggregate annual maturities for long- term debt, including the original issuance discount, are as follows:

(in thousands)
2014  $ 9,174
2015   9,495
2016   6,600
2017   763,950
2018   407,500
Thereafter   —

 $ 1,196,719

The Company may from time to time seek to purchase its outstanding notes in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or 
other means. Such repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, the Company’s liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions 
and other factors.

Interest Rate Swaps
From time to time the Company enters into interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure of notional amounts of its floating 

rate debt. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the Company did not have any outstanding interest rate swap obligations.

9. Fair Value Measurements
Certain assets and liabilities of the Company are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or nonrecurring basis. Fair value is 

determined based on the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants.

Assets and Liabilities That Are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis:
On a recurring basis, the Company records its pension plan assets (Note 13) at fair value. No additional assets or liabilities were recorded at 

fair value on a recurring basis for the years ended 2013 and 2012.

Assets and Liabilities That Are Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis:
Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis relate primarily to the Company’s tangible fixed assets, goodwill 

and other intangible assets, which are remeasured when the derived fair value is below carrying value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. For these 
assets, the Company does not periodically adjust carrying value to fair value except in the event of impairment. When the Company determines 
that impairment has occurred, the carrying value of the asset is reduced to fair value and the difference is recorded within operating income in the 
statement of operations. No impairment of fixed assets or goodwill has been recorded in 2013 or 2012.

Refer to Note 6, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, for further information associated with the impairment of certain trade names. Fair 
value was derived using the relief from royalty method, as described in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

C E N V E O  2 0 1 3  |  D E L I V E R I N G  V A L U E  -  5 5  -

notes to consolidated financial statements 
(continUed)

CVO_AR13_Financials_v5.indd   55 3/21/14   7:48 PM



The following tables provide information for assets that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of the years ended 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

(in thousands) Impairments
Remaining Net 
Carrying Value Impairments

Remaining Net 
Carrying Value

Other intangible assets, net $33,367 $1,933 $— $—

The fair value re- measurements included in the table above were based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:
The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, net, long- term debt and accounts payable. The 

carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, net, current maturities of long- term debt and accounts payable are reasonable 
estimates of their fair values as of the years ended 2013 and 2012 due to the short- term nature of these instruments. See Note 8 for fair value of 
the Company’s long- term debt. Additionally, the Company also records the assets and liabilities assumed in its acquisitions (Note 2) at fair value.

10. Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes was as follows for the years ended:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Domestic  $ (70,385)  $ (26,572)  $ (8,981)
Foreign   (1,389)   1,764   4,832

 $ (71,774)  $ (24,808)  $ (4,149)

Income tax expense (benefit) on income (loss) from continuing operations consisted of the following for the years ended:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Current tax expense (benefit):

Federal  $ —  $ —  $ (4,113)
Foreign   977   295   1,361
State   888   874   436

  1,865   1,169   (2,316)
Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal   2,659   40,703   6,741
Foreign   (1,421)   (748)   1,000
State   10,650   14,596   (880)

  11,888   54,551   6,861
Income tax expense  $ 13,753  $ 55,720  $ 4,545

The Company’s deferred tax expense (benefit) for the year ended 2013 includes a tax charge of $40.6 million related to a valuation allowance 
against its deferred tax assets.

The Company’s deferred tax expense (benefit) for the year ended 2012 includes a tax charge of $56.5 million related to a valuation allowance 
against its deferred tax assets.

The Company’s current tax expense (benefit) for the year ended 2011 includes a tax benefit of $5.1 million for the utilization of income tax 
loss carryforwards and credits.
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A reconciliation of the expected tax benefit based on the federal statutory tax rate to the Company’s actual income tax expense is summarized 
as follows for the years ended:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Expected tax benefit at federal statutory income tax rate  $ (25,121)  $ (8,683)  $ (1,452)
State and local income tax (benefit) expense   (1,706)   (1,075)   1,807
Change in valuation allowance   34,049   55,374   (2,592)
Change in contingency reserves   (105)   (94)   (84)
Non- U.S. tax rate differences   42   (1,063)   670
Non- deductible expenses   3,260   2,426   6,847
Change in state tax rates   (272)   1,564   (547)
Expiration of stock option contracts   968   7,007   —
Other   2,638   264   (104)
Income tax expense  $ 13,753  $ 55,720  $ 4,545

Deferred Income Taxes
Deferred taxes are recorded to give recognition to temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported 

amounts in the financial statements. The tax effects of these temporary differences are recorded as deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets generally represent items that can be used as a tax deduction or credit in future years. Deferred tax liabilities generally represent 
items that have been deducted for tax purposes, but have not yet been recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities of the Company, were as follows:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards  $ 108,580  $ 106,393
Compensation and benefit related accruals   35,238   60,047
Foreign tax credit carryforwards   7,456   9,011
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards   8,242   8,819
Accounts receivable   2,075   1,928
Inventory   2,682   2,504
Restructuring accruals   9,985   11,850
Accrued tax and interest   1,645   1,540
Other   9,958   7,719
Valuation allowance   (110,754)   (69,241)

Total deferred tax assets   75,107   140,570
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment   (44,804)   (48,912)
Goodwill and other intangible assets   (56,376)   (71,187)
Other   (9,203)   (10,242)

Total deferred tax liabilities   (110,383)   (130,341)
Net deferred tax (liability) asset  $ (35,276)  $ 10,229

The net deferred tax (liability) asset included the following:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Current deferred tax asset (included in prepaid and other current assets)  $ 7,823  $ 15,567
Current deferred tax asset (included in assets of discontinued operations—current)   —   83
Long- term deferred tax liability (included in other liabilities)   (43,099)   (4,541)
Long- term deferred tax liability (included in liabilities of discontinued operations—long- term)   —   (880)

Total  $ (35,276)  $ 10,229
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The Company has federal and state net operating loss carryforwards. The tax effect of these attributes was $108.6 million as of the year 
ended 2013. Federal net operating loss carryforwards of $282.3 million will expire from 2022 through 2033, foreign tax credit carryforwards of 
$7.5 million will expire from 2014 through 2015 and alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $8.2 million do not have an expiration date.

The Company reviews the likelihood that it will realize the benefit of its deferred tax assets and therefore the need for valuation allowances 
on a quarterly basis, or more frequently if events indicate that a review is required. In determining the requirement for a valuation allowance, the 
historical and projected financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording the net deferred tax asset is considered, along with all 
other available positive and negative evidence. The factors considered in the determination of the probability of the realization of the deferred tax 
assets include, but are not limited to: recent historical financial results, historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, the expected 
timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences, the duration of statutory carryforward periods and tax planning strategies. If, based upon 
the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded.

Concluding that a valuation allowance is not required is difficult when there is significant negative evidence which is objective and verifiable, 
such as cumulative losses in recent years. The Company utilizes a rolling twelve quarters of pre- tax income or loss adjusted for significant permanent 
book to tax differences as a measure of its cumulative results in recent years. In the United States, the Company’s analysis indicates that it has 
cumulative three year historical losses on this basis. While there are significant impairment, restructuring and refinancing charges driving the 
cumulative three year loss, this is considered significant negative evidence which is objective and verifiable and therefore, difficult to overcome. 
However, the three year loss position is not solely determinative and accordingly, the Company considers all other available positive and negative 
evidence in its analysis. Based upon the Company’s analysis, which incorporated the excess capacity and pricing pressure experienced in certain 
product lines, along with the recent decline in net sales and profitability from the print segment during 2013, the Company believes it is more 
likely than not that the net deferred tax assets in the United States will not be fully realized in the future. Accordingly, the Company increased its 
valuation allowance related to those net deferred tax assets by $40.6 million to $97.1 million in 2013. Deferred tax assets related to certain state net 
operating losses and foreign tax credit carryforwards also did not reach the more likely than not realizability criteria and accordingly, were subject 
to a valuation allowance. During 2013, the valuation allowance related to these state net operating losses and foreign tax credit carryforwards was 
increased by $1.0 million to $13.7 million, primarily as a result of an increase in the valuation allowance against state net operating losses in the 
amount of $2.5 million offset by the expiration of foreign tax credit carryforwards in the amount of $1.5 million.

There is no corresponding income tax benefit recognized with respect to losses incurred and no corresponding income tax expense recognized 
with respect to earnings generated in jurisdictions with a valuation allowance. This causes variability in the Company’s effective tax rate. The 
Company intends to maintain the valuation allowances until it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be realized. If operating 
results improve on a sustained basis, or if certain tax planning strategies are implemented, conclusions regarding the need for valuation allowances 
could change, resulting in a decrease of the valuation allowances in the future, which could have a significant impact on income tax expense in the 
period recognized and subsequent periods.

Uncertain Tax Positions
The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial 

statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. During 2013 and 2012, the Company did 
not reduce its liability for uncertain tax positions. The Company does not anticipate significant changes to its unrecognized tax benefits in the next 
twelve months. The balance of the Company’s remaining unrecognized tax benefits as of the year ended 2013 includes $2.2 million of tax benefits 
that, if recognized would affect the effective tax rate, which is included in other liabilities. The Company recognizes interest accrued related to 
unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as income tax expense. Related to the uncertain tax benefits noted above, the Company accrued interest of 
$0.3 million during 2013 and, in total, as of the year ended 2013, has recognized no liabilities for penalties and liabilities of $2.2 million for interest.
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The Company’s unrecognized tax benefit activity for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

(in thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefit—As of year end 2010 $2,226

Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period —
Gross decreases—expiration of applicable statute of limitations —

Unrecognized tax benefit—As of year end 2011 2,226
Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period —
Gross decreases—expiration of applicable statute of limitations —

Unrecognized tax benefit—As of year end 2012 2,226
Gross decreases—tax positions in prior period —
Gross decreases—expiration of applicable statute of limitations —

Unrecognized tax benefit—As of year end 2013 $2,226

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has examined the Company’s federal income tax returns through 2010. The Company’s federal income 
tax returns for tax years 2003 through 2006 and 2009 remain subject to examination by the IRS due to a federal net operating loss generated 
in those years. Although the IRS has audited the Company’s tax return for 2010, that return remains subject to examination under the statute of 
limitations. However, a re- examination of the 2010 tax return is not likely. The various states in which the Company is subject to income tax are 
generally open for the tax years after 2008. In Canada, the Company remains subject to audit for tax years after 2004. The Company does not 
believe that the outcome of any examination will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Current Taxes and Cash Taxes
As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the Company had income tax receivables of $0.6 million and $1.7 million, respectively, included in 

other current assets. Net cash payments for income taxes were $0.3 million, $1.4 million and $2.1 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

11. Restructuring and Other Charges
Cost Savings, Restructuring and Integration Plans
The Company currently has two active cost savings, restructuring and integration plans: (i) the plan related to the implementation of cost 

savings initiatives focused on overhead cost eliminations including headcount reductions and the potential closure of certain manufacturing facilities 
(the “2013 Plan”); and (ii) the plan related to the integration of certain assets of National into existing envelope operations (the “National Plan”).

2013 Plan
During the first quarter of 2013, the Company began implementing the 2013 Plan, which primarily focused on overhead cost eliminations, 

including headcount reductions of approximately 400 employees, and the potential closure of certain manufacturing facilities. The Company will 
substantially complete the 2013 Plan in the first quarter of 2014.

Acquisition Integration Plans
Upon the completion of the acquisition of certain assets of National, the Company developed and began implementing the National Plan. 

Since the date of acquisition, activities related to the National Plan included the closure and consolidation of a warehouse into the Company’s 
existing envelope operations and the elimination of duplicative headcount. Additionally, at the end of 2013 the Company announced the closure 
and consolidation of two existing envelope manufacturing facilities into a National manufacturing facility. The Company expects the National Plan 
to be completed during the 2015 fiscal year.

Upon the completion of the EPG acquisition, the Company developed and implemented its plan to integrate EPG into its existing envelope 
operations. Since the date of acquisition, activities related to the EPG Plan have included the closure and consolidation of five manufacturing 
facilities, including the closure of one during the second quarter of 2013, into the Company’s existing operations and the elimination of duplicative 
headcount. The Company has substantially completed the integration of EPG.
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2012 Plan
In 2012, the Company announced the closure and consolidations of a print plant and an envelope plant into its existing operations. Additionally, 

the Company began implementing a cost savings initiative (the “2012 Plan”), which primarily focused on the Company’s envelope and print 
segments and corporate expenses. This initiative focused on the consolidation of office and warehouse space and other overhead cost elimination 
plans, including headcount reductions. The Company substantially completed the 2012 Plan during the first quarter of 2013.

Residual Plans
The Company currently has certain residual cost savings, restructuring and integration plans (the “Residual Plans”). As a result of these cost 

savings actions, over the last eight years the Company has closed or consolidated a significant amount of manufacturing facilities and has had a 
significant number of headcount reductions. The Company does not anticipate any significant future expenses related to the Residual Plans, other 
than modifications to its current assumptions for lease terminations, multi- employer pension withdrawal liabilities and ongoing expenses related 
to maintaining restructured assets.

The following tables present the details of the expenses recognized as a result of these plans.

2013 Activity
Restructuring and other charges for the year ended 2013 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Employee 
Separation 

Costs

Asset 
Charges  

Net of Gain 
on Sale

Equipment 
Moving 

Expenses

Lease 
Termination 

Expenses

Multi- 
employer 

Pension 
Withdrawal 

Expenses

Building 
Clean- up  
& Other 

Expenses Total

Envelope
2013 Plan  $ 232  $ —  $ 10  $ 215  $ —  $ 65  $ 522
2012 Plan   (37)   118   193   300   —   728   1,302
Residual Plans   —   —   —   —   107   13   120
Acquisition Integration Plans   448   1,030   1,274   37   —   743   3,532

Total Envelope   643   1,148   1,477   552   107   1,549   5,476
Print

2013 Plan   2,688   —   —   104   —   224   3,016
2012 Plan   (74)   147   39   11   —   56   179
Residual Plans   —   —   10   454   346   284   1,094

Total Print   2,614   147   49   569   346   564   4,289
Label and Packaging

2013 Plan   1,239   —   —   9   —   13   1,261
2012 Plan   25   —   —   —   —   —   25
Residual Plans   (4)   —   —   (135)   —   —   (139)

Total Label and Packaging   1,260   —   —   (126)   —   13   1,147
Corporate

2013 Plan   1,940   —   —   64   —   64   2,068
Residual Plans   23   —   —   —   —   97   120

Total Corporate   1,963   —   —   64   —   161   2,188
Total Restructuring and Other Charges $ 6,480  $ 1,295  $ 1,526  $ 1,059  $ 453  $ 2,287  $ 13,100
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2012 Activity
Restructuring and other charges for the year ended 2012 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Employee 
Separation 

Costs

Asset 
Charges  

Net of Gain 
on Sale

Equipment 
Moving 

Expenses

Lease 
Termination 

Expenses

Multi- 
employer 

Pension 
Withdrawal 

Expenses

Building 
Clean- up  
& Other 

Expenses Total

Envelope
2012 Plan  $ 1,483  $ 441  $ 35  $ 319  $ —  $ 68  $ 2,346
Residual Plans   (12)   —   —   13   168   153   322
Acquisition Integration Plans   1,029   1,199   414   172   —   679   3,493

Total Envelope   2,500   1,640   449   504   168   900   6,161
Print

2012 Plan   2,241   6,220   572   337   5,400   1,571   16,341
Residual Plans   532   535   47   156   (486)   964   1,748

Total Print   2,773   6,755   619   493   4,914   2,535   18,089
Label and Packaging

2012 Plan   1,288   —   6   —   —   13   1,307
Residual Plans   364   —   —   162   —   185   711
Acquisition Integration Plans   —   —   (4)   —   —   —   (4)

Total Label and Packaging   1,652   —   2   162   —   198   2,014
Corporate

2012 Plan   646   —   —   —   —   —   646
Residual Plans   —   —   —   —   —   190   190

Total Corporate   646   —   —   —   —   190   836
Total Restructuring and Other Charges $ 7,571  $ 8,395  $ 1,070  $ 1,159  $ 5,082  $ 3,823  $ 27,100

2011 Activity
Restructuring and other charges for the year ended 2011 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Employee 
Separation 

Costs

Asset 
Charges  

Net of Gain 
on Sale

Equipment 
Moving 

Expenses

Lease 
Termination 

Expenses

Multi- 
employer 

Pension 
Withdrawal 

Expenses

Building 
Clean- up  
& Other 

Expenses Total

Envelope
Residual Plans  $ 408  $ —  $ 31  $ 259  $ (156)  $ 463  $ 1,005
Acquisition Integration Plans   2,091   722   1,822   101   —   520   5,256

Total Envelope   2,499   722   1,853   360   (156)   983   6,261
Print

Residual Plans   328   2,088   618   2,017   1,593   2,285   8,929
Total Print   328   2,088   618   2,017   1,593   2,285   8,929
Label and Packaging

Residual Plans   1,239   33   1   126   —   158   1,557
Acquisition Integration Plans   39   130   76   6   —   175   426

Total Label and Packaging   1,278   163   77   132   —   333   1,983
Corporate

Residual Plans   225   —   —   82   —   332   639
Total Corporate   225   —   —   82   —   332   639
Total Restructuring and Other Charges $ 4,330  $ 2,973  $ 2,548  $ 2,591  $ 1,437  $ 3,933  $ 17,812
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A summary of the activity related to the restructuring liabilities for all the cost savings, restructuring and integration initiatives were as follows:

(in thousands)

Employee 
Separation 

Costs
Lease 

Termination

Pension 
Withdrawal 

Liabilities

Building 
Clean- up, 

Equipment 
Moving and 

Other Expenses Total

2013 Plan
Balance as of the year ended 2012  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

Accruals, net   6,099   392   —   376   6,867
Payments   (5,262)   (336)   —   (376)   (5,974)

Balance as of the year ended 2013  $ 837  $ 56  $ —  $ —  $ 893
2012 Plan

Balance as of the year ended 2011  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —
Accruals, net   5,658   656   5,400   2,265   13,979
Payments   (4,459)   (163)   —   (2,265)   (6,887)

Balance as of the year ended 2012   1,199   493   5,400   —   7,092
Accruals, net   (86)   311   —   1,016   1,241
Payments   (1,113)   (477)   —   (1,016)   (2,606)

Balance as of the year ended 2013  $ —  $ 327  $ 5,400  $ —  $ 5,727
Residual Plans

Balance as of the year ended 2011  $ 1,071  $ 3,804  $ 22,538  $ —  $ 27,413
Accruals, net   884   331   (318)   1,539   2,436
Payments   (1,828)   (2,118)   (2,701)   (1,539)   (8,186)

Balance as of the year ended 2012   127   2,017   19,519   —   21,663
Accruals, net   19   319   453   404   1,195
Payments   (146)   (1,319)   (4,817)   (404)   (6,686)

Balance as of the year ended 2013  $ —  $ 1,017  $ 15,155  $ —  $ 16,172
Acquisition Integration Plans

Balance as of the year ended 2011  $ 492  $ 1,346  $ —  $ —  $ 1,838
Accruals, net   1,029   172   —   1,089   2,290
Payments   (1,223)   (430)   —   (1,089)   (2,742)

Balance as of the year ended 2012   298   1,088   —   —   1,386
Accruals, net   448   37   —   2,017   2,502
Acquisition   —   1,985   —   —   1,985
Payments   (591)   (607)   —   (2,017)   (3,215)

Balance as of the year ended 2013  $ 155  $ 2,503  $ —  $ —  $ 2,658
Total Restructuring Liability  $ 992  $ 3,903  $ 20,555  $ —  $ 25,450

12. Stock- Based Compensation
The Company’s 2007 Long- Term Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, approved in May 2008 (the “2007 Plan”) authorizes the issuance of 

up to 4,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Upon approval of the 2007 Plan, the Company ceased making awards under its prior 
equity plans, including the Company’s 2001 Long- Term Equity Incentive Plan. Unused shares previously authorized under prior plans have been 
rolled over into the 2007 Plan and increased the total number of shares authorized for issuance under the 2007 Plan by 1,040,000 shares in 2013.

The Company’s outstanding unvested stock options have maximum contractual terms of up to six years, principally vest ratably over four 
years and were granted at exercise prices equal to the market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The Company’s 
outstanding stock options are exercisable into shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company’s outstanding restricted share units (“RSUs”) 
principally vest ratably over four years. Upon vesting, RSUs convert into shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company currently issues 
authorized shares of common stock upon vesting of restricted shares or the exercise of other equity awards. The Company has no outstanding 
stock appreciation rights.

The Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments, including grants of employee 
stock options and RSUs, based on the fair value of the award at the date of grant in accordance with the modified prospective method. The Company 
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uses the Black- Scholes model for purposes of determining the fair value of stock options granted and recognizes compensation costs ratably over 
the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award, net of estimated forfeitures. The Black- Scholes model has limitations 
on its effectiveness including that it was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions and are 
fully transferable and that the model requires the use of parameters, such as stock price volatility that must be estimated from historical data and 
other market information. The Company’s stock option awards to employees have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options 
and parameter estimation methodologies can materially affect fair value estimates.

Total stock- based compensation expense recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement 
of operations was $3.7 million, $5.3 million and $8.7 million for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The income tax benefits 
related to the Company’s stock- based compensation expense was $0.7 million, $1.2 million and $1.5 million for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 
2011, respectively.

As of December 28, 2013, there was approximately $2.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock- based 
compensation grants, which is expected to be amortized over a weighted  average period of 1.6 years.

Stock Options
A summary of the Company’s outstanding stock options as of and for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Options

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term (In Years)

Aggregate  
Intrinsic Value  
(in thousands)

(a) 

Outstanding as of the year ended 2010 3,805,224  $ 10.70   3.1  $ 1,075
Granted 590,000   5.62
Exercised (70,598)   4.04  $ 141
Forfeited (131,646)   6.89
Outstanding as of the year ended 2011 4,192,980  $ 10.21   2.5  $ —
Granted —   —
Exercised —   —  $ —
Forfeited/expired (1,966,980)   13.00
Outstanding as of the year ended 2012 2,226,000  $ 7.75   2.7  $ —
Granted 189,500   2.00
Exercised (20,000)   2.00  $ 22
Forfeited/expired (617,500)   13.43
Outstanding as of the year ended 2013 1,778,000  $ 5.23   2.4  $ 259
Exercisable as of the year ended 2013 1,296,000  $ 5.44   1.9  $ —
(a) Intrinsic value for purposes of this table represents the amount by which the fair value of the underlying stock, based on the respective market prices 

as of the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 or, if exercised, the exercise dates, exceeds the exercise prices of the respective options.

The weighted  average grant date fair value of stock options granted during 2013 and 2011, were at exercise prices equal to the market price of 
the stock on the grant dates, as calculated under the Black- Scholes model with the weighted  average assumptions as follows: There were no stock 
options granted during 2012.

2013 2011
Weighted average fair value of option grants during the year $1.01 $2.28
Assumptions:
Expected option life in years 4.25 4.25
Risk- free interest rate 0.50% 1.46%
Expected volatility 65.7% 49.1%
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%

The risk- free interest rate represents the United States Treasury Bond constant maturity yield approximating the expected option life of 
stock options granted during the period. The expected option life represents the period of time that the stock options granted during the period 
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are expected to be outstanding, based on the mid- point between the vesting date and contractual expiration date of the option. The expected 
volatility is based on the historical market price volatility of the Company’s common stock for the expected term of the options, adjusted for 
expected mean reversion.

RSUs
A summary of the Company’s non- vested restricted share units as of and for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Restricted 
Shares

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair Value RSUs

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair Value

Unvested as of the year ended 2010 25,300  $ 6.53   1,720,674  $ 8.13
Granted —   —   806,084   5.62
Vested —   —   (745,674)   9.42
Forfeited (25,300)   6.53   (26,250)   6.57
Unvested as of the year ended 2011 —  $ —   1,754,834  $ 6.46
Granted —   —   136,840   1.90
Vested —   —   (795,459)   7.02
Forfeited —   —   (21,875)   7.32
Unvested as of the year ended 2012 —  $ —   1,074,340  $ 5.44
Granted —   —   549,500   2.00
Vested —   —   (629,340)   4.88
Forfeited —   —   (13,750)   2.99
Unvested as of the year ended 2013 —  $ —   980,750  $ 3.91

The total fair value of RSUs, which vested during 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $1.6 million, $2.0 million and $3.7 million, respectively, as of the 
respective vesting dates.

PSUs
On May 1, 2013, 730,500 performance share units (“PSUs”) were granted to certain employees, with each award representing the right to 

receive one share of the Company’s common stock upon the achievement of certain established performance targets and service conditions. The 
performance period for the awards was December 30, 2012 through December 28, 2013. As the performance targets were not met, the PSUs 
expired unvested and no compensation expense related to PSUs was recognized in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended 
December 28, 2013. There were no PSUs granted in fiscal year 2012 or 2011.

13. Retirement Plans
Pension Plans: The Company currently has two defined benefit pension plans for certain of its employees in the United States. The defined 

benefit plans provide benefit payments using formulas based on an employee’s compensation and length of service, or stated amounts for each 
year of service. The Company expects to continue to fund these plans based on governmental requirements, amounts deductible for income tax 
purposes and as needed to ensure that plan assets are sufficient to satisfy plan liabilities. Most of the employee benefits under the Company’s 
defined benefit plans are frozen.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans: The Company has various supplemental executive retirement plans (“SERP”), which provide 
benefits to certain former directors and executives. For accounting purposes, these plans are unfunded, however, one plan has annuities that cover 
a portion of the liability to the participants in its plan and the income from the annuities offsets a portion of the cost of the plan. These annuities 
are included in other assets, net in the consolidated balance sheets.

Other Postretirement Plans: The Company has various other postretirement benefit plans (“OPEB”), primarily focused on postretirement 
healthcare, such as medical insurance and life insurance and related benefits for certain of its former employees and, in some instances, their 
spouses. Benefits, eligibility and cost- sharing provisions vary by plan documents or union collective bargaining arrangements.

Savings Plan: The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan to provide substantially all United States salaried and certain hourly 
employees an opportunity to accumulate personal funds for their retirement. In 2013, the Company contributed $0.3 million to the plan. In 2012, 
the Company did not make any voluntary contributions. In 2011, the Company matched only certain union employees’ voluntary contributions 
and contributions required under the collective bargaining agreements. Company contributions to the plan were less than $0.1 million in 2011. 
Employees participating in the plan held 2,263,670 shares of the Company’s common stock as of the year ended 2013.
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Funded Status and Net Periodic Cost: The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the Company’s pension, SERP and 
OPEB plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets for 2013 and 2012, a statement of the funded status as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, and the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as of the years ended 2013 and 2012.

Pensions SERPs OPEBs

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Benefit obligation at beginning of year  $ 352,009  $ 328,523  $ 19,603  $ 19,538  $ 2,479  $ 2,551

Service cost   —   1,932   —   —   —   —
Interest cost   12,932   13,657   696   786   88   103
Actuarial (gain) loss   (29,158)   23,733   (381)   1,398   (418)   (24)
Benefits paid   (16,632)   (15,836)   (2,094)   (2,119)   (136)   (151)
Prior service cost due to acquisition   —   —   —   —   62   —

Benefit obligation at end of year  $ 319,151  $ 352,009  $ 17,824  $ 19,603  $ 2,075  $ 2,479

The following table provides a reconciliation of the Company’s fair value of plan assets:

Pensions SERPs OPEBs

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 231,897  $ 210,577  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

Actual return on plan assets   32,085   21,198   —   —   —   —
Employer contributions   13,567   15,958   2,094   2,119   136   151
Benefits paid   (16,632)   (15,836)   (2,094)   (2,119)   (136)   (151)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year  $ 260,917  $ 231,897  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

The following table shows the funded status at the end of the year:

Pensions SERPs OPEBs

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Funded status at end of year $(58,234) $(120,112) $(17,824) $(19,603) $(2,075) $(2,479)

The following table shows amounts recognized in AOCI:

Pensions SERPs OPEBs

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net actuarial loss $60,338 $110,682 $4,158 $4,766 $(614) $(200)
Prior service cost — — — — 44 (23)

Total $60,338 $110,682 $4,158 $4,766 $(570) $(223)

The following table shows amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:

Pensions SERPs OPEBs

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Other current liabilities  $ —  $ —  $ 2,077  $ 2,135  $ 250  $ 262
Other liabilities   58,234   120,112   15,747   17,468   1,825   2,217

Total liabilities  $ 58,234  $ 120,112  $ 17,824  $ 19,603  $ 2,075  $ 2,479
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The following table provides components of the net periodic cost for the pension, SERP and OPEB plans for the years ended 2013, 2012 
and 2011:

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Service cost  $ —  $ 1,932  $ 1,382
Interest cost   13,716   14,546   15,377
Expected return on plan assets   (18,455)   (16,875)   (16,426)
Net amortization and deferral   (6)   (6)   (5)
Recognized net actuarial loss   7,779   6,424   1,015

Net periodic expense  $ 3,034  $ 6,021  $ 1,343

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation includes $0.8 million, $0.9 million and $1.1 million related to the Company’s SERP and OPEB 
plans in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The pre- tax amount of actuarial losses in AOCI as of the year ended 2013 that are expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 
2014 is $3.0 million for defined benefit pension plans and $0.2 million for other postretirement benefit plans, including SERP. The pre- tax amount 
of prior service cost included in AOCI as of the year ended 2013 that is expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2014 is nil for all 
defined benefit pension plans.

The assumptions used in computing the net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted average discount rate 3.75% 4.25% 5.25%
Expected long- term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase —% —% 3.00%

The weighted average discount rate used to determine the benefit obligation as of the years ended 2013 and 2012 was 4.50% and 
3.75%, respectively.

The discount rate assumption used to determine the Company’s pension obligations as of the years ended 2013 and 2012 takes into account 
the projected future benefit cash flow and the underlying individual yields in the Citigroup Pension Liability Index that would be available to provide 
for the payment of those benefits. The ultimate rate is developed by calculating an equivalent discounted present value of the benefit cash flow as 
of the years ended 2013 and 2012, respectively, using a single discount rate rounded to the nearest quarter percent.

The expected long- term rate of return on plan assets of 8.0% for the years ended 2013 and 2012 was based on historical returns and the 
expectations for future returns for each asset class in which plan assets are invested as well as the target asset allocation of the investments of the 
plan assets.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the Company’s pension plans with accumulated 
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were as follows:

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $336,975 $371,612
Accumulated benefit obligation 336,975 371,612
Fair value of plan assets 260,917 231,897

The Company currently expects to contribute approximately $15.7 million to its pension plans and approximately $2.4 million to its SERP 
and OPEB plans in 2014.
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The estimated pension benefit payments expected to be paid by the pension plans and the estimated SERP and OPEB payments expected 
to be paid by the Company for the years 2014 through 2018, and in the aggregate for the years 2019 through 2023, are as follows:

(in thousands) Pension Plans SERP OPEB
2014 $16,966 $2,123 $255
2015 17,194 2,041 236
2016 17,477 2,006 217
2017 17,843 1,850 199
2018 18,306 1,681 182
2019 through 2023 97,623 7,133 708

Fair Value of Assets: The Company’s investment objective is to maximize the long- term return on its pension plan assets within prudent levels 
of risk. Investments are primarily diversified with a blend of equity securities, fixed income securities and alternative investments. The intent is to 
minimize plan expenses by outperforming plan liabilities over the long run.

The Company segregated its plan assets by the following major categories and levels for determining their fair value as of the years ended 
2013 and 2012:

Cash and cash equivalents—Carrying value approximates fair value. As such, these assets were classified as Level 1.
Equity—Equity investments are diversified by including United States and non- United States stocks, growth stocks, value stocks and stocks 

of large and small companies. The values of individual equity securities are based on quoted prices in active markets and are classified as Level 1.
Fixed income—Fixed income securities are primarily United States governmental and corporate bonds including mutual funds. The Company 

invests in certain fixed income funds that were priced on active markets and were classified as Level 1. The Company also invests in certain fixed 
income securities that are priced based on valuation models rather than a last trade basis and are not exchange- traded and are classified as Level 2.

Other—The Company also invests in group annuity contracts, which are invested in certain fixed income securities and are classified as Level 2.
Alternative investments—Alternative investments are primarily private equity hedge funds and hedge fund- of-funds. The fair value of alternative 

investments has been estimated using their Net Asset Values (“NAV”) as reported by the investment manager of the respective alternative 
investment funds. NAV reported by the hedge funds is used as a practical expedient to estimate the fair value. The investment manager values 
these investments on a periodic basis with models that use market, income and valuation methods. The valuation inputs are not highly observable, 
and these investments are not actively traded on an open market. These investments were classified as Level 3.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value, or reflective of future 
fair values. While the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement. The 
Company invests in various assets in which valuation is determined by NAV. The Company believes that the NAV is representative of fair value, 
as there are no significant restrictions on redemption on these investments or other reasons that indicate the investment would be redeemed at 
an amount different than the NAV.

The fair values of the Company’s pension plan assets as of the years ended 2013 and 2012, by asset category are as follows:

2013 2012

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,115  $ —  $ —  $ 6,115  $ 6,817  $ —  $ —  $ 6,817
Equity   141,334   —   —   141,334   121,600   —   —   121,600
Fixed income   17,181   41,487   —   58,668   15,229   40,152   —   55,381
Other   —   1,684   —   1,684   —   1,802   —   1,802
Alternative investments   —   —   53,116   53,116   —   —   46,297   46,297
Total pension plan assets  $ 164,630  $ 43,171  $ 53,116  $ 260,917  $ 143,646  $ 41,954  $ 46,297  $ 231,897
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The following table provides a summary of changes in the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 assets:

(in thousands)
Alternative 

Investments

Balance as of the year ended 2011 $ 28,762
Purchases, sales and settlements 14,056
Unrealized gains 3,479

Balance as of the year ended 2012 46,297
Purchases, sales and settlements —
Unrealized gains 6,819

Balance as of the year ended 2013 $53,116

The range of asset allocations and the target allocations for the pension plan assets were as follows:

2013 2012 Target

Equity securities 53% 65% 51% 64% 60% 75%
Fixed income securities 23% 33% 25% 32% 25% 35%
Alternative investments and other 2% 24% 4% 24% 10% 30%

Multi- Employer Plans: Certain of the Company’s employees are included in multi- employer pension plans to which the Company 
makes contributions in accordance with contractual union agreements. Such contributions are made on a monthly basis in accordance with the 
requirements of the plans and the actuarial computations and assumptions of the administrators of the plans. Contributions to multi- employer plans 
were $1.1 million in 2013, $1.1 million in 2012 and $1.6 million in 2011. In 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded expenses of $0.5 million, 
$5.1 million, and $1.4 million, respectively, as a result of exiting certain multi- employer pension plans in connection with its cost savings and 
restructuring plans.

The Company’s participation in these plans for the year ended 2013, is outlined in the table below:

Pension Fund
EIN/Pension 

Plan Number
Pension Protection  

Act Reported Status(1) FIP/RP Status(2) Contributions
Surcharge 

imposed

Expiration Date 
of Collective 

Bargaining 
Agreement

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2011
GCC/IBT National 

Pension Fund
526118568/ 

001 Red Red Implemented $  262 $  236 $  249 Yes 6/30/2016
GCC/IBT National 

Pension Fund
526118568/ 

001 Red Red Implemented 100 102 206 Yes 12/31/2014
GCC/IBT National 

Pension Fund
526118568/ 

001 Red Red Implemented 14 15 25 Yes 4/30/2014
Graphic Communications 

Pension Trust Fund 
Of Canada

M5000050/ 
223 Red Red Implemented 195 225 250 No 6/30/2015

Graphic Communications 
Supplemental 
Retirement and 
Disability Fund

M5000050/ 
226, 251 Red Red Implemented 429 479 523 No 6/30/2015

CWA/ITU Negotiated 
Pension Plan

136212879/ 
001 Red Red Implemented 88 86 347 No 3/1/2018

Total contributions $1,088 $1,143 $1,600
(1) Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) zone status available in 2013 and 2012 is for the plan’s year end, not the 

Company’s year end. The zone status is based on information that the Company received from the plan and is certified by the plan’s actuary. Among 
other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80 percent funded, and plans in 
the green zone are at least 80 percent funded.

(2) The FIP/RP Status column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (“FIP”) or a rehabilitation plan (“RP”) is either pending or has 
been implemented.
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14. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases: The Company leases buildings and equipment under operating lease agreements expiring at various dates through 2033. Certain leases 

include renewal and/or purchase options, which may be exercised by us. As of the year ended 2013, future minimum annual lease payments by year 
and, in the aggregate, under non- cancelable lease agreements with original terms of one year or more consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
2014  $ 28,017
2015   24,264
2016   18,860
2017   15,928
2018   11,987
Thereafter   20,337

Total  $ 119,393

Rent expense was $26.6 million, $25.6 million and $26.4 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Environmental: The Company is involved in certain environmental matters and has been designated as a potentially responsible party for 

certain hazardous waste sites. Prior to the Company’s acquisition of Nashua, Nashua was involved in certain environmental matters and was 
designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) as a potentially responsible party for certain hazardous waste sites. In addition, 
Nashua had been notified by certain state environmental agencies that Nashua may bear responsibility for remedial action at other sites which 
have not been addressed by the EPA. The sites at which Nashua may have remedial responsibilities are in various stages of investigation and 
remediation. Due to the unique physical characteristics of each site, the remedial technology employed, the extended time- frames of each 
remediation, the interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the financial viability of other potential participants, the ultimate range of 
outcomes cannot be predicted with certainty; therefore, the Company’s ultimate cost of remediation is an estimate and is contingent on these 
factors. Based on information currently available, the Company believes that Nashua’s remediation expense, if any, is not likely to have a material 
effect on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. As of the years ended 2013 and 2012, the undiscounted liability relating to the 
Company’s environmental matters was $2.0 million and $2.1 million, respectively, primarily the amount recorded on Nashua’s acquisition date, 
and is included in other liabilities. There have been no material changes related to these environmental matters and, based on information currently 
available, the Company believes that remediation of these environmental matters will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements.

Litigation: The Company is party to various legal actions that are ordinary and incidental to its business. While the outcome of pending legal 
actions cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes the outcome of these various proceedings will not have a material effect on the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements. In 2012, the Company reached an agreement with all parties to settle all controversies and disputes 
with prejudice in connection with certain civil litigations filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of New York and in 
the Superior Court of New Jersey, Burlington County. As the Company’s liability arising out of these litigations existed as of the December 2011 
balance sheet date, this settlement was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2011 within other expense (income), net in the consolidated statement of 
operations. The Company funded this settlement in 2012. In 2011, the Company reached an agreement with all defendants to settle all controversies 
and disputes and agreed to dismiss all claims against the defendants with prejudice in connection with a civil litigation filed in Minneapolis, Minnesota. 
This settlement was recorded as a reduction to selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: The Company has limited concentrations of credit risk with respect to financial instruments. Temporary cash 
investments and other investments are placed with high credit quality institutions, and concentrations within accounts receivable are generally 
limited due to the Company’s diverse customer base and its dispersion across different industries and geographic areas. The Company extends 
credit to customers based on its evaluation of the customer’s financial condition. The Company does not require that any collateral be provided 
by its customers.

Letters of Credit: As of the year ended 2013, the Company had outstanding letters of credit of approximately $22.3 million and a de minimis 
amount of surety bonds. Based on the Company’s experience with these arrangements, it does not believe that any obligations that may arise will 
have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Tax Audits: The Company’s income, sales and use, and other tax returns are routinely subject to audit by various authorities. The Company 
believes that the resolution of any matters raised during such audits will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position 
or its results of operations.
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Multi- Employer Pension Plans: The Company participates in a number of multi- employer pension plans for union employees (“Multi- 
Employer Plans”) and is exposed to significant risks and uncertainties arising from its participation in these Multi- Employer Plans. These risks and 
uncertainties, including changes in future contributions due to partial or full withdrawal of the Company and other participating employers from 
these Multi- Employer Plans, could significantly increase the Company’s future contributions or the underfunded status of these Multi- Employer 
Plans. Two of the Multi- Employer Plans are in mass withdrawal status. While it is not possible to quantify the potential impact of future actions of the 
Company or other participating employers from these Multi- Employer Plans, continued participation in or withdrawal from these multi- employer 
pension plans could have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The following table presents the changes in the balances of each component of AOCI, net of tax:

(in thousands)

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation

Pension and 
Other 

Postretirement 
Benefits Total

Balance as of the year ended 2011  $ 2,280  $ (62,160)  $ (59,880)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications   665   (11,901)   (11,236)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI   —   3,915   3,915
Other comprehensive income (loss)   665   (7,986)   (7,321)

Balance as of the year ended 2012   2,945   (70,146)   (67,201)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications   (4,529)   26,688   22,159
Amounts reclassified from AOCI   —   4,742   4,742
Other comprehensive (loss) income   (4,529)   31,430   26,901

Balance as of the year ended 2013  $ (1,584)  $ (38,716)  $ (40,300)

Reclassifications from AOCI

AOCI Components  
(in thousands)

Amounts Reclassified from AOCI
2013 2012 Income Statement Line Item

Amortization of pension and other benefit items:
Net actuarial losses(1)  $ 7,779  $ 6,424 Selling, general and administrative expenses
Prior service cost(1)   (6)   (6) Selling, general and administrative expenses

  7,773   6,418 Total before tax
Taxes   (3,031)   (2,503) Income tax expense

Total reclassifications for the period  $ 4,742  $ 3,915 Net of tax
(1) Components are included in the computation of net periodic benefit cost as presented in Note 13.
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16. Related Party Transactions
In the fourth quarter of 2013, Cenveo entered into a 10-year lease of a manufacturing facility with a related party wholly owned and managed 

by certain executives of the Company. The Company believes the lease terms have not been significantly affected by the fact that the Company 
and the lessors are related parties. The Company recognized less than $0.1 million in rental expense associated with the lease during 2013, which 
is recorded in cost of sales. Future lease payments related to this lease (undiscounted) are $5.2 million. The Company has no other commitments 
or guarantees related to the lease.

17. Income (Loss) per Share
Basic income (loss) per share is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. When 

applicable, diluted income (loss) per share is calculated using two approaches. The first approach, the treasury stock method, reflects the potential 
dilution that could occur if the stock options, RSUs and PSUs (“Equity Awards”) to issue common stock were exercised. The second approach, 
the if converted method, reflects the potential dilution of the Equity Awards and the 7% Notes being exchanged for common stock. Under this 
method, interest expense associated with the 7% Notes, net of tax, is added back to income from continuing operations and the shares outstanding 
are increased by the underlying 7% Notes equivalent.

For the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, the effect of approximately 22.9 million, 24.1 million and 5.8 million shares, respectively, related 
to the exchange of the 7% Notes for common stock and the issuance of common stock upon exercise of Equity Awards, were excluded from the 
calculation of diluted income (loss) per share, as the effect would be anti- dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income (loss) per share for the periods ended:

For The Years Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
Numerator for basic and diluted loss per share:

Loss from continuing operations  $ (85,527)  $ (80,528)  $ (8,694)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes   16,741   641   129
Net loss  $ (68,786)  $ (79,887)  $ (8,565)

Denominator for weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic shares   64,576   63,567   62,983
Dilutive effect of convertible notes   —   —   —
Dilutive effect of equity awards   —   —   —
Diluted shares   64,576   63,567   62,983

(Loss) income per share—basic:
Continuing operations  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)  $ (0.14)
Discontinued operations   0.25   0.01   —
Net loss  $ (1.07)  $ (1.26)  $ (0.14)

(Loss) income per share—diluted:
Continuing operations  $ (1.32)  $ (1.27)  $ (0.14)
Discontinued operations   0.25   0.01   —
Net loss  $ (1.07)  $ (1.26)  $ (0.14)
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18. Segment Information
The Company operates four operating segments: envelope, print, label and packaging. Based upon similar economic characteristics and 

management reporting, the Company has aggregated the label and packaging operating segments to have a total of three reportable segments—
envelope, print and label and packaging. The envelope segment provides direct mail offerings and transactional and stock envelopes. The print 
segment provides a wide array of print offerings such as high- end printed materials including car brochures, advertising literature, corporate identity 
and brand marketing material, digital printing and content management. The label and packaging segment specializes in the design, manufacturing 
and printing of labels such as custom labels, overnight packaging labels, pressure- sensitive prescription labels and high quality packaging offerings, 
full body shrink sleeves, and specialized folded carton packaging.

Operating income (loss) of each segment includes all costs and expenses directly related to the segment’s operations. Corporate expenses 
include corporate general and administrative expenses including stock- based compensation.

Corporate identifiable assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, miscellaneous receivables, deferred financing fees, deferred tax 
assets and other assets.
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The following tables present certain segment information:

For The Years Ended

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Net sales:

Envelope  $ 749,898  $ 658,217  $ 706,596
Print   529,760   585,632   626,994
Label and Packaging   498,150   494,444   510,781
Total  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293  $ 1,844,371

Operating income (loss):
Envelope  $ 39,775  $ 45,485  $ 46,838
Print   (6,042)   32,845   43,709
Label and Packaging   32,644   54,666   57,768
Corporate   (37,014)   (31,811)   (43,153)
Total  $ 29,363  $ 101,185  $ 105,162

Restructuring and other charges:
Envelope  $ 5,476  $ 6,161  $ 6,261
Print   4,289   18,089   8,929
Label and Packaging   1,147   2,014   1,983
Corporate   2,188   836   639
Total  $ 13,100  $ 27,100  $ 17,812

Depreciation and intangible asset amortization:
Envelope  $ 16,407  $ 16,986  $ 17,300
Print   20,894   21,333   22,769
Label and Packaging   18,214   18,012   19,301
Corporate   4,981   4,327   3,178
Total  $ 60,496  $ 60,658  $ 62,548

Capital expenditures:
Envelope  $ 7,221  $ 1,402  $ 2,203
Print   6,868   8,145   5,685
Label and Packaging   9,605   4,374   2,674
Corporate   5,541   6,642   5,010
Total  $ 29,235  $ 20,563  $ 15,572

Net sales by product line:
Envelope  $ 749,898  $ 658,217  $ 706,596
Print   529,760   585,632   626,994
Label   337,270   331,542   334,671
Packaging   160,880   162,902   176,110
Total  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293  $ 1,844,371

Intercompany sales:
Envelope  $ 4,178  $ 8,676  $ 6,636
Print   4,579   3,097   5,846
Label and Packaging   10,560   11,688   9,931
Total  $ 19,317  $ 23,461  $ 22,413
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(in thousands) 2013 2012
Total assets:

Envelope  $ 472,334  $ 376,224
Print   320,720   378,129
Label and Packaging   356,183   370,437
Corporate   64,467   75,765
Total  $ 1,213,704  $ 1,200,555

Geographic information is as follows as of and for the years ended:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Net sales:

U.S.  $ 1,705,043  $ 1,655,589  $ 1,748,277
Foreign   72,765   82,704   96,094
Total  $ 1,777,808  $ 1,738,293  $ 1,844,371

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Long- lived assets (property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets):

U.S.  $ 634,212  $ 636,182
Foreign   25,880   35,510
Total  $ 660,092  $ 671,692

19. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information
Cenveo, Inc. is a holding company (the “Parent Company”), which is the ultimate parent of all Cenveo subsidiaries. The Parent Company’s 

wholly owned subsidiary, Cenveo Corporation (the “Subsidiary Issuer”), issued the 7.875% Notes, the 8.875% Notes and the 11.5% Notes 
(collectively with the 7.875% Notes and the 8.875% Notes, the “Subsidiary Issuer Notes”), which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a 
joint and several basis, by the Parent Company and substantially all of its wholly  owned subsidiaries (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”).

Presented below is condensed consolidating financial information for the Parent Company, the Subsidiary Issuer, the Guarantor Subsidiaries 
and the Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries as of December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 and for the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011. The 
condensed consolidating financial information has been presented to show the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the 
Parent Company, the Subsidiary Issuer, the Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries, assuming the guarantee structure of the 
Subsidiary Issuer Notes was in effect at the beginning of the periods presented.

The supplemental condensed consolidating financial information reflects the investments of the Parent Company in the Subsidiary Issuer, 
the Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non- Guarantor Subsidiaries using the equity method of accounting. The Company’s primary transactions 
with its subsidiaries other than the investment account and related equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries are the intercompany payables and 
receivables between its subsidiaries.
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 28, 2013

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non- Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $ —  $ 9,504  $ —  $ 1,825  $ —  $ 11,329
Accounts receivable, net   —   128,214   152,091   1,281   —   281,586
Inventories   —   89,830   71,722   13   —   161,565
Notes receivable from subsidiaries   —   36,938   —   —   (36,938)   —
Prepaid and other current assets   —   46,050   6,813   2,490   —   55,353
Assets of discontinued 

operations—current   —   —   132   —   —   132
Total current assets   —   310,536   230,758   5,609   (36,938)   509,965

Investment in subsidiaries   (496,980)   1,865,003   5,385   6,725   (1,380,133)   —
Property, plant and equipment, net   —   134,326   169,770   811   —   304,907
Goodwill   —   25,540   155,561   5,335   —   186,436
Other intangible assets, net   —   9,930   157,621   1,198   —   168,749
Other assets, net   —   37,952   5,175   487   —   43,614
Assets of discontinued 

operations—long- term   —   —   33   —   —   33
Total assets  $ (496,980)  $ 2,383,287  $ 724,303  $ 20,165  $ (1,417,071)  $ 1,213,704

Liabilities and Shareholders’  
(Deficit) Equity

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of  

long- term debt  $ —  $ 6,600  $ 2,574  $ —  $ —  $ 9,174
Accounts payable   —   148,678   94,889   661   —   244,228
Accrued compensation and  

related liabilities   —   20,684   10,969   486   —   32,139
Other current liabilities   —   60,845   19,674   679   —   81,198
Liabilities of discontinued 

operations—current   —   1,372   641   —   —   2,013
Intercompany payable (receivable)   —   1,341,397   (1,349,273)   7,876   —   —
Notes payable to issuer   —   —   36,938   —   (36,938)   —

Total current liabilities   —   1,579,576   (1,183,588)   9,702   (36,938)   368,752
Long- term debt   —   1,173,457   2,894   —   —   1,176,351
Other liabilities   —   127,234   39,994   (1,647)   —   165,581
Shareholders’ (deficit) equity   (496,980)   (496,980)   1,865,003   12,110   (1,380,133)   (496,980)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
(deficit) equity  $ (496,980)  $ 2,383,287  $ 724,303  $ 20,165  $ (1,417,071)  $ 1,213,704
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
For the year ended 2013

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non- Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales  $ —  $ 762,810  $ 999,441  $ 15,557  $ —  $ 1,777,808
Cost of sales   —   660,679   812,034   13,218   —   1,485,931
Selling, general and administrative 

expenses   —   119,046   86,072   967   —   206,085
Amortization of intangible assets   —   602   8,829   531   —   9,962
Restructuring and other charges   —   7,744   5,342   14   —   13,100
Impairment of intangible assets   —   —   33,367   —   —   33,367

Operating (loss) income   —   (25,261)   53,797   827   —   29,363
Gain on bargain purchase   —   (17,262)   —   —   —   (17,262)
Interest expense, net   —   112,232   445   —   —   112,677
Intercompany interest (income) 

expense   —   (1,203)   1,203   —   —   —
Loss on early extinguishment  

of debt, net   —   11,324   —   —   —   11,324
Other income, net   —   (2,238)   (3,106)   (258)   —   (5,602)

(Loss) income from continuing 
operations before income 
taxes and equity in (loss) 
income of subsidiaries   —   (128,114)   55,255   1,085   —   (71,774)

Income tax expense (benefit)   —   28,109   (15,023)   667   —   13,753
(Loss) income from continuing 

operations before equity in 
(loss) income of subsidiaries   —   (156,223)   70,278   418   —   (85,527)

Equity in (loss) income of subsidiaries   (68,786)   78,447   418   —   (10,079)   —
(Loss) income from continuing 

operations   (68,786)   (77,776)   70,696   418   (10,079)   (85,527)
Income from discontinued operations, 

net of taxes   —   8,990   7,751   —   —   16,741
Net (loss) income   (68,786)   (68,786)   78,447   418   (10,079)   (68,786)

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Other comprehensive income 

(loss) of subsidiaries   26,901   (1,754)   (2,704)   —   (22,443)   —
Pension liability adjustment,  

net of taxes   —   28,655   2,775   —   —   31,430
Currency translation adjustment   —   —   (1,825)   (2,704)   —   (4,529)

Comprehensive (loss) income  $ (41,885)  $ (41,885)  $ 76,693  $ (2,286)  $ (32,522)  $ (41,885)

-  7 6  -  C E N V E O  2 0 1 3  |  D E L I V E R I N G  V A L U E

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)

CVO_AR13_Financials_v5.indd   76 3/19/14   2:31 PM



CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 2013

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

of continuing operations  $ 3,739  $ (117,743)  $ 136,232  $ 87  $ —  $ 22,315
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

of discontinued operations   —   6,227   (349)   —   —   5,878
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   3,739   (111,516)   135,883   87   —   28,193

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cost of business acquisitions, net of cash acquired   —   (33,166)   —   —   —   (33,166)
Capital expenditures   —   (13,708)   (15,424)   (103)   —   (29,235)
Purchase of investment   —   (1,650)   —   —   —   (1,650)
Proceeds from insurance claim   —   —   3,036   —   —   3,036
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   —   258   8,046   —   —   8,304

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing 
operations   —   (48,266)   (4,342)   (103)   —   (52,711)

Net cash provided by investing activities of 
discontinued operations   —   23,160   22,054   —   —   45,214

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities   —   (25,106)   17,712   (103)   —   (7,497)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of 7.875% senior subordinated notes   —   (67,848)   —   —   —   (67,848)
Repayment of Term Loan B due 2016   —   (388,205)   —   —   —   (388,205)
Payment of financing related costs and expenses and 

debt issuance discounts   —   (15,570)   —   —   —   (15,570)
Repayments of other long- term debt   —   (2,536)   (4,829)   —   —   (7,365)
Purchase and retirement of common stock upon 

vesting of RSUs   (660)   —   —   —   —   (660)
Repayment under revolving credit facility, net   —   (18,000)   —   —   —   (18,000)
Proceeds from issuance of 15% Unsecured Term 

Loan due 2017   —   50,000   —   —   —   50,000
Repayment of 15% Unsecured Term Loan due 2017   —   (40,000)   —   —   —   (40,000)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   98   —   —   —   —   98
Proceeds from issuance of Term Loan Facility   —   360,000   —   —   —   360,000
Repayment of Term Loan Facility due 2017   —   (30,900)   —   —   —   (30,900)
Borrowings under ABL Facility due 2017   —   699,200   —   —   —   699,200
Repayments under ABL Facility due 2017   —   (577,800)   —   —   —   (577,800)
Proceeds from equipment loan   —   20,000   —   —   —   20,000
Repayments of equipment loan   —   (500)   —   —   —   (500)
Intercompany advances   (3,177)   152,522   (149,225)   (120)   —   —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (3,739)   140,363   (154,054)   (120)   —   (17,550)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents   —   —   173   (100)   —   73
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents   —   3,741   (286)   (236)   —   3,219
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   —   5,763   286   2,061   —   8,110
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ —  $ 9,504  $ —  $ 1,825  $ —  $ 11,329
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 29, 2012

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non- Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $ —  $ 5,763  $ 286  $ 2,061  $ —  $ 8,110
Accounts receivable, net   —   98,199   155,188   1,002   —   254,389
Inventories   —   59,618   67,535   82   —   127,235
Notes receivable from subsidiaries   —   36,938   —   —   (36,938)   —
Prepaid and other current assets   —   53,303   11,878   2,783   —   67,964
Assets of discontinued 

operations—current   —   5,171   6,094   —   —   11,265
Total current assets   —   258,992   240,981   5,928   (36,938)   468,963

Investment in subsidiaries   (464,314)   1,758,007   7,671   6,725   (1,308,089)   —
Property, plant and equipment, net   —   86,416   191,453   1,209   —   279,078
Goodwill   —   25,540   155,849   6,026   —   187,415
Other intangible assets, net   —   6,621   196,755   1,823   —   205,199
Other assets, net   —   40,301   3,827   504   —   44,632
Assets of discontinued 

operations—long- term   —   6,525   8,743   —   —   15,268
Total assets  $ (464,314)  $ 2,182,402  $ 805,279  $ 22,215  $ (1,345,027)  $ 1,200,555

Liabilities and Shareholders’  
(Deficit) Equity

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of  

long- term debt  $ —  $ 6,961  $ 4,787  $ —  $ —  $ 11,748
Accounts payable   —   104,941   74,394   515   —   179,850
Accrued compensation and  

related liabilities   —   14,409   9,755   514   —   24,678
Other current liabilities   —   56,766   20,069   532   —   77,367
Liabilities of discontinued 

operations—current   —   2,930   3,661   —   —   6,591
Intercompany payable (receivable)   —   1,177,669   (1,185,665)   7,996   —   —
Notes payable to issuer   —   —   36,938   —   (36,938)   —

Total current liabilities   —   1,363,676   (1,036,061)   9,557   (36,938)   300,234
Long- term debt   —   1,166,360   5,510   —   —   1,171,870
Other liabilities   —   115,196   78,427   (1,738)   —   191,885
Liabilities of discontinued 

operations—long- term   —   1,484   (604)   —   —   880
Shareholders’ (deficit) equity   (464,314)   (464,314)   1,758,007   14,396   (1,308,089)   (464,314)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
(deficit) equity  $ (464,314)  $ 2,182,402  $ 805,279  $ 22,215  $ (1,345,027)  $ 1,200,555
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
For the year ended 2012

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non- Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales  $ —  $ 684,257  $ 1,038,793  $ 15,243  $ —  $ 1,738,293
Cost of sales   —   576,286   827,342   13,519   —   1,417,147
Selling, general and administrative 

expenses   —   101,704   80,511   765   —   182,980
Amortization of intangible assets   —   582   8,777   522   —   9,881
Restructuring and other charges   —   5,917   21,087   96   —   27,100

Operating (loss) income   —   (232)   101,076   341   —   101,185
Interest expense, net   —   114,164   607   (16)   —   114,755
Intercompany interest (income) 

expense   —   (1,476)   1,404   72   —   —
Loss on early extinguishment  

of debt, net   —   12,487   —   —   —   12,487
Other (income) expense, net   —   (1,125)   46   (170)   —   (1,249)

(Loss) income from continuing 
operations before income 
taxes and equity in (loss) 
income of subsidiaries   —   (124,282)   99,019   455   —   (24,808)

Income tax expense (benefit)   —   31,623   24,503   (406)   —   55,720
(Loss) income from continuing 

operations before equity in 
(loss) income of subsidiaries   —   (155,905)   74,516   861   —   (80,528)

Equity in (loss) income of subsidiaries   (79,887)   68,896   861   —   10,130   —
(Loss) income from continuing 

operations   (79,887)   (87,009)   75,377   861   10,130   (80,528)
Income (loss) from discontinued 

operations, net of taxes   —   7,122   (6,481)   —   —   641
Net (loss) income   (79,887)   (79,887)   68,896   861   10,130   (79,887)

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Other comprehensive (loss) 

income of subsidiaries   (7,321)   (64)   (589)   —   7,974   —
Pension liability adjustment,  

net of taxes   —   (7,257)   (729)   —   —   (7,986)
Currency translation adjustment   —   —   1,254   (589)   —   665

Comprehensive (loss) income  $ (87,208)  $ (87,208)  $ 68,832  $ 272  $ 18,104  $ (87,208)
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 2012

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

of continuing operations  $ 5,333  $ (115,689)  $ 150,706  $ 2,494  $ —  $ 42,844
Net cash provided by operating activities of 

discontinued operations   —   8,240   981   —   —   9,221
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   5,333   (107,449)   151,687   2,494   —   52,065

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cost of business acquisitions, net of cash acquired   —   (644)   —   —   —   (644)
Capital expenditures   —   (10,263)   (10,135)   (165)   —   (20,563)
Purchase of Investment   —   (350)   —   —   —   (350)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   —   360   7,618   —   —   7,978
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets   —   5,700   —   —   —   5,700
Intercompany note   —   3,900   —   —   (3,900)   —

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing 
operations   —   (1,297)   (2,517)   (165)   (3,900)   (7,879)

Net cash provided by investing activities of 
discontinued operations   —   16,114   23,419   —   —   39,533

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   —   14,817   20,902   (165)   (3,900)   31,654
Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of 10.5% senior notes   —   (169,875)   —   —   —   (169,875)
Repayment of 7.875% senior subordinated notes   —   (214,831)   —   —   —   (214,831)
Borrowings of Term Loan B due 2016   —   31,844   —   —   —   31,844
Repayment of 8.375% senior subordinated notes   —   (24,787)   —   —   —   (24,787)
Payment of financing related costs and expenses and 

debt issuance discounts   —   (37,836)   —   —   —   (37,836)
Repayments of other long- term debt   —   (147)   (4,699)   —   —   (4,846)
Purchase and retirement of common stock upon 

vesting of RSUs   (735)   —   —   —   —   (735)
Proceeds from issuance of 11.5% senior notes   —   225,000   —   —   —   225,000
Proceeds from issuance of 7% senior exchangeable 

notes   —   86,250   —   —   —   86,250
Borrowings under Revolving Credit Facility, net   —   18,000   —   —   —   18,000
Intercompany note   —   —   —   (3,900)   3,900   —
Intercompany advances   (4,598)   170,396   (167,988)   2,190   —   —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 
of continuing operations   (5,333)   84,014   (172,687)   (1,710)   3,900   (91,816)

Net cash used in financing activities of 
discontinued operations   —   (1,652)   —   —   —   (1,652)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (5,333)   82,362   (172,687)   (1,710)   3,900   (93,468)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents   —   —   104   2   —   106
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash 

equivalents   —   (10,270)   6   621   —   (9,643)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   —   16,033   280   1,440   —   17,753
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ —  $ 5,763  $ 286  $ 2,061  $ —  $ 8,110
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
For the year ended 2011

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Non- Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales  $ —  $ 697,741  $ 1,127,876  $ 18,754  $ —  $ 1,844,371
Cost of sales   —   577,192   905,726   15,284   —   1,498,202
Selling, general and administrative 

expenses   —   118,345   93,869   1,082   —   213,296
Amortization of intangible assets   —   426   8,937   536   —   9,899
Restructuring and other charges   —   8,773   9,010   29   —   17,812

Operating (loss) income   —   (6,995)   110,334   1,823   —   105,162
Gain on bargain purchase   —   (11,720)   —   —   —   (11,720)
Interest expense, net   —   115,307   712   (51)   —   115,968
Intercompany interest (income) 

expense   —   (1,180)   975   205   —   —
Gain on early extinguishment  

of debt, net   —   (4,011)   —   —   —   (4,011)
Other expense (income), net   —   9,832   378   (1,136)   —   9,074

(Loss) income from continuing 
operations before income 
taxes and equity in income of 
unconsolidated subsidiaries   —   (115,223)   108,269   2,805   —   (4,149)

Income tax expense (benefit)   —   12,392   (9,494)   1,647   —   4,545
(Loss) income from continuing 

operations before equity in 
(loss) income of 
unconsolidated subsidiaries   —   (127,615)   117,763   1,158   —   (8,694)

Equity in (loss) income of 
unconsolidated subsidiaries   (8,565)   111,454   1,158   —   (104,047)   —
(Loss) income from continuing 

operations   (8,565)   (16,161)   118,921   1,158   (104,047)   (8,694)
Income (loss) from discontinued 

operations, net of taxes   —   7,596   (7,467)   —   —   129
Net (loss) income   (8,565)   (8,565)   111,454   1,158   (104,047)   (8,565)

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Other comprehensive (loss) 

income of subsidiaries   (39,597)   (4,260)   (5,006)   —   48,863   —
Pension liability adjustment,  

net of taxes   —   (37,130)   —   —   —   (37,130)
Reclassifications of losses related 

to interest rate swaps into 
earnings, net of taxes   —   1,793   —   —   —   1,793

Currency translation adjustment   —   —   746   (5,006)   —   (4,260)
Comprehensive (loss) income  $ (48,162)  $ (48,162)  $ 107,194  $ (3,848)  $ (55,184)  $ (48,162)
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CENVEO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 2011

(in thousands)
Parent 

Company
Subsidiary 

Issuer
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

of continuing operations  $ 8,716  $ (115,927)  $ 175,235  $ 1,605  $ —  $ 69,629
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

of discontinued operations   —   14,438   (3,745)   —   —   10,693
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   8,716   (101,489)   171,490   1,605   —   80,322

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cost of business acquisitions, net of cash acquired   —   (59,719)   —   —   —   (59,719)
Capital expenditures   —   (9,873)   (5,004)   (695)   —   (15,572)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   —   1,298   9,816   —   —   11,114
Intercompany note   —   5,600   —   —   (5,600)   —

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 
of continuing operations   —   (62,694)   4,812   (695)   (5,600)   (64,177)

Net cash used in investing activities of 
discontinued operations   —   (635)   —   —   —   (635)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities   —   (63,329)   4,812   (695)   (5,600)   (64,812)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of 7.875% senior subordinated notes   —   (8,952)   —   —   —   (8,952)
Repayment of Term Loan B due 2016   —   (23,800)   —   —   —   (23,800)
Repayment of 8.375% senior subordinated notes   —   (5,363)   —   —   —   (5,363)
Payment of financing related costs and expenses   —   (2,675)   —   —   —   (2,675)
Repayments of other long- term debt   —   (107)   (6,296)   —   —   (6,403)
Purchase and retirement of common stock upon 

vesting of RSUs   (1,283)   —   —   —   —   (1,283)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   356   —   —   —   —   356
Intercompany note   —   —   —   (5,600)   5,600   —
Intercompany advances   (7,789)   174,867   (170,730)   3,652   —   —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (8,716)   133,970   (177,026)   (1,948)   5,600   (48,120)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents   —   —   —   614   —   614
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents   —   (30,848)   (724)   (424)   —   (31,996)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   —   46,881   1,004   1,864   —   49,749
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ —  $ 16,033  $ 280  $ 1,440  $ —  $ 17,753
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20. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
The following table sets forth certain quarterly financial data for the periods indicated:

(in thousands, except per share amounts) First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter (5) Fourth Quarter (8)

Fiscal Year 2013
Net sales:

Envelope  $ 166,453  $ 161,304  $ 177,717  $ 244,424
Print   127,245   121,554   140,331   140,630
Label and Packaging   124,916   123,682   124,733   124,819
Total  $ 418,614  $ 406,540  $ 442,781  $ 509,873

Operating income (loss):
Envelope  $ 9,010  $ 10,125  $ 8,119  $ 12,521
Print   1,007   2,018   6,874   (15,941)
Label and Packaging   11,544   12,908   9,245   (1,053)
Corporate   (9,883)   (8,209)   (7,714)   (11,208)
Total  $ 11,678  $ 16,842  $ 16,524  $ (15,681)

(Loss) income from continuing operations(2) (4)  $ (20,490)  $ (18,996)  $ 13,427  $ (59,468)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes(3)   1,345   113   13,492   1,791
Net (loss) income(2)  $ (19,145)  $ (18,883)  $ 26,919  $ (57,677)
Net (loss) income per share—basic

Continuing operations(1)  $ (0.32)  $ (0.30)  $ 0.21  $ (0.90)
Discontinued operations(1)   0.02   —   0.21   0.03
Net (loss) income(1)  $ (0.30)  $ (0.30)  $ 0.42  $ (0.87)

Net (loss) income per share—diluted
Continuing operations(1)  $ (0.32)  $ (0.30)  $ 0.16  $ (0.90)
Discontinued operations(1)   0.02   —   0.16   0.03
Net (loss) income(1)  $ (0.30)  $ (0.30)  $ 0.32  $ (0.87)
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(in thousands, except per share amounts) First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Fiscal Year 2012
Net sales:

Envelope  $ 168,532  $ 161,760  $ 159,804  $ 168,121
Print   142,273   138,565   154,926   149,868
Label and Packaging   128,759   123,536   122,438   119,711
Total  $ 439,564  $ 423,861  $ 437,168  $ 437,700

Operating income (loss):
Envelope  $ 10,943  $ 11,127  $ 10,275  $ 13,140
Print   (5,519)   8,627   15,556   14,181
Label and Packaging   13,444   14,363   13,811   13,048
Corporate   (7,582)   (8,150)   (7,360)   (8,719)
Total  $ 11,286  $ 25,967  $ 32,282  $ 31,650

(Loss) income from continuing operations(7)  $ (24,371)  $ (1,790)  $ 3,022  $ (57,389)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of taxes(6)   (2,847)   1,389   1,453   646
Net (loss) income(7)  $ (27,218)  $ (401)  $ 4,475  $ (56,743)
Net (loss) income per share—basic

Continuing operations(1)  $ (0.38)  $ (0.03)  $ 0.05  $ (0.90)
Discontinued operations(1)   (0.05)   0.02   0.02   0.01
Net (loss) income(1)  $ (0.43)  $ (0.01)  $ 0.07  $ (0.89)

Net (loss) income per share—diluted
Continuing operations(1)  $ (0.38)  $ (0.03)  $ 0.05  $ (0.90)
Discontinued operations(1)   (0.05)   0.02   0.02   0.01
Net (loss) income(1)  $ (0.43)  $ (0.01)  $ 0.07  $ (0.89)

(1) The quarterly earnings per share information is computed separately for each period. Therefore, the sum of such quarterly per share amounts may 
differ from the total year.

(2) Includes valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets of $40.6 million recognized in the fourth quarter of 2013.
(3) Includes $25.6 million gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax expense of $10.7 million, most of which was recognized in the third quarter 

of 2013.
(4) Includes a bargain purchase gain of $17.3 million, exclusive of $6.8 million of tax expense, recognized in the third quarter of 2013.
(5) The Company is revising its historical financial statements included in its Form 10-Q for the three month period ended September 28, 2013 (“Q3 

Form 10-Q”) to reflect the adjustments made during the fourth quarter 2013 to the preliminary purchase price allocation of the fair value of assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed on September 16, 2013, the date the Company acquired certain assets of National.

 As reported in the Q3 Form 10-Q, the purchase price was preliminarily allocated as of September 16, 2013 based on the estimated fair value of net 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date Cenveo acquired certain assets of National. During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company 
adjusted the purchase price allocation and recorded fair value adjustments to the preliminary purchase price allocation reported at September 28, 
2013. These purchase price adjustments have been reflected as of the year ended 2013 in the consolidated financial statements. The adjustments 
resulted in an increase to the fair value of net assets acquired of $4.8 million and a corresponding increase to the bargain purchase gain recognized, 
exclusive of $1.9 million in tax expense. The Company has not adjusted its net income from continuing operations for the three and nine month 
period ended September 28, 2013 for any other items.

(6) Includes $6.3 million loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax benefit of $2.6 million recognized in the first quarter of 2012.
(7) Includes valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets of $56.5 million recognized in the fourth quarter of 2012.
(8) Includes $33.4 million impairment charge on intangible assets recognized in the fourth quarter of 2013.
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The management of Cenveo is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal 
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; 
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of assets which could 
have a material effect on our financial statements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 28, 2013, based on the framework set 
forth by the 1992 Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (“1992 COSO 
Framework”). Based on that assessment, management concluded that, as of December 28, 2013, our internal control over financial reporting was 
effective based on the criteria established in the 1992 COSO Framework.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Grant Thornton LLP, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 28, 2013. This report follows.

Robert G. Burton, Sr. Scott J. Goodwin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Cenveo, Inc.

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Cenveo, Inc. (a Colorado corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as 
of December 28, 2013, based on criteria established in the 1992 Internal Control- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control 
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting 
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 28, 2013, 
based on criteria established in the 1992 Internal Control- Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 28, 2013, and our report dated February 26, 2014 expressed an 
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

GRANT THORNTON LLP
New York, New York
February 26, 2014
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